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MR. JONES: Object to the form.

THE WITNESSEENG s Helens
4 He" canimake théﬁ‘determlnatlonwhiﬁ§€lf§

§EI Sl S R R e gt
ey Eﬁ“ﬁﬁncwlgg%a,

R e ) fww“‘?’

aver araldsonvi

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.

MR. JONES: 1I'll join.

THE WITNESS %‘g@;ﬁ*dé‘if*t‘-f{: hink rapybedy “felt ithey

. ngggstltos Babys it Batys Tharaldson®ifHe's probably one of the

most sophisticated borrowers that we have, in the sense he's
borrovwed in excess of $3 billion in his lifetime with
multiple, probably in excess of a hundred banks. He's seen
lots of loan documents and had attorneys at his disposal if
he needed them or wanted them to look at documents.

BY MR. ARONSON:

Q. Was it your view that, if Gary Tharaldson didn't,
specifically, ask you to send him drafts of any of the
ManhattanWest senior loan documents, you didn't need to send
them drafts?

MR. JONES: Object to the form of the question.
Calls for speculation.

THE WITNESS: I don't think he wanted to be in the
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A. Yeah. Like I said, I identified some of the
changes that were made in the documents previously.
Q. Okay.
{(Deposition Exhibit Nunber 911
was marked for identification.)

BY MR. ARONSON:

R S s e R R T TR

;

anweiEi 1l FEIFNEC EEVARATEEHL Yddted - Janvary23xd  0£ ;2008 bow

JimuHorniBgrand  ATexIEdeittein? Actuallyit's: part:ofiauszes

cha R Ed T 3V AV Penny Heaberlin e-mailibefore:that.on:thasiss

seig Raga e
awﬁmm$hewquestﬁen%isfﬂisfit”anmmrmailﬁfromfme@to@ﬂim&m@

Hor PR aHdY AISKIFIETsTein? - - - fu}
Q mnsRightiBYouseetthe seconduline: ofitheré=mails HuH

whiBF e S WrFLte T8 i Edalstein:’

Q. F¥pideyousfeslvyournesdedstangiye such advice. o

e T P B S A TR Tt s S TS R N
e ont to ME . Bdalatein ARSTEyf.go;-why?Lw

MR. JONES: Object to the 'form of the gquestion,

ssPleasarmake Sgure - yHuR ik

IO A Y TER R Sy et e dm R
6 dbcimants ~alBo? i

s R S B TR B e
WeLT

THE WITNESS: ,“this particular document®filow

sty v s W ATy PR ]

S e e B g m FrG AR L T R
hereshadstEeds "It the " PasSing on of Swnership from one-
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identify whatwwas®cdpital- gains; “and '§0 on and so forth.
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So it required the inpit~6f their attorneys-to-
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BEPEREEL T 867 0R, §0 forth.
BY MR. ARONSON:

Q. My question is: @Wm%}mﬁ&%ﬁ%&@m&@
whysyous£81E Y60 should -be “ad¥ising Mr. BdeTS¥S1A" to" make & :

[raheies)

surerhid Attorney raviews these Actumentes= tidt asre™

atEEShEen €64 EOV BRI BT e

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to the form.

MR. JONES: 1I'll join. Asked and answered.

THE WITNESS%&@emplicated transaction,.that  waSuwsm
derdsedebysbl-saccountantsyand. attorneysswand- then. thelruas. .2

inputtwasenédessary*to¥wéigh™“in onsitatosmake..sure. we.hads
gggg%&g;ggminﬁorderﬂhw
BY MR. ARONSON:

Q. Wouldn't that same description apply to the
ManhattanWest senior lcan, itself, complicated transaction?

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.

MR. JONES: 1I'll join.

THE WITNESS: I don't think this is even remotely
close to the same as what the Manhattan loan closing 1is.
This is a transfer of ownership and it's got implications of
taxable events. 1It's got implications of IRS potential
challenges to it.

I mean, there's lots of reasons for their
attorneys and accountants to be informed of these documents

that they had asked Scott Financial to assist in

* CONFIDENTIAIL *
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1 Q. I DouycURHEGETT any testikeny By MeS- HesbeElin Sthat: s

2 shewexpéctedsyouiould<go ovér- ‘the Manhattanwest" druft¢'“*“

3]  dvetmENts i tHEETIEEa1as SR

4 MR. JONES: Object to the form of the question.

5

6 thaewer £ ERtHESEHEYEion was? "s*ﬁ’ea"mr“doﬁ'htﬁf“éééﬂ

7 MR. ARONSON: Let's mark this as 912, please.

8 ' {Deposition Exhibit Number 912

9 was marked for identification.)
10 BY MR, ARONSON:
11 Q. Would you confirm fox the recoxd that Exhibit 912
12 is an e-mail from you to others dated January 23rd of 20082
i3 A. Yes, it is.
14 Q. Is there any particular reason you can recall that
15 this e-mail, Exhibit 912, was not sent to Gary Tharaldson?
16 A. No.
17 Q. "IEEMe BRow yod  What has-previcisly Besn marked ga
18 Exhibit -234vin~this*case i
19 MR. CLAYMAN: Are we leaving the same exhibit
20 number on that?
21 MR, ARONSON: Yeah, we can leave the same exhibit

number on it.

ae
N

BY MR. ARONSON:

N
w

.
B T3 . YT PR ?B

Q. FWould*you donfirm thut Exhszt 234 is an a-ma;l

N
o

£rom You 0" yourself “-ackualily, this Ts ER-a%iEil that you

N
n
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ﬁ'glmﬂ“tr«gn"hww" T i m..mnev—v-?"ﬂ?"

HErouttovall the other ManhattanWest 1oan partioipanta,

RBERTY %
is A Sorrects
wa*ﬁ L
A. @;&«Tha?tt‘»‘ms orrect .
R T, g orann et

Q. Wond ueﬁ%ﬁnea indicatas, the saceond

paradfaph Father{iaiddtes tHAYT IS 15%h documents have

Py

bedfi®Févievad By thie“Borrowarsand®lagal counsel as well as -i¥"

tHe%Bank" of “OKLaliciia//'is thaturight? - -

@ = s W N

A, wﬂ@gdﬁBankﬁ.o £ Oklahgmalsulegal'scounsel,~that! g
10 Q. Angl.then the. next paragraph refers to the ...
11 doduientsibéing’ délivered ;~-. have-now been-exacutad: by,.a;the;,@{;—

12 bof¥dwerandttliel'gidrantoz ;< is-that: right?

13 A, masThetlsmettreatheitu .
14 wHlgekEoRYour kn&ﬁlbdgew"? of “TaREE “”"“30?.!{ o a1 méhjfn’g’

15 cOUnSaTTsR! hal‘falf*of the**guarantor*t—maam.ng.-sa.rywi'haraldsonw i

Rt

WMF) b g

;P St s el -
EFETHIPPHET & S raviewed any of these documents;“"cor:act?w

16
17 M%mﬂ%h-ave%no%m'owib’ed% whether or.not.he.had.his..
18 1 rnar e on~staff Tegai*counsel review-thexclosing documentsss:
19 | o

_ r.‘;,ﬁ;wa,s“,fr-wvz R, FR
20 QFETVEF that phrase, you're raforring ‘to Mr Spiry?
21 B Yeah,, that. was=his *interhal”cotng&kn-. I think.bheww
22 h RS DAV HE SR St Rers at h:.simé::.sposal t
23 doeumeiits “if~he" Felt“it " WiE Tecessa ry.
24 o] To your knowledge, Mr, Spiry may have been
25 involved in some. aspect of the Manhattan Serene transaction
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DISTRICT COURT

L CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, L.L.C., a Nevada )
Limited Liability Company; THARALDSON MOTELS, II, )

INC., a North Dakota corporation; and GARY D, )Case No.
THARALDSON, 1AB79963
Plaintiffs, } Dept. No.
v, YXIII

)
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a North Dakota
corporation; BRADLEY J, SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,
N.A., a national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT WEST,
INC., a Nevada corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada
corporation; DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and
ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a foreign
corperation,
Counterclaimant,
.

GARY D. THARALDSON,

)
}
}
)
)
}
)
)
}
)
)
)
)
)
;
Counterdefendant. )
)

CONFIDENTIAL
VIDEOTAFED DEPOSITION OF BRADLEY J. SCOTT
VOLUME V
PAGES B832-%97
H LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
NOVEMBER 18, 2010

h REPORTED BY: HOLLY LARSEN, CCR NO. 680, RPR, CSR
L3T JOB NO. 130596

12019-001 00691
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18 Q. 1f those were delivered, there would be some

19 e-mail record or FedEx record of some type; is that correct?
20 MR. JONES: Object to the form of the question.

21 THE WITNESS: I don't know. There may or may not

22 7 be. I don't know. I don't remember if we delivered them in

23 person or if we went over them on the phone and walked
24 through the terms of the agreement and covered it that way,
25 or if we sent them an e-mail, or we just knew everybody was

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada limited
liability company; THARALDSON
MOTELS II, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY
D. THARALDSON,

Plaintiff,

vs. Case No. AB79963
Department No., 13

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a Consclidated With

North Dakota Corporation; Case No. A-10-609288C

BRADLEY J. SCOTT; BANK OF

OKLAHOMA N,A., a national

bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT

WEST INC., a Nevada

corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS

CORPORATICN D/B/A ABCO

CONSTRUCTION; a Nevada

corporation; DOE INDIVIDUALS

1-180; and ROE BUSINESS

ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.

AND RELATED COUNTERCLAIMS

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,

L.L.C., a Nevada limited

liability company; THARALDSON

MOTELS II, INC., a North

Dakota corporation; and

GARY D. THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs,

va.

ALEXANDER EDELSTEIN, an
individual,
Defendant.

N TAKEN oN BEHALF OF THE PLAINTIFFS
ONGEIELY2 2742005 BEGINNING AT 9:02 A.M,
IN TULSA, OKLAHOMA

REPORTED BY: Lacy Antle, CSR, RPR
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' '.‘f‘\&_‘n,q

dHwReRs

S S TR
Offﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁgy@agﬁ' :

1ce, ou_unders_a "t aﬁ?

Q My understanding is you met with Gary
Tharaldscn and Ryan Kucker on -- at the January 11lth
bank -- at the January 1lth meeting in Las Vegas in

that breakout meeting that you described?

A Yes.

Q Other than that breakout meeting, have you
ever met Ryan Kucker?

A I think he may have been in the November
meeting as well. I failed to mention him yesterday,
I think he was there,

Q November 2007 meeting --

Yes.

-- in Las Vegas?

I can't say with --

You're just not sure?

-~ certainty, I'm not positive,

Do you --

¥ 0 ¥ 0 ¥ O P

I don't recall whether that was my first

12019-001

00696



10
11
i2
13
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

PR#60678 JAMES, TIM 7/22/2010
50

of videotape number two in volume two in the
deposition-of Tim James. We're back on the record
at 10:15 a.m.

o] (BY MR. ARONSON) Mr. James, I --
regarding Manhattan West, Wguidet stang:

AT IR,

ammeeting:. oha NovembeEr 27 th; 200!

S

whigh, Gary:Tharaldson”wasgiprese:

teld.mg about: that meetrngx*right?

A Correct.

Tharaldson was present.
A Correct.
Q “iwANdiyou!vé  told. me abouttthEtTalrEEaYE
GeErect? <. .
MR, CLAYMAN: Object to the form.

THE WITNESS: Weddywiwhaventoldsyousthingse.|

thatwEzhavesthoughtefurt e rBaBo Ut i P THEv ERE - -

tho¥é¥nee tingswandathatisspantsofonysadddtdonalosmesy

COHent Sasme
Q (BY MR. ARONSON) All right.

R S0 L don bt eewalodondufee luliker oo T oW
everythingsthat*I*f&ES1Tectegd vy gverything ~that ~ I#
recollected~at” the time“vésterday; T-told“you I
regellected~further.things.last night that I've made

12019-001

o
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NQLE SOl vimsssvci . .
0 Oka%mWelwll.__,comeﬂ ‘back to thoge.

=i

- L —--m-:'-m'ﬁg\.;::w-e.d".-.-g-,. T R ey e Lt
DS EEIRAST L EnAl Ve U IR EIMESL 1T

which Gary Tharaldson:was:present;in

LR |

in,.theslastiquarter “of 2007 dealing’wit
plant?

2@ .
wuthere.anyzdiscussion: about: Manhattan West?-

Japparysllthimeetings; im:
hegause ;I know, yoiiiad! someé othei: méetings:

ME..Iharaldson;in.the: secondihdlficf 2008,7 85"
0f:20087.7

hrough .the first:half:

16
17
18
19
20
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23
24
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was.at-.any..other.meetings.with
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Q Did you ever have any conversations with
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Wevada limited
liability company; THARALDSON
MOTELS II, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY

D. THARALDSON,

Plaintiff,

vs. Case No. AS578963
Department No. 13

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a Consolidated With

North Dakota Corporation; Case No, a~10-609288C

BRADLEY J. SCOTT; BANK OF

OKLAHOMA N.A., a national

bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT

WEST INC., a Nevada

corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS

CORPORATION D/B/A APCO

CONSTRUCTION; a Nevada

corporation; BOE INDIVIDUALS

1-100; and ROE BUSINESS

ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.

AND RELATED COUNTERCLAIMS

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,

L.L.C., a Nevada limited

liability company; THARARLDSON

MOTELS TII, INC,, a North

Dakota corporaticn: and

GARY D, THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs,

Vs,

ALEXANDER EDELSTEIN, an
individual,
Defendant.

NON; EH&;'LJ THE "PLA

3N“3EPTEM§£°“ 7010 NG AT 9:08 A.M.
IN TULSA, OKLAHOMA

REPORTED BY: Lacy Antle, CSR, RPR

12019-001

00700



10

11

12

13

14

15

le

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

PR#61728 JAMES, TIM 9/21/2010

‘the binding obligations that the commitment report

Eﬁ%@%@%@é’ “%ﬁﬁﬁm o QE

80
MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.
THE WITNESS: Ultimately, yes.
Q (BY MR. ARONSON) Yeah. Everything has to

ke signed, all the documents have to be —-— create

that was approved by the senior lcan committee
basically authorized, right?

A Right.

Q Do you recall, did you ever see any draft
of a corporate resclution for TMI II on the

guarantee regarding Manhattan West?

A I don't recall.

R R SR

12019-001

S

00701
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Q

Haeberlin at the Maslon law firm?

A

Did you ever discuss that issue with Penny

I never discussed any documents with

12019-001
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r@;nﬁ#}
A“SHgggﬁa 2019}

m'semr;rw
asdcie ﬁrEL

MR, ARONSON: Let's mark this as Exhibit
262, please.
MR, CLAYMAN: You said 2627

MR. ARONSON: 262, yes.

MR, CLAYMAN: Thank you.
Q (BY MR, ARONSON) Just please confirm for
the record, Mr. Scott ([sic], that Exhibit 262 is --—
appears to consist of a couple of e-mails with the

bottom e-mail dated January 23rd, 2008. Do you see

that?
{Plaintiff's Exhibit 262 marked for
identification.)
A Yes.

12019-001

a5

<,

00703
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A It does not make me recall anything else.
Q You would agree that this is the type of
information that you would need to fill in a

corporate resolution form on a corporate guarantee,

right?
A I suspect that's correct.
Q Okay. I've got one more exhibit to go

over with you quickly and then we can take our next

break.

10
11
12
13
14

15

MR. ARCNSON:

704, please.

MR. CLAYMAN:

L

L.et's mark this as Exhibit

I'm sorry?

BT e
(Plaintiff's Exhibit 704 marked for
identification.)
Iy Ly
SRR
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No.
Q Okay. We can take our break now. Thanks.
THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're off the record.
11:22 a.m.
(Break taken from 11:22 a.m. to
11:33 a.m.)
THE VIDEOGRAPHER: We're back on the

record, 11:33 a.m.

MR. CARTER: Object to the form.
MR. CLAYMAN: Object to the form.

% s ot s ,{.%é%"
f)

THE WITNESS:

Q IWWR@WS@N% %@kam%ﬁ%m pBLoklug
; ; ' ﬁﬁm@%ﬁﬂ%@wd

12019-001
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J."'r"u_:;,a 55 %@ng the

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.
MR. CARTER: Joined.
THE WITNESS B

12019-001
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T dson?

MR, CLAYMAN: Object to the form,

ara

MR. CARTER: Joined.

MR. CLAYMAN: Obiject to form.

MR. CARTER: Joined.

THE WITNESS: The document was created
I don't recall if -- whether we specifically
insﬁructed or requested Penny to draft the document.
The communication occurred between myself and our
counsel and Brad and our counsel and —- between
Penny and -~ and Harley Thomas, the ultimate result
of that was Penny's drafting the document.

Q {(BY MR. ARONSON)} Let me rephrase the

guestion then, because the lawyers are getting

worried about the word "authorized."

e@%%’y?*ft yu%%’?ﬁ%%@g VTR
ture c::n"r‘1:!!‘1?1’5%’ﬁ TMiJfgﬁgﬁaréaggiu s

u,.

ETd ST “
%@@‘ %ﬂj
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MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form,
THE WITNESS g rg;‘ﬁﬂw%%*rrec

o (BY MR. ARONSON)

YA e i
-mgg S%d%ﬁﬁf nanc'*”

@ﬁg@qntaoﬁﬁBOKﬁkgg%?afﬁ?ﬂgf
MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.

MR. CARTER: Object to form.
Gupyry

Q (BY MR. ARONSON) Turn to Exhibit 164,

1 Lo "f - “-%' kj x‘%‘l
T I--'-‘fgua’*’rg%%té‘eé@

your commitment report on the Manhattan West loan.

It's the thicker document right there. Turn to page

two of the commitment report. Under Source of
Repayment, de¢ you see that the —- what you have
written as the primary source of repayment is,
"Condominium and commercial sales proceeds and
refinance of debt associated with the leased
commercial space"?

A Yes.

Q And that the secondary source of repayment

was the resources of the guarantor; correct?

A Yes,

Q And you believed that when you wrote this
commitment report in December of 2007, right?

A Yes,

Q You would agree it's very impeortant in

12019-001
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196
A I just don't know when I received the --
CD number three.
Q Okay.

MR. ARONSON: Mark this as Exhibit 250,

PR AR

u i entlfy'

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 250 marked for

identification.)

cccmpllshﬁ% for”youl“
e e e e e o

‘Tbost of  funds issuestha%*@’h&@ﬁ‘
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e
a

s ST e
R T R SRR

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.

MR. CARTER; Forn.

i re

o D
TR R S ff’?"i}’?;" ‘}ﬁ-;gtj, iy .';"' i
S S A ROy T B IT 5y

g RS A A A
S P S R S IR D L e

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form —-
MR. CARTER: Form.
Q (BY MR. ARONSON)}

T

A EAnbRes

T e A e
RACRIE I S e

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to the form.

MR, CARTER: Jolned.

ATt Ty ‘e“‘;':" Bt

P T
WC%use“fof our "internal pricing-
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Q So as far as you were concerned, it was a
good thing that he got Exhibit 250 signed on?

A Correct.

Q Were there any other amendments to the
senior loan, to your knowledge?

A Not that I recall.

Q Okay. Were any others ever reguested?

A Not by Bank of Oklahoma.

Q How about by any other participant, by any
participant bank?

A I don't know.

MR. ARONSON: Let's mark this next exhibit
as 231, please. ‘

Q (BY MR. ARONSON} Would you confirm that
Exhibit 231 is an e-mail from Brad Scott to you
regarding the first amendment to the senior loan?

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 231 marked for
identification.)

A Yes.

Q And it's dated February 5, 20087

A Yes,

Q Okay. So this e-mail is one day before

the initial draw on the senior loan; correct?

12019-001
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada limited
liability company; THARALDSON
MOTELS II, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY
D. THARALDSON,

Plaintiff,

vs. Case No, AS579963
Department No, 13
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a Consolidated wWith
Noxrth Dakota Corporation; Case No, A-10~609288C
BRADLEY J. SCOTT; BANK OF
OKLAHOMA N.A.,; a naticnal
bank: GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT
WEST INC., a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION; a Nevada
corporation; DOE INDIVIDUALS
1-100; and ROE BUSINESS
ENTITIES 1-100,
Defendants.

AND RELATED COUNTERCLAIMS

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,

L.L.C., a Nevada limited

liability company; THARALDSON

MOTELS II, INC., a Noxrth

Dakota corporation; and

GARY D. THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs,

V3.

ALEXANDER EDELSTEIN, an
individual,
Defendant.

BEGINNING AT 9:07 A.M.
% OKLAHOMA
REPORTED BY: Lacy Antle, CSR, RPR
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Scott to you regarding Manhattan West; is that
correct?

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 229 marked for
identification.)

A It looks like it's regarding Gary

Tharaldson and financial matters of his.

Zo)

1 el RNl

Q Okay., And this is a few days before
you're going to appear in front of your senior loan
committee, right?

A I believe that's correct.

Q. And you ~-- you'll see that there are two
different type faces on this, and, please, note that
it appears that the smaller type is your question
and the larger type is Brad Scott's response.

A Yes.

T T———
el »@:ﬁf, o
?!’)hé&%’ét&ﬁ:%ﬂ
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20 MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.
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‘%xBragﬁs ”J%§%%%%?%
e 2 92 % S g ,q.@
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MR. CARTER: Object to form.

Ay sr e

: .‘1‘@}’1@6

G e e RO
@%%tegg hgnmgﬁéﬁﬁt
A %@wf”
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'éeemsﬂt
MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.
MR. CARTER: Joined.
SIS

3

Q (BY MR. ARONSON} Okay. Turn to the next
page of this e-mail, please. And this is in
response to your guestion, oh, in the -~ about a
third of the way down the page about, "What are the
approval criteria?"

A Yes,

Q And you see that one of their approval

criteria under Residential is that buyers get

12019-001

-
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DISTRICT COURT OF CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Sede e dedrde bk v ek deok e de A e e e ek de e e de K ok i e ke ok e e e ke e ok ke ke e e

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, ~

L.L.C., a Nevada limited liability
company; THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC.,
a North Dakota corporation; and
GARY D, THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs, Case No. AS579963
V. Dept. No. XIII
SCOTT FINANCIAL CQRPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J.
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A., a
national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT
WEST, INC., a Nevada corporation;
ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION D/B/A
APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada
corporation; DOE INDIVIDUALS 1-100;
and ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,
Defendants,

dedededddr ok khhdhdddrkdhkdh bbb ddk b ddrdkhddd kb hdkhdddr ik

VIDEQTAFED DEPOSITICN OF

PENNY HEABERLIN
Taken September 29, 2010
Scheduled for 9:00 a.m.

Reported By: Lori Morrow, RPR, CRR, CLR LST JOB NO. 127445
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PENNY HEABERLIN ~ 9/29/2010

LT RPN - R < T S OV B LR

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -

A I did not draft the participation agreements as

we discussed earlier,

Q Okay. But you did draft —- ycu're saying you
drafted the senior loan agreement?

A Yes.

e AR YO THERE GE° the A Ta R taeEY

AesmawaeBY

QuemrBoths the~TMI* II¥GUAFARtY " aid"™ thé~ GATy"

TRRE A1 dE oW PR EEHEL "GORE AR LY

i PG

Q Okay. And we'll get later into whatever
invelvement you may have had with the participation
agreaments. I have a faw documants on that to show you.
Are there other doouments regarding the senior loan
rackage that you recall drafting?

a There are quite a few, including deeds of
trust, resolutions. I'm not sure —- I can't recall
exactly, but there would be numerous documents.

Q 8o you drafted the corporate resoclutions that
needed to be signaed by Gemstone, for example?

A I generally do.

Q Okay. And you drafted the deeds of trust?

A Correct.

Q You know, in terms of what we're going to go
through -- and again, I have some documents to show you

(800) 330-1112

12019-001
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PENNY HEABERLIN - 2/2%/2010 PN
Page 62 3“)

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330~1112 .

in a moment. Other than the participation agreements,
are thers any othar typical documents inciuded within the
gsenior loan package of documents that you were not the
primary draftsperson on?

A As we discussed before, I would not have been
involved in drafting the voucher control agreement. Some
of those third-pazty -- there would be some third-party
documents that I would not have drafted.

Q And generally -- well, let ﬁa ba spacific about
this. You’ve alraady told ma that you had sowma
negotiations ox back and forth with Bank of Oklahoma's

‘attorney regarding their participation agreement,

correct? g'”)

A I don't recall specifically, but I believe I
did.

Q Okay. Is it your rescollection as to whether
there were any other negotiations with sny other parties
or attornaeys regarding the form of the participation
agreemaents for the Manhattan senior loan?

A The form of the participation agreements? I
don't recall any other participant having any comments or
questions or anything.

Qi PkEF Wa s tHeFe T aRYTTISTo tidtlion  or “disbussiony
withrattorneys.or. other parties;-s-and. I'm-éxoluding:

SHERE FiRARS AT "Trom this: questiona.--

12019-001 00719
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PENNY HEABERLIN - 9/29/2010
Page 63

B COTLROL

Qutminmsregarding- e thex the s Lor" thié Mashi t EER
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qorporate guar
DTN

Q Were thare any negotiations or discussions with
any of the other parties or with any other lawyers,
again, excluding Scott Finanocial, regarding the seniorx
loan agreaement that you recall on the Manhattan West
tranaaction?

a Yes.

Q Okay. And were those discussions with Gemstone
attorneys and Bank of Oklahoma attorneys ox parties or
whom?

A There were discussions with Gemstone's internal
counsel.

Q And that was Peter Smith, if you recall?

A Peter Smith, and then also, I believe, Jim
Horning, who =-- he may or may not be an attorney. He had
comments. He may be a financial person. Also, I believe
the Bank of Oklahoma provided comments to Brad that I
would have, you know, addressed. But I don't recall
whether or not I discussed the senior loan documents

directly with anyone f£rom Bank of Oklahoma.

Q Well, and in terms of Gemstons comments, I

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112

12019-001
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PENNY HEABERLIN - $/29/2010
Page

don't want to =--

A I got those directly, I believe, from Gemstone,

Q And would that have been eamsil or telephona
conversations, if you recall?

A Probably both.

Q Okay. And I don't want to mislead you. I
think Holland & Hart was representing Gemstone as well,
and were there some communications --

A Yes.

Q == there as wall?

a Yes. That was mainly in regard to a legal

opinion.
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LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLCOGIES - (800) 330-1112
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And were there any, to your knowledge?

Do you know of any general such discusaions?

Q
A I'm not —— I don't know of specific.
Q
A

I would assume that my client had discussions

o v 0 - o o W N

Okay. Other than Brad Scott --

'_‘
-

Other than my client, no.

—
ha

-= or Scott Finanocial ~--

[
W

No.

-
;o

-= arae you aware of any -~

No.

b
[+

~~ guch discussions?

=
~)

No.

o
Lae]
L P O Y O ¥ O ¥ O

[
w

Okay.

N
o

MR. REMELE: Penny, you have to wait until he

finishes his question. Otherwise, the court

(SIS
Nt

reporter will kill us.
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.

o
- W

MR. REMELE: That's okay.

N
K

BY MR. ARCNSON:

N
w

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (800) 330-1112
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DECLARATION OF
GARY D. THARALDSON

1, Gary D. Tharaldson, hereby state and declare, under penalty of perjury, as follows:

l. I have personal knowledge of all matters set forth herein.

2, On or about January 30, 2008, I executed the Tharaldson Personal Guaranty
relating to the ManhattanWest Senior Loan and also the TM2I Guaranty relating to the
ManhattanWest Senior Loan.

3. Prior to January 30, 2008, I had not been provided for review drafts of any of
the documents presented to me for signature on January 30, 2008.

4, When I signed the Tharaldson Personal Guaranty and the TM2I Guaranty on
January 30, 2008, I was not aware that either document contained a waiver of jury trigl. No
one from Scott Financial Corporation or Bank of Oklahoma ever called my attention to the
issue of waiver of jury trial on either guaranty.

5. Given my unawareness that either guaranty document contained a jury trial
waiver, I did not knowingly or intentionally agree to waive jury trial with respect to either

the Tharaldson Personal Guaranty or the TM2I Guaranty,

WD.%M

GARY D. THARALDSON

HAI0004.DIRATHARALDSONLAS VEGASGary Declarathon. wpd

12019-001 00724



EXHIBIT 6

FILED UNDER SEAL
EXCERPTS
DEPONENT GARY THARALDSON

12019-001 00725



DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVRDA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL }
SERVICES, L.L.C., a Nevada)
Limited Liability Company;)
| THARALDSON MOTELS II,

INC., a North Dakota
corporation; and GARY D.
THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,
Case No. A579963
Dept. No. XIII

ﬂ s

SCOTT FINANCIAL
CORPORATION, a North
Dakecta corporation:
BRADLEY J, SCQTT; BANK OF )
OKLAHOMA, N.A,, a national}
bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT}
WEST, INC., a Nevada }
corporation; ASPHALT
PRODUCTS CORPORATION D/B/A)
APCO CONSTRUCTION, a }
Nevada corporation; DOES )
INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE)
BUSINESS ENTITES 1-100,

Defendants,

AND RELATED CROSS~CLAIMS.

CONFIDENTIAL
VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION QOF GARY THARALDSON
VOLUME I
Pages 1 - 294
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
MAY 11, 2010
LST JOB NO. 121867
Reported By: LISA MAKOWSKI, CCR 345, CA CSR 13400
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GARY THARALDSON, VOLUME I - 5/11/2010

a. Did I sign -- did I sign all —— go ahead.l11:05

Repeat the guestion. 11:05
Q. Yeos. Did you aign the commitment lettersll:05s
that raelate to this case, to your knowledgae? 11:05
A. Yes, I did,. 11:05

Q. Did you sign -- did you sign on behalf of11:05
Club Vista Pinancial Services on the senior debt, 11:05

the $400,000 of senior debt that Club Vista 11:06
committed to? 11:06
A. I would think =~ I -~ I don't know, but I11:06
would assume I signed them. : 11:06
— - N — 11:06

11:08

11:06

ﬁm&gﬁ;ﬁ“ Fudranteenfor: 11:06

it pro: &: 11:06
AURRNERETTGHGEIRRdTRs idnieduthe - 11106

SN aS IR Erer  11:06

SRR T -a@%‘i’f&%ﬁmﬂﬁ 11:06
GuAEEHER @‘ 11:06
Q. Row, isn't it true that Ryan Kucker put 11:06
those pages in front of you to sign? 11:06
A, That's correct, 11:06

Q. And so Mr. Kucker had possession and 11:06
control of those documents, at least at some point 11:06

* CONFIDENTIAL *

12018-001

U
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DISTRICT C
CLARK COUNTY,

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL
SERVICES, L.L.C., a Nevada
Limited Liability Company:
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC.,
a North Dakota corperation:
and GARY D. THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,

ve

SCOTT FINANCIAL
CORPORATION, a Neorth Dakota
corporation; BRADLEY J.
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,
N.A., a2 national bank;
GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT WEST,
INC., a Nevada corporation;
ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION
D/B/A APCO CONSTRUCTION, a
Nevada corpeoration; DOES
INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITES 1-100,

Defendants.

AND RELATED CROSS~CLAIMS.

QURT

NEVADA
Case No. A579963
Dept. No. .XIII

i i i L P iy N P I R R

CONFIDENTIAL

VIDECTAPEDR DEPOSITION O
VOLUME TII
PAGES 295 -
LAS VEGAS, NE
MAY 12, 20

LsT JOB NO. 121869
Reported By: LISA MAKOWSKI,

F' GARY THARALDSON

587
VADA
10

CCR 345, CA CSR 13400
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GARY THARALDSON, VOLUME II - 5/12/2010
Page 487

A. Yeah., I didn't -- I didn't negotiate it.02:31

Q. All right. 02:31

A. I mean, I -- I negotiated part of this, 02:31

the 5 points and the 14 percent. I never 02:31
negotiated the TMI2 guarantee with Bank of 02:31
Oklahcma. I think Brad did that,. 02:31-
Q. Did -- did Brad have authority to commit 02:31

TM2TI to guaranteeing any loans? 02:31
A, No, He -- you =~ you said negotiate. 02:31

Q. Okay. 02:31

A, Yeah. So I said he -- he negotiated 02:31
that. 02:31
Q. All right. Fair enough. All right. 02:31

' SoditlsrmsibotiddddiyouragraaR oM HavanTM2I02 : 31
sguaranteesthenBankiof«Oklahomarportion.of . the 02:31
eongeructioniloan?® 02:31
SRwmNoywwladirdORoEy 02:31
QumpyNeversatiany-time syousneverragreed:sto: 02:31
thatu 02:31
abmrmemlees 02:31
CEEARITHY PR sag RS GUAFER EEETESTERAY™  02:31
FEEETL? 02:32

ERmpnsdsneveryseensthevguarantes I signed’ thel02:32
%&g&a@%ﬁgﬁpggﬁsmmewxhemguarantee1mitmLQOkswlﬁggn 02:32

Bulsfuneversagreeds--ulsneveriseensthe"JUATAREEEFH 02:32

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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GARY THARALDSON, VOLUME II - 5/12/2010

]

Page 488
BRI RSB RN oW AD b lits chidkguarante e Nobody 02:32
evermrokdPneraboutsthenguanant.essonBank, of . 02:32
wEbwiph Nz e causeire ncTididndes  02:32
approvaleatronsTMi2utosdonits 02:32
Q. So let me -~ let me ask you: Do you -- 02:32
who do you think put that signature page in front 02:32
of you? 02:32
A, Ryan Kucker. 02:32
Q. aAnd do you know if Ryan had the rest of 02:32
the guarantee or just the signature page? 02:32
A, I don't know. 02:32
Q. And why do you think Rvan did it as 02:32
oppeosed to -- 02:32
A, Well, I don't -- I don't know. That -~ (2:32
that -- that would be the only -- maybe Brad Scott 02:32
did it. I'm not sure. I don't know who did it. 02:32
Q. S0 w- 02:32
A, We don't know -- because it wasn't in the02:32

closing documents, so we know it wasn't there. So 02:32

I guess I made a mistake. I don't know -- I don't 02:32

know when it was signed or where it was signed and 02:32

I -- and nobody ever told me anything about it.

Q. And you don't know if ~- if -- if you

02:33
02:33

ever talked to Ryan Kucker about that guarantee; is02:33

that your testimony?

02:33

12019-001
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GARY THARALDSON, VOLUME II - 5/12/2010

Page 48%
A. He was not aware of it either. 02:33
Q. He told you that? 02:33
A. Yes. 02:33

Pregeidteratianystineiwith:  02:33
Bankzefifklahomazaboutwanythingstordoswithithe: 02:33

iMaEnhattanWestuloan2ay 02:33-
aBwmsaNopusTndias ROt 02:33
Q. Next paragraph, 72, reads: 02:33

“This complex structure was highly unusuaf2:33
for a number of reasons.' 02:33
Now, let me -- bafore I get to the rest 02:33
of that paragraph, let me ask you first: The -- 02:33

the structure I assume they're referring to as 02:34
being referred to in the complaint is the one 02:34
that's in paragraph 71. 02:34

Is that your -~ also your understanding? 02:34

A, It sounds logical. 02:34

Q. All right. Do you know whether or not 02:34

the loan structure referred to in paragraph 71 is 02:34
highly unusual, or would that be somebody else's 02:34
language? 02:34
A. That would be the attorney's language. 02:34

Q. All right. The -- the next part of that 02:34
paragraph reads: 02:34

"First, it is unusual for entities not 02:34

12019-001
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK CQUNTY., HEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC.,
a North Dakota corxporation; and GARY
D. THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,
vs, Case No.:
Dept. No.:

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a

Horth Dakota corporation; BRADLEY

J. 8SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A,

a national bank, GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT
WEST, IHNC., a Nevada corporation,
ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation; DOES
INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE BUSINESS
ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.
VIDEOTAPETD
DEPOSITION
of

GARY D. THARALDSON

July 8, 2010 vol T

9:00 O'clock A.M.
Taken at: HOTEL DONALDSON

101 Broadway
Fargo, North Dakota

REPORTER: DOUGLAS T. KETCHAM
(PURSUANT TO NOTICE]

A5738963 |
XIII

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

TTR RROANWAY <NTTR 20N FARGCA NP RN 7N1Yy 237778
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233

back to that Complaint letter and read them back
to you, I mean, they were all listed in the
Complaint letter --

Q. All right.

A. -- very clearly, I believe,

Q. Well, okay. I won't belabor that
point for either of us because I think that call
for a legal c¢onclusion so there is no point in
talking about that.

On the fourth page of the personal
guaranty, again, is there any question in your
mind that that's your signature on the signature
line?

a. It looks like it.

0. All right. Let me ask you about on
that same page, paragrapﬁ 13, would you, first of
all, agree with me that everything in that
paragraph is in bold and capitalized?

A. In 137

Q. Yes, sir.

a. It's bold and capitalized.

Q. All right, And this is on the same
page as the page that you signed, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. So even if you didn't loock at any

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

TTR RROANWAY. AIITTR 20N FAREO ND RAINT? N1y 22R7..N27H

12019-001
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other pages when you signed it, you cextainly
could have seen this language when you signed
your name, correct?

A. Correct. Yeah., I knew that my
attorney had looked at it, Maslon.

Q. All right. Well, let me just make
sure I'm clear. 1Is it, is it your contention in
this case that Maslon represented Club Vista
Financial Services?

A, They represented all of ocur entities,
whatever had to do with me. If it was me or my
entities,.

Q. Did they, well, okay. Now Club Vista
Financial Services, did it pay a fee to have all
of the, as part of its participation in the
participation group with the other 28 banks,
whatever it was, they paid a pro rata share of
any costs related to the loan, is that correct?

A. Legal fees?

Q. Any kind of fees,.

A. The participation group? I'm not
aware of that.

Q. Well, then let me put it another way.
Did the participation agreement require the

borrower to pay all fees associated with the cost

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

118 RROADWAY. SITTE 200. FARGN. NP RRIN? (7011 237-0275

12019-001
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ManhatténWest case, you didn't pay the Maslon Law
Firm personally any fees, correct?

A. No.

Q. And Club Vista didn't pay the Maslon
Law Firm any fees, correct?

A. No, they did not.

0z Bl B b e e R P e e TV B o oY WL 00 e

Axguaseptenzythe-MaskonmBaw e e T e S Ere™ed

S TV A e

Yerwaboutithesguaranty o8 V8w I TRy Way

shapexorsformuabontertheGiEFaR Ty avrav tHey?
mgelheyutabkedatoamysrepresentative

gaéﬁhmwasﬂﬁwadkScott%%ﬁHWBYEdWSCOttWS&nwﬂu@%am

fal s @y angiMaslkonaw FEREEE TR U ingrws

Q. Maslon was representing you
individually or as a guarantor?

A. Ne. ©No. Representing us over the
period, course of the time that they were
representing us.

Q. Have those e=mails been produced in
this case?

A, Yeah. I believe they have, yes.

Q. All right. Have you ever seen an
e~mail related to the ManhattanWest project that
says from Brad Scott suggest that Maslon Law Firm

was representing vou as a guarantor?

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

T1R BROADWAY. SUTTR 20N. FARGO. NN S81N2 (701) 237-n278
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in bold and all capital letters that tell you,
teld you that as the guarantor had the right to
consult with your own lawyer, lawyer of your
choosing regarding the prudence, if you will, of
signing this guaranty, right?

MR. ARONSON: Objection. Form. Go

ahead.

A, I don't know what you said.

SEEPFREHgY In fact, I don't believe this lady, or

firm ever sent it to a different lawyer than
that. If they weren't going to represent us they
should have sent it to another lawyer or asked if
we, asked which lawyer, which lawyer we would
want to sign off on it, Typically you ask for an
opinion letter on it.

Q. Did you ever tell Brad Scott or
anybody else that you wanted to have your own

lawyer look at these documents?

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

118 BROADWAY. SUITE 200. FARGO. ND SR102 (7011 237-n27%
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A. He told us that Maslon would handle
it for us so. We thought she was a very good

attorney. 8o I was hoping that you know she did

it properly.

MR. ARONSON: Form. Go ahead.
leaiitmbsatveltynemwhatebts

And T den't remember what the problems are.

Q. Okay. Did you ever, did anvbody ever
tell you you couldn't get your own lawyer to look
at any of these documents?

A. Well, I don't think anybody would
ever fell you that under any circumstances, so --

Q. S0 would you agree that you had --

A. Doesan't scund logical.

S dR SR e tan by
ipeRiEVERySinuownmbanyersildeNFitathesevrdocunen teys

AR Y S e SR WM R G A ol
MR. ARONSON: Form.
B RS TSUE WA e yer sl ook

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

118 BROADWAY. SUITE 200. FARGO. ND 5R102 (7011 237-0275
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC.,
a North Dakota corporation; and GARY
D. THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,

vs. Cage No.: A579963
Dept. No.: XIIX

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a

North Dakota sorporation; BRADLEY

J. SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, W.A,

a national bank, GEMSTONF DEVELOPMENT
WEST, INC., a Nevada corporation,
ABPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation; DOES
INDIVIDUALS 1~-100; and ROE BUSINESS
ENTITIES 1-100,

befendants.

VIDEOTAPED
DEPOSITION
of

GARY D. THARALDSON

July 9, 2010 v o f\/
i ’-—-_-—_.-—"'""
9:10 O'clock A.M,.

Taken at: HOTEL DONALDSON
101 Broadway
Fargo, North Dakota

REPORTER: DOUGLAS T. KETCHAM
(PURSUANT TO NOTICE)

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

118 BROADWAY. SUITE 200, FARGO. ND $8102 (701) 237-0275
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first of all, this is all just one page where
your signature appears on the page with all the
language from the addendum, correct?

A. Yes,

Q. And right before the witness line
there is a paragraph that's in capital letters,
it's in, well, all capital letters, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. Says quote, "The waiver of
subrogation and other rights set forth in
paragraph 8 of the guaranty is hereby expressly
made notwithstanding the provisions of N.R.S.
section 40.475 and 40.485 or any other statutory
or common law or procedural rule tec the
contrary," end quote. And then there are other
references to N.R.S. 40.430 in the document,
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. All right. Now in this case are you
complaining the, that to your knowledge are you
complaining that the oné action rule was waived?

MR, ARONSON: Form.

Q. To your knowledge?

ﬁ%@ﬁ&wgﬂc@mpW@ﬁﬁﬁﬁi*guégﬁmiSntng;wgng{r

Brag#8cott.and Scott Financial and Maslon when

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

118 BROADWAY. SUITE 200, FARGO. ND 58102 {701) 237-02
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they,revieved, this«for-me.they~didntt;didntt
@@@mﬁﬁ&@wﬁmﬁﬁhhﬁ“nétmdﬁky%bh&wﬁ

&mm&w
R ER E FE R s

Tegttorneyatiiat
b ompusTtanidiis.oms

mawmﬂwnﬁﬂh&mneﬂaneﬂAetienw&ulewmyﬁwmas$enés

5@Mo@neyswweuidwhave*eprainedmitwtowmehtheyﬁdmv
ﬁ%gggﬁﬂpﬁxa pitheyldradvise®me ot t ogiunobs RO AL o)
sehgnitdabip
Q. All right. S0 it's your belief that a
lawyer looking out for your interests would have
advised you not to sign a waiver of the one
action rule?

A. That's what I have been told now. I

mean, the last year or so.

Q. Do you know how it hurt you or

compremised your rights?

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

119 BROADWAY. SUITE 200, FARGO. RD 58102 (701) 237-0275

12019-001
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since this lawsuit has been filed and maybe
before the lawsuit was filed and they have
explained to you how the one action rule affects
your rights, is that generally true?

a, Yes, they tried to, yes.

Q. And after that explanation you still
really don't understand how it affects your
rights, is that right?

A. Not exactly, no,

Q. All right. And so it's your testimony
here today, though, that if some other lawyer
would have explained this to you before, you
would have not signed the document even though
now you're in a lawsuit based in part on a
Complaint ¢over signing this document and you
don't even understand what the --

MR. ARONSON: Form.

AemusOkays=ayoushave. o, realize.k-signed
thigwaftercmysdawyers:Maslonw.and«-Brad=8cot t¥edld

L T R N A

iment hAtH LTS WIS RATHES ST

oREyH
QuisieDidrlt SEHEMESFOR  Law Pl rmvrave rotalkk
towyousabout thiswguaranty®
e No Y Nes
Qﬁmw&omtheyedidn&t_telTuﬁi

R They "should Have blt they 'did nots-

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

118 BROADWAY, SUITE 200. FARGO, ND 58102 (701} 237-0275
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@emunFhenreasontItasked you~that<because:
ﬁﬁgg@said@thewMa&ienwLanEirmwtoidmyoumabeutﬁﬁhe
ESATning

BpaanIhe Vsshould-havestoldrme o The yy
ghouddshavesadviseddme ¥ ot FPE g liarantys,

Q. All right. So --

A. I had a second opinion from another
lawyexr and they told me that also.

C. My point is is that even after a
lawyer has explained the one action rule to you,
you still have no idea how it would affect your
rights, correct? Exactly, othex than exposure --

A. Not exactly. It's one action instead
of two actions I would imagine. Whatever that
means.

Q. And so I guess my question is to you,
is that your testimony is that even though you
don't understand why it harms you after you've
had a full explanatibn £rom now i1t sounds like
two different law firms, you would not sign this
had the Maslon lLaw Firm actually sat down and
explained it te you?

MR. ARONSON: Form, go ahead.
A, I believe the lawyers would have

advised me not to sign it.

DOUG KETCHAM & ASSOCIATES

118 BROADWAY. SUITE 200, FARGO, ND 58102 (701) 237-0275
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, L.L.C., a Nevada
Limited Liability Company; THARALDSON MOTELS, II,
INC., a North Dakota corporation; and GARY D,
THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs,
V.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a North Dakota

corporation; BRADLEY J. SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,

N.A., a national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELQOPMENT WEST,
INC., a Nevada corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS

CORFPORATION D/B/A APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada

corporation; DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and

ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants,

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a foreign

corporation,
Counterclaimant,

V.

GARY D. THARALDSON,
Counterdefendant,

CONFIDENTIAL

)

}

JCase No.
JA579963
}Dept, Neo, .
JXIII

)

)
)
}
}
)
}
}
)
!
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF GARY D. THARALDSON

VOLUME ,I—Tf‘_Z:.

PAGES %50 THROUGH 1114
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
SEPTEMBER 8, 2010

REPORTED BY: HOLLY J. PIKE, CCR NO. 680, RPR, CSR
LST JOB NO.: 126486
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GARY D. THARALDSON, VOLUME IV - 8/8/2010
Page 1034

Q. Yesn,

A. Yeah, I think that would be correct. Then you
would have about a $25 million a year cash flow after it was
paid off, average.

Q. What's the life of an ethanol plant?

A. Ours is an industrial ethanol plant. It's not
like a typical ethanol plant. They've told me 50, 60 years.

Q. Mr. Tharaldson, did you have any responsibility to
review information involving the ManhattanWest transaction
before you executed your personal guaranty in the
ManhattanWest transaction?

MR. ARONSON: Objection. Form.

THERWETNES SemafousrkiewiFWe ot t ievdocuments..abhout,
gﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁg£§ﬁbeiore¢thﬁy3ﬁ%fﬁ”to "be e TTVEFEa tovpex
qgﬁégﬁgggw@gmhere%was%no*timéﬂtdmiéﬁfﬁﬁ“theﬁdoeumenﬁ5m;@mhgﬁ
%&gﬁﬁﬁéémﬁha@mﬁmadﬁﬁé6ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ@fﬁI&yﬂrevﬁewedmtheﬁdocumen%s
andusheswasasending i t@t o M ESE MY E TG RAT U FES w85 "nor»wew
dadimett-havertime o vreviews themy

Remsaddehewas»goitightosendwit outwearlier andwhe
gdanditvos8o we ‘relied on him based:on ~—-in.-order-to -get
Ghemssignedsssing. order., teosget=hisvdraw done~or-whatever:

BY MR. CLAYMAN:

Q. You focused on documents. There was a lot of the

information exchanged between Mr., Edelstein and Mr. Scott

and your office between February of '07 and January of '08.

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, L.L.C., a Nevada
Limited Liability Company; THARALDSON MOTELS, II,
INC., a North Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs,
v.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a North Dakota

corporation; BRADLEY J, SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,

N.A., & national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT WEST,
INC., a Nevada corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS

CORPORATION D/B/A APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada

corporation; DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and

ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.

)
}

.JCase No.
JA579963

) Dept. No.
YXIII

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a foreign
corporation,
Counterclaimant,
v,

GARY D. THARALDSON,
Counterdefendant.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
}
)
)
)
)
)

CONFIDENTIAL

VIDEOTAPED DEPOSITION OF GARY D. THARALDSON

VOLUME V

PAGES 1115-1315
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA
SEPTEMBER 9, 2010

REPORTED BY: HOLLY J. PIKE, CCR NO. 680, RPR, CSR
LST JOB NO.: 126488

12019-001

00745



O ~J o4 U & W N e

)
Lo B Yol

11
12
13
14
15
1o
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

GARY D. THARALDSON, VOLUME V - 9/9/2010
Page 1203

ie.

If you look at it, that's a year, almost a year
after the senior loan was in place before we realized we
didn’t have -- that there was a TMIZ guaranty. Nobody in
our company knew,

Q. I'm trying to figure out what tha issue is on the
TMI2 guaranty. First let me make clear.

So it's your testimony today that no one in your
company bad knowledge of the TMI2 guaranty?

A, Correct.

QuimTouddidnlt-ipersonallyywhaveknowledge «ofsthesTHE2:
‘Fiavanty

HBviisnCoprec sy

Q. When it was executed. Once this TMI2 guaranty
sort of came to your attention -- I take it at this point
you've had a chance to lock at the TMIZ guaranty?

A, Whenever he sent it to us. I assume that he sent
it to me on Sunday, the next day. A couple hours later, I
guess, he sent it to me. Needless to say, I was very angry
and really felt cheated to have something like this happen.
The shareholders didn't even have a chance to approve it or
not approve it.

There was no need for the -- I had already
personally guaranteed it. He shouldn't have needed a TMIZ

guaranty. If he needed a TMI2 guaranty, he needed to

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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GARY D. THARALDSON, VOLUME V - 9/9/2010

Page 1204

discuss it and work it out. I would have never gave the
thing.

Q. Fair enough.

A, Because there was no need to give it.

Q. That kind of gets to my next question. What is

your contention about the TMI2 guaranty? 1Is that you signed -

it by accident or that it was forged?
ﬁﬁ@@ﬁ@%@m@@@@ﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁmﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁwde@eptﬁanww@lfmlusigned

SR

dbewdtrwas Bt BUFHYAECept Ton v~ Fhe- ditshonest y, . crookednessz:»

Abydng, = WhatBVEE "I t¥H4¥" fraudulently -gotten. - -

Q. What I'm trying to understand is, is it your
belief that you signed it through deception or that it was
forged?

A. I don't know if it's forged. We asked to see the
guaranty to see if it was my signature. The signature locks
a little bit funny. We want to make sure through an expert
if it is mine or not. There were some differences and I
want to make sure.

Ifealndidnsigmebbeitiwasidonebthroughidéception

shesanseTi CHWIB HEVEr“dilftussed o> it ‘wastnot ‘supposed-.tobe:

Razbrofutheragreement ins,,
@RunreAldseightine: 88l you ve, never thought “that’ TMIZ wis
one.of -thetpartiosttorEHe CNARHE Etaiwas t PESjeatd

aREmENE L e REE Y a g

MR, SMITH: It's 11:50 My next questions are

12019-001
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GARY D. THARALDSON, VOLUME V - 9/9/2010
Page 1290

N My

BY MR, SMITH:

Q. Actually, my specific question is just -- I'll
tell you what. Let me work through some other questions and
we'll get back to that. Okay? Because we don't have a ton
of time left. I want to make best use of it.

MR. ARONSON: Okay.
BY MR. SMITH:

Q. I guess a better way to say it is as a porsoagl
guarantor, you individually signed off on the Sanior Debt
Loan Agreement. Specifically what I'm refarring to is, if
you turn to page 22 -- it's actually 23. Pardon me.
There's no number on it, but it's the page after 229

A, What I understand I did is I acknowledged that I
was the personal guarantor.

Q. T guess that's my question. What does this
signature mean to you as we sit here today? You're simply
acknowledging that you had executed a personal guaranty, oxr
by signing this dooument -- did you review this document
before you signed it? |

TR Lo T U s Lo R s SV €S 1 S s e el A oV G oo

MOVESEEFONT NG P T HIdi trgetnavchancestonraviews Lt .z

QussXourhad tormoveritvon?

sRvwErY eahw Wedduag—

RrrouDid -Brad” Seott force you:. -~

Auge-It*had ‘dlready been reviewed by Scott. Financial

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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GARY D. THARALDSON, VOLUME V - 9/9/2010

1 anduthesattorneyswonWhen T ot HEF " WEE¥aEKked "to signs it
2 sAndegetciti.oversto:Alexswithin.a.short.period.of time....So-I:
3 *m;giLxmnevieWmitwwnovmﬁﬁ
4 Q. Did Brad Scott, Bank of Oklahoma for that matter I
5 guess, did they prevent you from reading this document
6 before you aigned it?
7 A, Well, if I was going to comply with what Brad had
8 asked, I would not have been able to read the documents.
9 Q. My question specifically is, did Brad Scott
10 pPrevent you from reading this document before you signed it?
11 A. Well, I don't know if he prevented. It made it
12 very difficult to try to --
13 . Q. I recognize -- : )
14 A. What do you mean by the word "prevent"? .
15 Q. I'm saying did he hold --
16 A. I'm not following.
17 Q. Let's just spell it out. Did he hold you down and
18 keep you from reading this document even though you wanted
19 to?
20 A. No, he did not hold me down.
21 Q. Did he tell you not to read it?
22 A. No, he didn't tell me not to read it.
23 Q. Did you tell him that you would have liked a
24 little more time so you could read it and review it before
25 you signed it?

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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Unknown

From: f"}
Sent: > o2 ; ; A
To: ’ Ryan Kucker; 'Jim Homing'; Gary D. Tharaidson; "Alex Edsistein’
Ce: 'Penny Heabetln'; 'Margoe L. Scolt’; 'Patar Smith"; Jason Ulmer
Subject: Ciosing Bocuments MHW
importance: High
JFDA
ManhattanWest Ciosing:

We are finally nearly completed with the Projects closing.

SRCIMARHHAT ISR BERICBLOklahgmarand Al BariGE: GRoTmays, Nave findlly BpREBYed Ahd sIgHan oI amRIEER:
o Sl i
As pmvious.!é,éggw ssed with you, theHoTiRnsMEETEUPS TonIght (6 0aR S VEGHROMICE for Wednasiliv 113008

The document package includes a return UPS jabel to SFC:

+ Senior Loan Docs
+ Meozzanine Loan Docs
» CVFS Participation Agreemeants

designatedyourmouired BIGHENINSY R TRsdEeby
ARG aNent by EMiras soon aveNaculedls

MHW will execute, copy recording documents for SFC, obtain other signatures as required, and have Title (Trish
Glatt) pick up all original recording documents.

Jim please re-check all documents to be sure all have been properly executed before returning.
MHW will then UPS executed orlginal Closing Loan Documents to SFC for Thursday moming delivery.

SFC wiil get them assembled for the Banks and delivered Friday.
We hope te have all Particlpation Decuments returned to SFC along with the initial Draw approval by Tuesday.

With all Conditions Precedent First Advance met by MHW......SFC will plan to fund on Wednesday 2(6/08.
| should have Closing Staterents and the |pjtial Draw Summary emailed to all of you by late tomorrow.

Finally, we wiil send ail of you a Closing Documents DISC next week.
Thanks for everyone’s timely cooperation,

Call me if you have any questions.

Take care,

Brad J. Scott

Scott Financlal Corporation
15010 Sundown Diive

Bismarck, NO 58503

9/7/2009 _
CVFS-RK001994

12019-001 00751
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SFC has timely and successfully navigater our way through all the Loan Closing Documentation and loan
funding requirements for ManhatanWest,

All deouments have now been executed by the Borrower and Guaranter and are respectively boing delfivered to
Titlo today,

SFC will UPS for Friday moming dailyary to each of you the following items to compiete your Credit File:
1. Participation Documents (hard copy to be-exscuted and retuned UPS)

2. ManhattanWest initial Draw Information {hard copy)
3. Sales Report Summary (hard copy)

4, AN Loan Closing Documents (Disc)

g \lnstmctlons & Parﬂcipnﬂon Broakdown {w

L e e s S e naRA et

Please note you will recelve kem #2 abova with sach Project Draw anticipated monthly.

Plense be avaiaibia to timely review and axocute the information delivered Friday, returning it to
SFC as requested.

'Feel free to call me If you have any quastions.
Wae look forward to working with you on this dynamic praject.

Thanks.

Brad J. Scott

Scott Finandlal Corporation
15010 Sundown Drive

Bsmarck, ND 58503

W 701,255.22158

M: 791.220.3080

F: 701.223.7200

bredapscotifinarciglcorp, com

SCOTT-14483%
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jtj@kempjones.com
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mmj@kempjones.com

MATTHEW S. CARTER, ESQ. (#9524)
msc@kempjones.com

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel. (702) 385-6000

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley J. Scott

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, Case No.:  AS579963
L.L.C., a Nevada Limited Liability Company; | Dept. No.: XTI
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D,

THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs, SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION,
BRADLEY J. SCOTT AND BANK OF
v. OKLAHOMA, N.A.’S MOTION (1) TO
BIFURCATE TRIAL, AND (2) TO
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a EXTEND DEADLINE FOR FILING
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J. MOTIONS IN LIMINE; AND (3)
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A., a RENEWED MOTION TO STRIKE JURY
national bank; GEMSTONE DEMAND ON ORDER SHORTENING

DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada TIME
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS

CORPORATION D/B/A APCO

CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation;

DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE Hearing Date:

BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100, Hearing Time:
Defendants.

COME NOW Defendants SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION (“SFC”) BRADLEY J.
SCOTT (“Scott™), by and through their attorneys of record, Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP, and
Defendant Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. by and through its attorneys of record Lewis & Roca, LLP and
Frederic Dorwart, Lawyers, and move this Court for (1) bifurcation of the trial in this matter into two
parts — one for claims related to the guarantor Plaintiffs Gary Tharaldson and Tharaldson Motels 11,
Inc. (“TM2I"), and one for claims related to Plaintiff Club Vista Financial Services (“CVF8"); and

12019-001 00608

Docket 57784 Document 2011-05225
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(2) an order striking the jury demand of guarantors, which this Court previously indicated it would
rule on at a later stage in this case. In connection with this motion, Moving Defendants also request
this Court hear the non-jury portion of the trial first, and extend the deadlines for filing motions in
limine commensurate with the beginning of the jury portion of the trial. This motion is made and
based upon the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, any attached exhibits, all pleadings
and papers on file in this action, and any oral argurnent that this Court might entertain at the hearing
on this motion,

Dated thislm%ay of January, 2011,

Respectfully submitted,

KE ’ﬂ & COULTHARD
/ /“

YN
s’

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley I, Scott

LEWIS AND ROCA, LLP

D on
VN S. HEINZ, ESQ. (#859)
93 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

JOHN D. CLAYMAN, ESQ.

PIPER W. TURNER, ESQ.

Admitted Pro Hac Vice

FREDERIC DORWART, LAWYERS
Oid City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103

Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.
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ORDER SHORTENING TIME
Good cause appearing therefore, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the time for hearing of
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, BRADLEY J. SCOTT, AND BANK OF OKLAHOMA,
N.A’SMOTION (1) TO BIFURCATE TRIAL, AND (2) TO EXTEND DEADLINE FOR FILING
MOTIONS IN LIMINE; AND (3) RENEWED MOTION TO STRIKE JURY DEMAND ON
ORDER SHORTENING TIN.[E will come on for hearing before the District Court Judge,

Department XTI, on the 3 day of :) v , / at the hour of M o'clockez m,

or as soon thereafier as counsel may ‘oe heard.

Dated: s / O, 20//
P can ¢
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AFFIDAVIT OF J. RANDAILL JONES IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR

ORDER SHORTENING TIME
STATE OF NEVADA )
COUNTY OF CLARK % >

J. Randall Jones, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. I amn a partner at the law firm of Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP and I represent the
Scott Defendants in the above-entitied action. I am an attorney admitted to practice before all courts
in the State of Nevada.

2. I'make this affidavit under penalty of perjury. I have personal knowledge of the facts
and circumstances set forth in this affidavit and can testify thereto in a court of law.

3. Pursuant to EDCR 2.26, SFC and Brad Scott submit that good cause exists to justify
shortening time of a hearing on this motion.

4. This motion addresses an issue that was previously set aside by the Court: whether
or not to enforce the jury trial waivers contained in the guaranties of Gary D. Tharaldson and
Tharaldson Matels IT, Inc.(“TM2I™). Defendants SFC and Brad Scott are renewing that request and
asking that, as a consequence of the jury trial waivers by Gary Tharaldson and TM2I, this Court
bifurcate the trial is this matter into two parts: one regarding the claims relating to the guarantors,
and one regarding claims relating to Club Vista Financial Services (“CVFs8™).

5. The Court has set a firm trial date in this matter of March 8, 2011. Motions in limine
are currently due on January 14, 2011, It is therefore vital for the parties to know as soon as possible
which claims, if any, will be tried in front of a jury.

6. Accordingly, good cause exists to issue the Order to Shorten Time so that this matter

may be heard prior as soon as possible, and at thé vesy lkast.prior to January 14, 2011,

day of January, 2011. - T GRIFTN 2

C ndt /é%«éém ) s
7Y e

Mo. 94-4063-1
Neidry Public

SUBSE BED and SWORN to before me

#y appt. exp. Dec. 19, 2013
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I.
INTRODUCTION

On October 5, 2009, this Court denied Defendants’ motion to strike the jury demands of Gary
Tharaldson and TM21 without prejudice. Seg Order Denying Motion to Strike Jury Demand Without
prejudice, attached hereto as Exhibit A. At the hearing, the Court stated that the issues of the jury
trial waivers and whether the portions of the case subject to those jury trial waivers should be
severed should be reserved for a later time in the case, presumably once more discovery had taken
place. See Court Minutes dated October 5, 2009, attached hereto as Exhibit B, at 3. The time for
this Court to make those determinations has now come.

As this Court will recall, Plaintiffs argued at the hearing on the original motion to strike that
the jury trial waivers in the guaranties were ineffective because the guaranties were procured through
fraud. Apart from the fact that any evidence Plaintiffs have of any fraud is paper-thin at best (and
therefore not provable under the clear and convincing evidence standard) and non-existent at worst,
this argument fails on a more basic level, Regardless of what this Court ends up ruling on any fraud
allegations, there is simply no evidence that Tharaldson or TM2I were fraudulently induced into
waiving their rights to a jury trial. In fact, all indications point to the fact that both Tharaldson and
TM21 were fully aware of the jury trial waivers in their guaranties executed them intentionally,
knowingly, and voluntarily as required by Nevada law, which means that the presumi;rtivc validity
of those waivers must stand. Because neither Gary Tharaldson nor TM2I can meet their burden to
show that those waivers were not knowing, voluntary, or intentional, the jury trial waivers must be
enforced by this Court.

The enforcement of the jury waivers leads the Court to next question, which is how to
properly bifurcate the proceedings. A firm trial date is currently set for March 8, 2011. Moving
Defendants submit that the bench trial of the guarantor-related claims should happen before the jury
trial of CVFS claims. There are several reasons for this: judicial economy (since the resolution of
the claims related to the guarantors will resolve Club Vista’s claims by compensating Club Vista for

its damages), simplification of issues (as there are far less legal and factual determinations relative
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to the guarantor claims), and less time and expense for the Defendants who are not directly involved
in the claims related to the guarantors,

In conjunction with this request, SFC and Scoft also ask this Court to extend the deadline for
filing motions in Jimine (currently January 14, 2011), until the issue regarding what claims will be
tried, and when, is resolved. Obviously, it makes little sense to file motions in limine if a bench trial
is to be the first matter heard, and it would be a waste of the parties and this Court’s resources to hear
those motions if, in fact, due to the results of the bench trial they are rendered unnecessary.

| .
ARGUMENT
A. Neither Gary Tharaldson Nor TM2I Can Demonstrate That Their Respective Jury

Trial Waivers Were Not Agreed to Knowingly, Voluntarily, and Intentionally.

As pointed out by SFC and Brad Scott in their earlier Motion to Strike Jury Demand,
“contractual jury trial waivers are presumptively valid unless the challenging party can demonstrate
that the waiver was not entered into knowingly, voluntarily or intentionally.” See Lowe Enterprises
Residential Parmers, L.P. v. Eighth Judicial District Court ex. rel. County of Clark, 118 Nev. 92,
100,40 P.3d 405,410 (2002) (emphasis added). Here, it is undisputed that both Gary Tharaldson and
Tharaldson Motels 1, Inc. (“TM2I”) both signed guaranties with contained, in bold and capitalized
letters, waivers of their respective rights to jury trial, Under Nevada law, the burden is therefore
on Plaintiff to show that the waiver was unknowing, involuntary, or unintentional. As ofthe
filing of this motion, with scarcely two months remaining before trial, Plaintiffs have shown no
evidence that the waiver was anything other than knowing, voluntary, and intentional.

In their opposition fo the original motion to strike the jury demands, Plaintiffs argued that
the guaranties had been procured through fraud, and that that allegation entitled them to a jury trial
on all claims. The case law, however, only stood for the considerably more limited proposition that
ﬂie guarantor Plaintiffs may be entitled to a limited trial on the issue of whether the waiver itself
was induced by fraud. See, e.g., Bank of New York v. Royal Athletic Industries, Ltd,, 224 A.D.2d
380,380 637N.Y.8.2d 478,479 (N.Y.A.D. 2 Dept. 1996). Considering, though, that Plaintiffs have

introduced no evidence that the waiver was induced by fraud, it would be impossible for them to
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obtain a jury trial on this point.
Gary Tharaldson and TM2! will doubtless argue that, because they allege that the guaranties
themselves were induced by fraud, then they must be entitled to a jury trial. This argument

improperly conflates the question posed by the Lowe and Bank of New York cases with the more

case-specific allegations made by Plaintiffs in their complaint. If Plaintiffs’ argument were correct,
then all any party would ever have to do to get out of a jury trial waiver would be to simply allege
some kind of fraud in relation to the contract. This idea that the mere allegation of fraud can always
trump a knowing, voluntary, and intentional jury trial waiver is completely at odds with the Nevada
Supreme Court’s holding in Lowe that such waivers are presumptively valid,

While there may be an issue of fact as to whether there is fraud surrounding the execution
of the Manhattan West guaranties (which Moving Defendants vigorously dispute), there is no issue
that Gary Tharaldson signed those guaranties, or that he agreed to the jury trial waivers knowingly,
voluntarily, and intentionally, as required by the Supreme Court in the Lowe decision. To pwt it
another way, there is zero evidence that either Gary Tharaldson or TM2I were fraudulently
induced into waiving their right to trial by jury. They therefore cannot rebut the presumption that
these jury trial waivers are valid under Nevada law, and are not entitled to a jury trial on that limited
point.

B. This Court Should Bifurcate the Trial of This Matter Into Two Phases, Hearing the
Claims Relating to the Guaranties First,
This Court has the discretion to bifurcate the issues before it, hold a bench trial on the
appropriate issues, and dispose of the remaining legal and equitable issues in the action, so long as
the disposal of those issues is available under Nevada law. See Awada v. Shuffle Master, Inc., 123

Nev. 613, 624, 173 P.3d 707, 714 (2007). The Supreme Court in Awada held that a district court

may properly hold a bench trial on equitable issues, while reserving the legal issues for a jury. See
id. If, under Nevada law, the Court’s decision in the bench trial properly resolves the legal issues
prior to consideration by the jury, that is a valid resolution of those claims under Nevada law. See

id.

Page 7 of 11

12019-001 00614




,LLP

ay

hes Parkw
Fioor

£

Las Ve%as, Nevada 89169
(702) 385-6000

3300 Howard Hu
Seventeen
Fax (702) 385-6001

KEMP, JONES & - JULTHARD

O e -~ N th b W R e

i S A N o T O e o L N N s B T
et T N T T R - T e T = N - - B T’ N O N T S ' RN

Here, the situation is even more clear cut than the one described in Awada: the court has a,
set of claims which the parties have agreed to try without a jury, and a set of claims that are subject
to the jury demand of Plaintiff CVFS. The only remaining question for this Court is the order in
which it should conduct the jury and non-jury trials. Under the Supreme Court’s holding in Awada

It makes the most sense for this Court to hear the guarantor-related claims first for several reasons,
not the least of which is that it provides for greater judicial economy, with no prejudice to any of the
parties.

1, Hearing the Guarantor-Related Claims First in a Bench Trial Would Promote

Judicial Economy, Since If SFC and Brad Scott Prevail on the Guaranty Claims,
Club Vista Will Have No Damages.

Combined with SFC and Scott’s counterclaim for enforcement of Gary Tharaldson’s
guaranty, the claims relating to the guaranties signed by Gary Tharaldson and TM21 are the largest
claims, financially speaking, in this litigation. The Gary Tharaldson guaranty appliesto the entire
$100 million Manhattan West project, and the TM2I Guaranty covers the $24 million contribution
by Defendant Bank of Oklahoma. Comparatively, Plaintiff CVES only has a claim up to the amount
of its participation, which is $400,000 out of the $100 million loan. Clearly, the more significant
issues lie with the claims regarding the guaranties of Gary Tharaldson and TM2I.

What’s more, if the guarantor-related claims resolve in favor of Defendants, the claims of
CVFS will be moot, and trial on those issue will not be necessary. Asa participant in the Manhattan
West Senior Loan, CVFS stands to recoup its entire $400,000 contribution to the Senior Loan if the
personal guaranty of Gary Tharaldson is enforced. Inthat situation, CVFS wouldno longer have any
damages for its claims, and trial on the CVFS.related claims would no longer be necessary. Because
the CVFS trial consists of the jury claims, it would undoubtedly be more time-consuming and
complex, as it involves many more claims then those of the guarantors. The chance that the CVES
trial could be rendered unnecessary by the resuit of the guarantor trial means that the guarantor trial
absolutely should be heard first in order to maximize judicial economy,

2. The Issues Relating to Club Vista Involve More Parties and Have More Complex

Facts, and Therefore the Determination of Those Issues Should Be Postponed

While The Simpler Issues (Which Are Determinative of The Complex Issues) Are
Determined,
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The trial of the claims related to guarantors Gary D. Tharaldson and TM2I should take place
first because the issues contained in that trial are considerably simpler than the issues that will need
to be discussed in the jury trial. The jury trial will focus on Club Vista’s status as a participant in
the Manhattan West loan, which doubles the amount of contract claims in this liti gation and will also
involve the determination of claims arising from the lead lender-participant relationship. Those
claims will involve allegations of negligence, fiduciary duty, and numerous other claims arising from
the participations agreements that were executed by all of the Manhattan West lenders. It will also
involve the litigation of Bank of Oklahoma’s status as the co-lead, and Club Vista’s allegations as
to what that status ultimately means to all of the participants on the loan. All of these claims — all
of them — will come back to Club Vista’s claim of damages for this loan, which only comes to
$400,000, or 0.4% of the Manhattan West Senior Loan.

On the other hand, the guarantors’ issues really boil down to a single question: whether the
unconditional guaranties (which comprise $100,000,000) can be enforced. The guarantors’ claims
are all essentially designed to thwart enforcement of those guaranties. Asthe determination of these
issue does not significantly involve as many Defendants as Club Vista’s claims would {(such as
APCO and Alex Edelstein), or as many legal issues, the Court and the parties would be able to focus
more on the critical, central issues in a more efficient and less costly forum prior to the jury trial.
This, in turn, would streamline the issues to be heard by the jury (or, as noted supra, possibly
eliminate them completely). And this Court should also note that, regardiess of the results of the
bench trial, hearing the guarantor-related claims first will streamline the later proceedings. Even
assuming that the guarantors prevailed and were successful inrescinding their guaranties, that would
remove a significant and contentious portion of the jury trial, significantly reducing the amount of
time that a jury is required to sit for this case.

However this Court sees the other issues, there is no dispute that Gary Tharaldson and TM21
knowingly, voluntarily, and intentionally agreed to waive the right to a jury trial in this case. They
cannot escape that legal presumption. The purpose of such a waiver is to simplify the proceedings,
reduce costs of the Court and parties, and allow this Court to make informed, correct rulings on

complex, legally significant issues in this case. All of those goals will be fulfilled by this Court
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taking the simple step of hearing the guarantor-related issues first. Ifit does not, the purpose of the
waiver, though it will not be completely thwarted, will be significantly undercut by a lengthy, costly
Jury trial which may not have even been necessary in the first place. Accordingly, this Court should
use its discretion to bifurcate the proceedings and hear the guarantor-related issues first in a bench
trial,

C. This Court Should Also Extend the Deadline To File Motions in Limine.

Finally, in view of the fact that these proceedings should be bifurcated between bench and
jury trials, Moving Defendants submit that it would make sense for this Court to extend the deadline
for the filing of the motions in limine to the time immediately before the jury tria! is heard in this
matter. As it stands, this Court’s Case Management Order, on file herein, provides that the deadline
for the filing of motions in limine is January 14. However, in the event that the bench trial portion
of this case is tried first, it makes little sense to hear motions in limine prior to that trial, when there
will be no jury. Additionally, since a possible result of the bench trial would be that CVFS is shown
to have to damages (and thus a jury trial would be unnecessary), the drafting of motions in limine
for the jury portion of the trial would be a waste of time and resources. Accordingly, Moving
Defendants also ask as part of this motion that this Court extend the deadline for filing motions in
limine untii such time as the claims relating to Gary D. Tharaldson and TM2I have been adjudicated
and this Court determines that a trial on the issues relating to CVFS is necessary.

1.
CONCLUSION

Whatever other allegations they may come up with, there can be no dispute that Gary
Tharaldson and TM2] knew what they were doing when they signed the jury trial waivers in this
matter. They cannot be allowed to escape the consequences of that undisputed fact simply by
uttering the word “fraud” in their pleadings. Thetefore, there is a large segment of this case (in fact,
the majority of it) that must be separated from the portion that will be tried in front of a jury.
Because the claims related to the guaranties in this case are so integral that they may even solve the
problems of Plaintiff CVFS’s damages, the only rational result is for the bench trial to take place
first. Accordingly, and for all the foregoing reasons, Moving Defendants respectfully request that
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this Court grant the instant motion in its entirety and bifurcate the trial of this matter into two
separate parts: first, a bench trial of all claims related to the guarantor Plaintiffs Gary Tharaldson and
TM2T; and second, a jury trial of the remaining claims. Finally, Moving Defendants ask this Court
to extending the deadline for filing motion in limine to coincide with the beginning of the jury trial,
whenever this Court deems that that portion of the trial may begin.

DATED this @ day of January, 2011.

Respectfully submitted,

. ARTER ESQ. (#9524)
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkcway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley J. Scott

LEWIS AND ROCA, LLP

r_,.——"
N S, HEINZAY ESQ. (#859)
93 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
as Vegas, Nevada 89169
JOHN D. CLAYMAN, ESQ.
PIPER W. TURNER, ESQ.
Admitted Pro Hac Vice
FREDERIC DORWART, LAWYERS
0Old City Hall
124 Tast Fourth Street
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103
Attorneys for Bank of Okiahoma, N.A.
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ERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Thereby certify that on the day of January, 201 1, the foregoing SCOTT FINANCIAL

CORPORATION, BRADLEY J, SCOTT AND BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.’S MOTION
(I) TO BIFURCATE TRIAL, AND (2) TO EXTEND DEADLINE FOR FILING MOTIONS
IN LIMINE; AND (3) RENEWED MOTION TO STRIKE JURY DEMAND ON ORDER
SHORTENING TIME was served on the following persons by e-mailing to the e-mail addresses

listed as follows:

Martin A. Muckleroy, Esq.

COOKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY &
WOO0G

3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89169
mmuckleroy@cookseylaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS P.C.

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 14th Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

grm, law.com

kdp law.com

Counsel for Defendant APCO Construction
and Asphalt Products Corporation

John D. Clayman, Esq.

Piper Turner, Esq.

FREDERIC DORWART LAWYERS
Old City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, OK 74103
jelayman@fdlaw.com
pturner@fdiaw.com

Counsel for Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.

T

\
\.

K. Layne Morrill, Esq.

Martin A. Aronson, Esq.
Stephanie L, Samuelson, Esq.
Christine R. Taradash, Esq,
MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C.
1 East Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Imorrill@maazlaw.com
maronson@maazlaw.com
ssamuelson@maazlaw.com
ctaradash@maazlaw.com
Co-Counsel for Plaintiffs

Von Heinz, Esq.

LEWIS & ROCA

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
vheinz@lrlaw.com

jvienneau@lrlaw.com

Local counsel for Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.

Kyle Smith, Esq.

SMITH LAW OFFICE

10161 Park Run Dr., Suite 150
Las Vegas, NV 89145
ks@ksmithlaw.com

Counsel for Alex Edelstein

b Lo o>

An employee of Kemp, Jones & Coulthard
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J. RANDALL JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 1927

MARK M, JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 267

MATTHEW 8. CARTER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9524

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Patkway
Seventeenth Floor L
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel. (702) 385-6000

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley J. Scott
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CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada Limited Liability Company;
THARALDSON MOTELS 1, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,

3

es Parkway
T

e
, Nevada 89169
(702) 385-6000

Fax (702) 385-6001
fS

u

s
wh

AL

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J,
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A., a
national bank; GEMSTONE
DEVELQOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation;
DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.
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LasV
A
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KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD
3200 Howard |
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

| STRIKE JURY DEMANP WITHOUT

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.
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This matter having first come before this Court on October 5, 2009, regarding
Defendant/Counterclaimant Scott Financial Corporation’s and Defendant Bradley J. Scott’s Motion
to Strike Jury Demand, the Court having reviewed the pleadings and papers on file herein, and
having heard the arguments of counsel for Plainti{Ts, Martin A, Aronson, Esq., and Mark Albright,
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Esq.; and of counsel for Defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott, J. Randall
Jones, Esq.; Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., Von Heinz, Esq.; and APCO Construction, Gwen Rutar
Mullins, Esq.; and with good cause appearing and there being no just cause for delay,

iT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Scott Financial
Corporation’s and Bradley J. Scoit’s Motion to Strike Jury Demand is DENIED WITHOUT

PREJUDICE,
o Lo
DATED this 7 ‘Gay of 8562, 2009.

Submitted by
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

J. RANDALL JONESTESQ, #1927}
MARK M. JONES, ESQ. (#267)
MATTHEW S. CARTER, ESQ. (#9524)

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Seventeenth Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 39169

Attorneys for Defendants Scott Financial
Corporation and Bradiey J. Scott

Approved as to form and conlent;

MORRILL & ARONSON

MARTIN A, ARGNSON, E5Q.
(admitted pro hac vice)

One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012

and

COOKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY
& WOOG, APC

MAR M LROY, . (#5903
3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 2
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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Location : District Court CiviYCrintinal

REGISTER OF ACTIONS
CASE No. 09A579963
Club Vista Financial Services LLG, Tharaldson Motals [l Inc, et al § Case Type: Business Court
vs& Scott Financial Corp, Bradley Scott, et al § Subtype: Other Business Court
§ " Matters
§ Date Filed: 01/13/2009
8 Location: Department 13
§ Converslon Case Number: A579983
RELATED CASE INFORMATION
Related Cases
A-10-608563-C (Consolidated)
A-10-609288-C (Consolidated)
PARTY INFORMATION
Lead Attorneys

Cross APCOQ Construction

Clalmant

Cross Asphalt Products Corporation
Claimant

Cross Gemstone Development West Ing
Defendant

Cross Scott Financial Corporation
Defendant

Defendant Asphalt Products Corporation

Pefendant Bank Of Oklahoma NA

Defendant Gemetone Development West Inc

Defendant Scott Financial Corp

Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
7024747557(W)

SwoenRuter-Muliine
Retained

Jon Randall Jones
Retained
70238560000WV)

Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
7024747557000

Abran E. Vigi!
Retalned
702-471-7000{\)

Jon Randall Jones
Retained
7023856000(W)
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Defendant Scott, Bradley J

Boing APCO
Business As

DPoing APCO
Business As

Poing APCO Construction

Buslness As

Plaintiff Club Vista Financlal Services LLC

Plaintiff Tharaldson Motsls [l Inc

Plaintiff Tharaldson, Gary D

Page 2 of 3

Jon Randall Jones
Retalned
70238560000W)

Robert L. Rosenthal
Relained
7022571483(W)

Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained
TO2474755T(W)

Gwen Rutar Mullins
Retained

70247475570/

Griffith H. Hayes
Retained

7029493100(W)

John T. Moshler
Retained

602-650-4123(W)

Griffith K. Hayes
Retained

7020493100(W)

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

10/05/2009 | Motion to Dismiss (9:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Denton, Mark R)

10/06/2009, 10/ 22009
Minutes
08/14/2009 9:00 AM
10/05/2009 9:00 AM
10/12/2009 9:00 AM
10/12/2009 10:15 AM
10/12f2009 10:15 AM

Deft APCO Construction's Motion to Dismiss Pitfs' First Amended Complaint

" Mr. Gochnour referred to the First Amended Cornplaint, the allegatloﬁs to ARCQ as to fraud, and the allegation of
paragraph 96, which Is then repeated in the fraud allsgation as to APCO. Arguments by counsel as to Rule 9; that APCO
was not invelved in anything with Scolt or Bank of Oklahoma; no allegations as to APCO being part of a consplracy; and

https://www.clarkcountycourts.us/Anonymous/CaseDetail.aspx?CaseID=6689268&Hearing,.. 1/7/2011
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no fiduclary obligations as to Club Vista and Scott. Mr. Jones stated he wants to be clear on the record that he agrees
with APCO to the extent of this motion. Mr, Moshier stated Mr. Jones' client dig not join in the motien and wlll address his
comments 10 APCOQ. Further arguments as to the 13th claim for relief for declaratory relief, which would include
declaration for ller priority, and another clalm for civil conspiracy fraud. Mr. Moshier stated he would he willing to file a
Second Amended Complaint beefing up the aliegations against APCO. Further arguments. COURT ORDERED, Motion
to Dismiss DENIED but will requite a More Definite Staternant to more specifically address the fraud, noting that if a
Second Amended Complaint were filed, it would supersede this one; and the Court will leave the First Amended
Complaint for the time being with the caveat as to a More Definite Statement as fo Fraud; once filed, APCO can file an
Answer as to same. Hpon Mr. Gochnour's inqulry, COURT ORDERED, PItf to have 15 days (o File the More Definite
Statement from and after Notice of Entry of the Order on the proceedings today, and then APCO may have 20 days from
?ur;?haﬁer st?rvioa to answer or otherwise plead to the More Definite Statement, and that is WITHOUT PREJUDICE to

er motlons.

Partigs Prasent
Retur, Regis { Acti
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GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

ROBERT L. ROSENTHAL, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6476

Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 1400

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 257-1483

Fax: (702) 567-1568

Email: grm@h2law.com
rlr@h2law.com

d/b/a APCO Construction

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada limited liability company;
THARAILDSON MOTELS I1, INC. , a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,
VS,

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J.
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A., a
national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT
WEST, INC., a Nevada corporation;
ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION,
dba APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada
Corporation; DOE INDIVIDUALS 1-100,
ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1- 100,

Defendants.

Attorneys for Defendant APCO CONSTRUCTION
Sformerly ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

AND ALL RELATED CASES AND
MATTERS.

#1735885.v1

Page 1 of 3

Electronically Filed
0417/2011 12:26:05 PM

R

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO.: A579963
DEPT, NO.: XIII
Consclidated With

Case No. A-10-609288-C

APCO CONSTRUCTION’S JOINDER
TO SCOTT FINANCIAL
CORPORATION, BRADLEY J. SCOTT,
AND BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.’S
MOTION (1) TO BIFURCATE TRIAL;
AND (2) TO EXTEND DEADLINES FOR
FILING MOTIONS IN LIMINE; AND (3)
RENEWED MOTION TO STRIKE
JURY DEMAND ON ORDER
SHORTENING TIME

Date of Hearing: January 31, 2011
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.
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APCO CONSTRUCTION’S JOINDER TO SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION,
BRADLEY J. SCOTT, AND BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.’S MOTION (1) TO
BIFURCATE TRIAL; AND (2) TO EXTEND DEADLINES FOR FILING MOTIONS IN
LIMINE; AND (3) RENEWED MOTION TO STRIKE JURY DEMAND ON ORDER
SHORTENING TIME

Date of Hearing: January 31, 2011
Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m,

Defendant, APCO Construction (“APCQO™), by and through its attorneys Howard &
Howard Attorneys PLLC, hereby joins in the arguments of Scott Financial Corporation (“SFC"),
Bradley J. Scott (“Scott”) and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. (“BOK”) in their Motion (1) to
Bifurcate Trial; (2) to Extend Deadlines for Filing Motions in Limine; and (3) Renewed Motion
to Strike Jury Demand on Order Shortening Time. APCO incorporates all arguments as set forth
therein, and respectfully requests this Court to grant the Motion in its entirety and bifurcate the
trial of this matter into two separate parts, first, a bench trial of all claims related to the guarantor
Plaintiffs Gary Tharaldson and Tharaldson Motels II, Inc., and second, a jury trial of any claims
that may remain after the Court’s adjudication of the pending motions for summary judgment.
APCQ further joins in SFC, Scott, and BOK's request that this Court extend the deadline for
filing any motions in limine to a time which coincides with the beginning of a jury trial portion
of this case.

DATED this 17™ day of January 2011,

/sf Gwen Rutar Mullins

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 3146

Robert L. Rosenthal

Nevada Bar No. 6476

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Wells Fargo Tower, Ste. 1400

Las Vegas, NV 89169

Attorneys for Defendant APCO Construction

#1735885.v1

Page 2 of 3
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I do hereby certify that on the 17® day of Januwary 2011, Iserved a copy of the foregoing
APCO CONSTRUCTION'S JOINDER TO SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION,
BRADLEY J. SCOTT, AND BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A’S MOTION (1) TO
BIFURCATE TRIAL; AND (2) TO EXTEND DEADLINES FOR FILING MOTIONS IN
LIMINE; AND (3) RENEWED MOTION TO STRIKE JURY DEMAND ON ORDER
SHORTENING TIME by e-serving a copy of on all counsel of record as well as e-mailing a

copy as agreed among the parties and their respective counsel.

{s/ Kellie Piet
An employee of Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC

#1735885.v1
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Electronically Filed
01/24/2011 04.25:10 PM

A b i

OPPS
CLERK OF THE COURT

GRIFFITH H. HAYES, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 7374

MARTIN A. MUCKLEROQY, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009634

COOKSEY, TOQLEN, GAGE, DUFFY & WOOG
A Professional Corporation

3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 34%-3100

MORRILL & ARONSON,P.L.C.
K.LAYNE MORRILL, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 004591

MARTIN A. ARONSON, ESQ.
Arizooa Bar No. 009005

JOHN T. MOSHIER, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No, 007460

One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Telephone: (602) 263-83993
Attorneys For Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, Case No. A579963
L.L.C,, a Nevada limited liability company; Department No. 13
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC., a Consolidated With
North Dakota corporation; and GARY D. Case No. A-10-609288-C
THARALDSON,
Plaintiffs, PLAINTIFFS’ OPPOSITION TO
FIDUCIARY DEFENDANTS’ MOTION
V. TO BIFURCATE TRIAL AND STRIKE
JURY DEMAND

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J. AND
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,N.A,, a
national bank; GEMSTONE PLAINTIFFS' COUNTER-MOTION

DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada UNDER RULE 39(c) FOR ADVISORY
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS JURY ON ALL CLAIMS NOT
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO TRIABLE OF RIGHT BY JURY

CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation;
DOE INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,
Date: January 31, 2011

Defendanis. Time: 9:00 a.m.

AND RELATED COUNTERCLAIMS
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CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, )
L.L.C., a Nevada limited liabili company,
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC.,,

North Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
THARAILDSON,

Plaintiffs,
V.

ALEXANDER EDELSTEIN, an
individual,

Defendant.

Club Vista Financial Services, L.L.C., Tharaldson Motels I1, Inc. and Gary D, Tharaldson
(collectively referred to herein as “Plaintiffs”) hereby respectfully submit this Memorandum of
Points and Authorities in opposition to Defendants’ Motion to Bifurcate Trial and Strike Jury
Demand (the “Motion™). Plaintiffs also make their Counter-Motion Under Rule 35(c) for
Advisory Jury on all Claims Not Triable of Right by Jury. As part of this Opposition and
Counter-Motion, Plaintiffs adopt and incorporate by reference the undisputed facts and legal
authorities Plaintiffs have submitted to this Court in their other motions and briefs. As shown
in this Opposition, the Motion should be denied..

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
L INTRODUCTION.

Fiduciary Defendants’ requests to strike the jury demands of Mr. Tharaldson and TM2I
and to bifurcate the trial were bad ideas when this Court rejected them the first time, on October
3, 2009. Today, less than 60 days before trial and after fifteen months of intensive discovery,
depositions, and motion practice, both ideas are absurd.

Plaintiffs contend that the entire Senior Loan Transaction, including the Tharaldson

Personal Guaranty, the TM2I Guaranty, the CVFS $46 million Subordination, and the CVFS

Participant Interest purchase, were all induced by fraud, constructive fraud, fiduciary abuse,
negligent mistepresentation, and other invalidating causes (all of which are hereinafter referred
to as the “Fraudulent Inducement Claims™). Fiduciary Defendants admit that CVFS has not

waived jury trial on the Frandulent Inducement Claims concerning its $46 million Subordination

D
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or its Participant Interest purchase. As to the Tharaldson Guaranty and the TM2I Guaranty, even
if the jury trial waivers are valid (and there are genuine issues of material fact on invalidity under
IlNevada law and legal issues under North Dakota law), such a waiver cannot eliminate a jury trial
on the Fraudulent Inducement Claims relating to the Tharaldson Guaranty and the TM2I
Guaranty. And itis beyond dispute that IMr. Tharaldson was the sole decision maker for all three

Plaintiffs and that he made the decision to go forward with the Senior Loan Transaction for all
three Plaintiffs at the same time and based upon all the same facts and circumstances, including
! the misrepresentations and omissions of Fiduciary Defendants,

Fiduciary Defendants’ arguments on jury trial waiver are wrong, First, even if the jury
trial waivers in the two guaranties are otherwise valid, Mr. Tharaldson and TM2I still have a
constitutional right to a jury trial on their Fraudulent Inducement Claims relating to the
guaranties. Second, to avoid a jury trial waiver in a document that is voidable by fraudulent
inducement or other cause, it is not necessary to prove that the jury waiver itself was specifically
induced by fraud. Third, there is a genuine issue of material fact on the validity of the jury waiver
in the two guaranties under Nevada law. Finally, if (as Fiduciary Defendants contend) North
Dakota law applies to the TM2I Guaranty, then the waiver of jury trial in that document is legally
[linvalid.
i As to bifurcation, the Motion is a transparent attempt to achieve through procedural

posturing what Fiduciary Defendants have been denied on their substantive motions. Itis an end
run around the Court’s succinctly stated ruling that it will not focus on certain documents that are
part of the Senior Loan Transaction in isolation, but rather will look to “the entire Senior Loan
| Transaction as a whole and the economic realities of the transaction.” [11/23/10 Decision, Ex.
11, 0t3:0-14] |

Fiduciary Defendants are asking this Court to separate the inseparable. The decision

maker for all the Plaintiffs was Gary Tharaldson. His decision on behalf of all Plaintiffs to
proceed with the Senior Loan Transaction was based upon all the facts and circumstances,
including all of Fiduciary Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions. Any trial of the

Fraudulent Inducement claims relative to the two guaranties will require all the same proofas will

3-
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trial of the Fraudulent Inducement Claims relative to CVFS’s $46 million Subordination and
Participant Interest purchase claims.

Fiduciary Defendants’ arguments on bifurcatioﬁ do not address the specific requirements
of Rule 42(b). None of those requirements is met here. No prejudice to Fiduciary Defendants
would be “avoided” by bifurcation; bifurcation will not further the interests of “convenience;”
and it runs completely counter to the interests of “expedition” and “economy.” Finally, because
CVFS’s Fraudulent Inducement Claims as to the $46 million Subordination and its Participant
Interest purchase are based on the same facts as the similar claims concerning the two guaranties,
8 first trial to the court on the “guarantor related claims” would violate Plaintiffs’ (including
CVFS’s) constitutional right to jury trial and is therefore precluded by Rule 42(b).

I, notwithstanding that the factors of Rule 42(b) do not support bifurcation, the Court
were inclined to bifurcate, then the only logical course would be to try first the Fraudulent

Inducement Claims, as to which a jury trial is required. If those claims are resolved in Plaintiffs’

|

favor, as a practical matter, the case may be over. If those claims are resolved against Plaintiffs,
it might be a relatively short trial on the breach of contract, breach of fiduciary duty, and other
cleims. Because the facts relating to the Fraudulent Inducement Claims relative to the two

guaranties are inextricably intertwined with the facts relating to the Fraudulent Inducement

i Claims with respect to the CVFS Subordination and Participant Interest purchase, those claims

would have to be included in the first trial also.
The Court should deny the Motion in its entirety as completely unjustified under Rule

42(b).!

O. THE COURT SHOULD DENY FIDUCIARY DEFENDANTS’ MOTION TO
STRIKE THE JURY DEMANDS OF THARALDSON AND TM2l.

Even if the jury trial waivers in the two guaranties were otherwise valid, they do not

negate a jury trial on any issue other than alleged liability on the guarantee: issues of fraudulent

' Even if there were a basis under Rule 42(b) for a separate trial on the Guarantor Claims, if the Court
did order bifurcation, it should also grant Plaintiffs Motion under Rule 39(c) for an advisory jury. See
Part V beiow. -

4
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inducement, failure of condition precedent to effectiveness, breach of fiduciary duty, are all
claims beyond the scope of the jury trial waivers.

Plaintiffs do not disagree that “generally” under Nevada law waivers of jury trial in
commercial guaranties are enforceable if they were entered into knowingly, intentionally, and
voluntarily, Lowe Ent. Residential Partners LP v. Eighth Judicial District Court ex rel. County
of Clark, 118 Nev. 92, 100, 40 P.3d 405, 410 (2002). Nor do Plaintiffs assert that under Nevada

law Fiduciary Defendants have the burden of proving that a jury trial waiver contained in a

guaranty was not entered into knowingly, intentionally, and voluntarily. 74 But Plaintiffs
strenuously disagree with Fiduciary Defendants’ unsupported assertion that the evidence obtained
through discovery in this case does not create a genunine issue of material fact on whether both
guaranties (including their jury trial waivers) were improperly induced. Abundant evidence
requires a jury trial on those issues.

Finally, Defendants contend that North Dakota law applies to the TM2] Guaranty and the
North Dakota Supreme Court has not upheld contractual waivers of jury trial. In fact, relevant
North Dakota case law indicates the North Dakota Supreme Court would invalidate a lender’s

attempt to secure a pre-default jury trial waiver.

A. Even if Otherwise Valid, the Jury Trial Waivers do not Extend to Guarantors’
Eraudulent Inducement Claims.

A waiver of jury trial contained in a guaranty does not apply to defenses to formation of

the guaranty, such as fraud in the inducement, fiduciary abuse, or failure of conditions precedent.
In Bank of N.Y. v. Royal Athletic Ind,, Ltd., 637 N.Y.S.2d 478, 479 (App.Div. 1996), cited by
Fiduciary Defendants in support of their separate trial argument, the court held that,
notwithstanding a jury trial waiver in a guaranty, the guarantor is “entitled to a jury trial” on a
defense that “challenges the validity” of the guaranfy. Many other cases have reached the same
result. Eg, Howard v. Bank South, N.A., 433 SE.2d 625, 627-28 (Ga.App. 1993);* Chase

* In Lowe, the Nevada Supreme Court declined to follow the Georgia Supreme Court’s decision in Bank
South, NA v. Howard, 444 SE.2d 799, 800 (Ga. 1994) which affirmed the Georgia Court of Appeals in
Howard but more broadly held that pre-litigation Jury trial waivers are never enforceable under Georgia

law. Lowe declined to follow Bank South’s broader rule, 40 P.3d at 409-410, but Lowe did not reach
-5-
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Commercial Corp. v. Owen, 588 N.E.2d 705, 708 (Mass.App. 1992); C & C Wholesale, Inc. v.
Fusco Management Corp.; 564 So.2d 1259, 1261 (Fla.App. 1990); Bank of New York v. Cheng
Yu Corp., 67 A.D.2d 961, 413 N.Y.8.2d 471, 472 (App.Div. 1979).

Because of the importance of the constitutional right to jury trial courts apply a “rule of
strict construction [to] limit the scope of operation of a jury waiver agreement to those
controversies directly related to and arising out of the terms and conditions” of the document
containing the jury waiver provisions. North Charleston Joint Venture v. Kitchens of Island
Fudge Shoppe, Inc., 416 8.E.2d 637, 638 (S.C. 1992); Mall, Inc. v. Robbins, 412 So0.2d 1198,
1200 (Ala. 1982).

B. If the Guaranties Were Fraudulently Induced, the Jury Trial Waivers Are Invalid.

In Nevada, an agreement induced by fraud or misrepresentation never came into being and
there is no contract to enforce. 4wada v. Shuffle Master, Inc., 123 Nev. 613, 623, 173 P.3d 707,
713 (2007); Havas v. Bernhard, 85 Nev. 627, 631, 461 P.2d 857, 859-60 (1969). The facts that
vitiate the guaranty must also vitiate the waiver of jury trial term of the guaranty.

State courts have consistently held that a claim for fraud in the inducement of a contract
as a whole invalidates the jury trial waiver along with the rest of the contract, E.g., Bankof N.Y,
v. Royal Athletic Ind, Ltd., 637 N.Y.8.2d 478, 479 (AppDiv. 1996); Cupps v. South Trust Bank,
782 80.2d 772, 776-77 (Ala. 2000); ¢f. C & C Wholesale, Inc. v. Fusco Management Corp., 564
So.2d 1259, 1261 (Fla.App. 1990) (jury trial waiver enforced because “there are no allegations
that the lease is not legally enforceable as a whole™). Fiduciary Defendants assert that the Bank

af N.Y, case requires a guarantor to show that “the waiver itself was induced by fraud.” Motion

at 6:25-26. That assertion is clearly false. The defense asserted in Bank of N.Y. went to the
“validity of the guaranty” not to the “validity of the jury trial waiver,” Only federal courts,

applying a different rule of federal common law, have held that a party must prove fraud specific

the Georgia Court of Appeals’ more narrow holding in Howard that in the presence of fraud in the
inducement of an agreement containing a jury trial waiver, that fraud vitiates the waiver just as it vitiates

the balance of the agreement.
-6~
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to the jury trial waiver provision itself in order to avoid its impact.* As a State Court nof bound
by any federal common law of jury waiver, this Court should hold that if a guaranty as a whole
is induced by fraud or other invalidating cause, the jury trial waiver is also invalidated.
Fiduciary Defendants assert that there is “zero evidence that either Gary Tharaldson or
TM2I were fraudulently induced into waiving their right to trial by jury.” Motion at 7:10-17.
As shown above, that is not the applicable legal standard. The Guarantor is entitled to a jury trial
on the Fraudulent Inducement Claims relative to the two guarantees.
Even if specific fraud with respect to the jury waiver provision had to be proved, it has

been proved here. The Tharaldson Guaranty is a contract between My, Tharaldson and SFC; and

the TM2I Guaranty is a contract negotiated and prepared by SFC and provided by SFC to Mr.
Tharaldson for signature and sent by SFC to BOX after it was signed. [Brad Scott Depo.,Ex. 2,
Vol. II, at 382:11 to 384:2; Vol, ITI, at 550:8 to 552:4; Tim James Depo, Ex. 3, Vol. TI, at 44:1
to 45:7; Vol. 1, at 80:13 to 82:12, 84:13 to 87:7, 87:20 to 88:8, 196:6 10 198:2; Vol IV, at 49:7
to 51:17.] The Court has ruled that if Plaintiffs prove at trial that Mr. Tharaldson (individually
and as a representative of TM2I) had a “right to expect trust and confidence in the integrity and
fidelity of [SFC],” then a fiduciary relationship exists. {11/23/10 Decision, Ex. 1,at4:2-11.] In
that event, both guaranties are contracts between a fiduciary and the fiduciary’s principal.

Under those circumstances, SFC had a duty not to enter into either contract until it had

first assured itself that Mr. Tharaldson’s assent to those contracts was “with full understanding

of his legal rights and of all relevant facts [SFC] knows or should know.” Restatement (Second)

Contracts § 173. Mr. Scott has admitted that he took no steps to assure that Mr. Tharaldson’s
assent to these documents was with “full understanding of his legal rights” with respect to jury
trial waiver (or any of the other unfair provisions of the two guaranties). [Brad Scott Depo., Ex.
2, Vol. IIL, at 577:4 to 590:1.] Nor did he advise Mr, Tharaldson that he should consult with
independent legal counsel to review those important matters. {Id, Vol. ITT, at 590:2 to 598:19.]

* E.g., Allynv. Western United Life Assur. Co., 347 F.Supp2d 1246, 1251, 1254-55 (M.D. Fla. 2004).

-7-
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BOK, Co-Lead in the transaction in which it required the TM2I Guaranty, had no conversations
at all with Mr. Tharaldson about any aspect of the TM2I Guaranty. [Tim James Depo., Ex. 3,
Vol. II, at 50:4 to 52:24.]

Under any circumstances, Plaintiffs’ fraud in the inducement claims are sufficient to
invalidate both guaranties, including their respective jury trial waivers.

b C. The Tharaldson. Personal Guaranty Waiver of Jury Trial Was not Knowing,
Intentional, and Voluntary.

For the Tharaldson Personal Guaranty jury trial waiver to be valid under Nevada Law, Mr.
lTharaldson needs to prove either that the jury trial waiver was not “intentional,” or that it was

not “voluntary,” or that it was not “knowing,” Contrary to the assertions of Fiduciary

Defendants, a genuine issue of fact preclude any determination that as a matter of law Mr.
Tharaldson and TM2I voluntarily, knowingly and intentionally waived their rights to a jury trial.

It is undisputed that Mr. Tharaldson was not provided advance copies of any drafis of any
of the Senior Loan Documents, including any guarantees, during the two week or so drafting
process. [B. Scott Depo., Ex. 2, Vol. V, at 969:1-17; P, Heaberlin Depo.,Ex. 4,at61:6-10, 62:23-
63:5, 64:13-65:5; Gary Tharaldson Declaration, Ex. 3, 9 3]. It is also undisputed that Mr.
Tharaldson received the Senior Loan Documents on Wednesday, January 30, 2008, with each
signature page “flagged by rose color post it” and with instructions from SFC to deliver them to
Gemstone as soon as possible so they could be returned that same day. [Gary Tharaldson Depo,

Ex. 6, Vol. I, 92:12-20 (“You know what I did was I signed the signature pages that were put in
front ofme.”); Vol. V (9/8/10), at1034:13-21 (“You know we got the documents about two hours
before the were to be delivered to Alex Edelstein. There was no time to review the documents.
The idea was that Brad Scott had fully reviewed the documents and he was sending it to me for
lmy signatures.”); B. Scott Email dated 1/29/08, Ex. 7, at CVFS-RK001994 and B. Scott email
dated 1/30/08, Ex. 8, at SCOTT-144839.] Further, by the time Mr. Tharaldson saw the
documents, SFC’s time deadline was imminent. [G. Tharaldson Depo., Ex. 6, Vol. V, at 1290-
1291 (*It had already been reviewed by Scott Financial and the attorneys. When I got it, I was

-8-
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asked to sign itand get it over to Alex within a short period of time. So I didn’t review it, no.”).]

Mr. Tharaldson also testified that he believed that Scott, Scott F inancial and the Maslon
law firm had reviewed the docuinents he was asked to sign and they were protecting his interests
in doing so. [/d., Vol. 111, at 233:22-234:5, 237:7-13.] According to Mr. Tharaldson, “Brad, you

know, he put in emails and told Ryan that Maslon was looking out for our best interests and that

we didn’t have to go get an outside attomey.” [Id,, at240:12-16; see, also, 241:24-25 (“1 thought
we had our own lawyer look at them.”)] Mr. Tharaldson further explained,
My comgiaintl guess is that Brad Scott and Scott Financial and Maslon when they

reviewed this for me they didn’t. Didn’t point it out and not only thatI didn’t have
a chance to read it, we were instructed to get them over to Alex within a short time

after I received them. So I signed them with knowing the fact that they’s already

been review by the attorneys ﬁ:&t Brad had returned, reviewed them for us, and so

one of our issues is the one action rule. If I'd have known the One Action Rule

Ialay, Maslon’s attorneys would have explained it to me they’d have never, they’s
vise me not to, not to, to sign it.

[Zd., Vol. IV, at 19:23-20:13.] In short, they should have advised him on the guarantees, but did
not. [Id., at 22:18-23:5.]

The evidence also supports TM2I’s contention that TM2I did not knowingly, intentionally
or voluntarily waive its right to a jury trial. There is no corporate resolution establishing that
‘TM2I authorized Mr. Tharaldson to execute the TM2I Guaranty in the first place. Moreover, Mr.
Tharaldson testified he did not agree to have TM2I gnarantee the BOK portion of the Senior
Loan, he does not recall signing the TM2I Guaranty, and he did not know about it until early
2009. [Id., Vol. II, at 487:14-488:4, 489:4-7.] Mr. Tharaldson also testified he did not have
personal knowledge of the TM2I Guaranty, but that if he did sign it, his signature was obtained
“fraudulently” and “through deception” since it was never discussed and was not supposed to be
part of the agreement.” [Jd., Vol. V (9/9/10), at 1203:11-1, 1204:8-10, 19-24.}

Mez. Scott did not communicate to Mr. Tharaldson that the two guaranties contained Jjury
trial waivers or discuss the scope of the waivers or their possible implications, [B. Scott Depo.,

Ex. 2, Vol. I, at 577:4 to 590:1.] As a result of these circumstances, Mr. Tharaldson did not
-0
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have actual knowledge that the two guaranties contained waivers of jury trial. [Gary Tharaldson
Declaration, Ex. 5, §4.] Although he signed the two guaranties at Mr. Scott’s direction, being
unaware of the jury trial provision he did not knowingly and intentionally waive jury trial rights
{or any other rights. [/d, 5.]

Whether the jury trial waivers were made knowingly, intentionally, and voluntarily, is a
material issue in this case. And the evidence summarized above creates a genuine question of
fact on that material issue. On these facts, a jury could find as a matter of fact that the jury trial
waivers in both guaranties were not knowing, intentional and voluntary.

D. The TM21 Waiver of Jury Trial is Unenforceable Under North Dakota Law.

Fiduciary Defendants contend that the TM2I Guaranty is governed by North Dakota Law.
Opposition by BOK, SFC, and Scott filed January 6, 2011 to Plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment on Choice of Law, at 8-10. No North Dakota case has validated a

contractual waiver of jury trial in bank financing documents. Cases ofthe North Dakota Supreme
Court have, however, made clear that the right of jury trial in civil cases is a “basic and
fundamental part of our system of jurisprudence;” and other cases have held that important
statutory righis of debtors cannot be contractually waived in advance of default on a loan. Thus,
presented with this question, the North Dakota Supreme Court would conclude that the jury
waiver in the TM2I Guaranty is invalid as a matter of law.

The North Dakota Coenstitution provides that “the right of trial by jury shall be secured to
all, and remain inviolate. . . . All verdicts must be unanimous.” N.D. Const. Art. 1 § 13. The
North Dakota Supreme Court has repeatedly held that “the right to trial by jury in actions at law
is a basic and fundamental part of our system of jurisprudence.” C.LT. Corp. v. Hetland, 143

* Plaintiffs have argued that, because no effective and uniform choice of law agreement was reached
for the overall, integrated Senior Loan Transaction, Nevada Law should apply to all contract claims,
including those relating to the TM2I Guaranty, as well as o all tort claims. Plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment on Choice of Law filed December 14, 2010, at 21-26. Plaintiffs raise the invalidity
of the TM2I Guaranty jury trial waiver under North Dakota law, without waiving any of their arpuments

in the Choice of Law Motion.
-10-
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N.W.2d 94, 100 (N.D. 1966); Cookv. Hansen, 499 N.W.2d 94, 97 {1993). Further, the Court has
noted that “This State has been more liberal than most in construing the guarantee of jury trial,
indicating the high regard with which we value the right to a jury trial.” E.g,, Dobervich v.
Central Cass Pub. Sch. Dist. No. 17, 283 N.W.2d 187, 190 (N.D. 1979); Cook v. Hansen, 499

N.W.2d at 97.
Its “high regard [for] the right to a jury trial” led the North Dakota Supreme Court to hold

1

2
3
4
5
6
7 |ithat, before a debtor can be deprived of a jury trial on the ground that the action is “equitable™
g [0 nature, the lender must “clearly and unambiguously” show that “he is secking an equitable
9 |remedy and that he is clearly entitled to it if he proves the facts as alleged in his complaint.”
General Elec. Credit Corp. v. Richman, 338 N.W.2d 814, 818 (N.D. 1983). In Richman the

Court held that the complaint sought money damages on a promissory note and recovery of

10]l
11

12
13 (laccorded a jury trial,

The same “high regard” for a right to civil jury trial articulated by the North Dakota

specific property, not foreclosure (an equitable proceeding), and therefore the defendant must be

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

Supreme Court has led other courts to hold that pre-litigation contractual jury trial waivers are
entirely unenforceable. Grafton Partners L.P. v. Superior Court, 116 P.3d 479, 483-84 (Cal.
2005) (California’s “unwavering commitment” to the right to jury trial cited as a reason for
invalidating all pre-litigation, contractual jury trial waivers); Bank South, NA v. Howard, 444
S.E.2d 799, 800-801 (Ga. 1994).

When it comes to overreaching by lenders attempting to secure advance contractnal
waivers of a debtor’s rights, the North Dakota Supreme Court has resolutely invalidated pre-
default waivers. In First Interstate Bank of New Rockfordv. Anderson, 452 N.W.2d 90,92 (N.D,
1990), the Court reaffirmed its earlier holdings that there can be no pre-default waiver by a

23
24
25
26
27
28

mortgagor of his statutory right of redemption which right the Court “zealously guards.”
Similarly, the Court has held that & debtor’s rights under the anti-deficiency statute cannot be

-11-
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waived prior to default. Borsheim v. Owan, 467 N.W.2d 95 » 98 (N.D. 1991); Brunsoman v.
Scarlert, 465 N.W.2d 162, 167 (N.D. 1991).

A right to a jury trial entailing a unanimous verdict held to be “fundamental and sacred”
under the North Dakota Constitution, is at least as important as whether the statutory redemption
period is one year or six months; and at least as important as a guarantor’s rights under the anti-

deficiency statutes. Accordingly, if North Dakota Law applies to the TM21 Guaranty, this Court

| should hold that the jury trial waiver is unconstitutional and invalid,

E Conclusion on Jury Demand.

Even if the jury trial waivers are valid, Mr. Tharaldson and TM2I are still entitledto a jury
Lrial on their Fraudulent Inducement Claims related to the guaranties. Plaintiffs’ Fraudulent
Inducement Claims are sufficient to invalidate the Jjury trial waivers that are part of those
documents. There is a genuine issue of material fact on the validity under Nevada Law of the
jury waiver in the two guaranties. Finally, the TM2I jury trial waiver is invalid and
unenforceabie under North Dakota law.

Im. THE PROPOSED BIFURCATION NEEDLESSLY INCREASES COSTS,

IMPOSES UNDUE BURDENS ON THE COURT, PARTIES, AND WITNESSES;
AND CONTRAVENES THE POLICIES REFLECTED IN RULE 42(b).

A. The Rule 42(b) Standards.
The starting point for a proper analysis of the relief Fiduciary Defendants have requested

must be Rule 42(b) itself, which Fiduciary Defendants do not bother to quote in full, That Rule

provides:

The court, in firtherance of convenience or to ayoid prejudice, or when separate

trials will be conducive to edition and economy, may order a separate trial of
any claim, cross-claim, counterclaim, or third-party claim, or of any separate issue
or of any number of claims, cross-claims, counterclaims, third-party claims, or

¢ P :
1ssues, ghways preserving inviolate the right of trial by jury. (Emphasis added.)

Learned commentators have noted that “It is the interest of efficient Jjudicial administration that

" |is to be controlling under the rule, rather than the wishes of the parties.” 9A Wright & Miller,
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Fed. Prac. & Proc. Civ. § 2388; E.g,, Griffinv. City of Opa-Locka, 261 F.3d 1295, 1301 (11* Cir.
2001) cert den. 535 U.S. 1033, 1034 (2002).

Fiduciary Defendants have made clear, in a series of motions, their “wishes” in this
litigation. They wish to slice and dice the individual components of the complex and integrated
Senior Loan Transaction, including Fiduciary Defendants’ hopelessly conflicting fiduciary duties,
and argue that by isolating the guaranties the Court is “simply looking at arms-length commercial

guaranties without any ‘right to expect’ more than what such a posture would entail.” Of course,

this Court has already rejected this argument by holding that “determining whether or not that is
s0 will require a trial.” [11-23-10 Decision, Ex. 1, at 3-4.] As it has done previously, the Court
should reject Fiduciary Defendants’ most recent attempt to escape the collective impacts of the
complex Senjor Loan Transaction they engineered and executed in breach of contractual and
fiduciary duties.

Under Rule 42(b) “The piecemeal trial of separate issues in a single suit is not to be the
usual course.” Hangarter v. Paul Revere Life Ins. Co., 236 F.Supp. 1069, 1095 (N.D. Cal. 2002)
(facts relating to bad faith claim “inextricably linked” to punitive damages facts precluded
bifurcation). Rather, bifurcation is appropriate only if the movant “demonstrates that a

bifurcated trial is clearly necessary to lessen costs and expedite the litigation.” Verner v.
Nevada Power Co., 101 Nev. 551, 554, 706 P.2d 147, 150 (1985) (no bifurcation because facts
relating to liability for accident “inexiricably interrelated” with facts supporting damages).
Fiduciary Defendants fail to demonstrate that bifurcation is “clearly necessary” to lessen
costs and expedite the litigation of the entire case. Theirill-conceived proposal inevitably entails
needless duplication of effort and cost, and violates every one of the factors listed in Rule 42(b).

B. The Bifurcation Requested by Fiduciary Defendants Is Il-Defined and
Unworkable.

Fiduciary Defendants request that the “guarantor related claims” be separated from the rest
of the case and tried first to the court; with everything else to be tried to a jury in a second trial,

Motion at 5:24-25; 8:5. Fiduciary Defendants, however, donot clearly and unambiguously define
213-
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
13
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

the “guarantor related claims,” further confirming that Fiduciary Defendants” “wishes,” not the
interests of judicial administration, are driving this Motion.

Are Fiduciary Defendants arguing that only the poz-j ary “guarantor related claims™ should
be tried separately and first? Or are they arguing that all “guarantor related claims” — even those

on which a jury trial is required — should be tried separately and first? The latter, of course,

makes no sense, because two jury trials would still be required. The former makes no sense
because the jury “guarantor related claims” by definition have commen factual issues with the
non-jury “guarantor related claims.”

Although Fiduciary Defendanis’ language in the body of the Motion is less than clear on
the definition of “guarantor related claims,” their statement of the motion itself clearly suggests
that the proposed “first trial*” would include all “claims related to the guarantor Plaintiffs,” Gary
Tharaldson and TM2I; and the second trial would be for all “claims related to CVES. Motion at
1:26-28. So Plaintiffs proceed on the understanding that the proposed “first trial” would include
all claims and defenses asserted in the litigation by or against Mr. Tharaldson and all claims and
defenses asserted in the litigation by or against TM21 (collectively, the “Guarantor Claims™).

C. The Fidyciary Defendants’ Proposed Bifurcation Does Not Meet Rule 42(p)
Standards.

The separate trials Fiduciary Defendants request would not further the interests of efficient
judicial administration as reflected in the language of Rule 42(b). None of the three tests for
separate trials reflected in that Rule is satisfied in this case. Moreover, the bifurcation proposed
by Fiduciary Defendants would not preserve “inviolate™ Plaintiffs’ right to jury trial. So the
Court should exercise its discretion by denying the Motion for bifurcation.

1. The Proposed Bifurcation is not Required to “Avoid Prejudice:” It Will Create
Prejudice,

Of the Rule 42(b) factors, the avoidance of prejudice is the most compelling justification

for bifurcation. Cox v. E.I, duPont de Nemours and Co., 39 F.R.D. 56, 58 (D.S.C. 1965). So

-14-
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lhow would F iduciary Defendants be prejudiced by a single trial of all of the claims and

counterclaims in this case? Fiduciary Defendants do not even attempt to make a case that they

would be prejudiced by a failure to bifurcate. Fiduciary Defendants fail even to cite any cases

identifying the types of “prejudice™ that have been accepted, or rejected, by courts under Rule
ELfLZ(b).s So Fiduciary Defendants concede that bifurcation is not required to avoid prejudice to

them.
Where a proposed bifurcation would create prejudice to any party, granting a separate trial

is an abuse of discretion. Angelo v. Armstrong World Industries, Inc., 11 5.3d 957, 964 (10" Cir.

1993) (“regardless of efficiency and separability, however, bifurcation is an abuse of discretion
if it is unfair or prejudicial to a party.”) Guedry v. Marino, 164 FR.D. 181, 186 (Ed.La. 1995)
(“even if bifurcation might somehow promote judicial economy, courts should not order separate
trials when bifurcation would result in unnecessary delay, additional expense, or some other form
of prejudice.”)

The prejudice to Plaintiffs from Fiduciary Defendants’ proposed bifurcation is obvious
and far reaching, First, as described below (See Part III.C.4), the proposed bifurcation would
unconstitutionally impair the Plaintiffs’ right to jury trial. Beyond that, however, the same
decision maker, under the same facts and circurnstances, including Fiduciary Defendants’
"mjsrepresentations and omissions, simultaneously decided to agree to all aspects of the Senior
Loan Transaction including two guaranties, a $46 million Subordination, and the purchase of a
IParticipant Interest. So the facts of both sets of claims are “inextricably intertwined” requiring

the same proof at both proposed trials, clearly a prejudicial waste of resources.

* Cases in which courts have rejected bifurcation requests over assertions of prejudice are legion. £.g.,
Tuttle v. Sears, Roebuck and Co., 2009 WL 2916864 *2-3 (N.D. Ohio) (refusal to order separate trial
on punitive damages), T¥i-R systems, Lid, Le. Friedman & Son, Inc., 94 FR.D. 726, 728-29 (D.Colo.
1982) (refusal to order separate trials due to “spill over effect” of testimony against one defendant on
other defendants). Guedry v. Marine, 164 F.R.D. 181, 185-86 (E.D.La. 1995) (refusal to order separate
trials where the claims of some plaintiffs against the only defendant differed from those of other

plaintiffs).

-15-
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2. The Proposed Bifurcation Will Not “Further Convenience.”

The “convenience” factor in Rule 42(b) as distinct from the “expedition” and “economy™
factors discussed below, goes to logistical issues of “parties” and non-party “witnesses” in
*cormection with the litigation. State of Montana v. District Court, 467 P.2d 145, 147 (Mont.
u 1970). The Parties reside in Nevada, North Dakota, and Oklahoma. The fact witnesses reside
in California, Colorado, North Dakota, Oklahoma, Texas, Nevada, and perhaps others. The

| expert witnesses reside in Arizona, Texas, Montana, and Nevada. It is hardly “convenient” for

all these out of state fact witnesses and expert witnesses to testify at two trials in Las Vegas rather
than one. Indeed, counsel for the parties reside in Oklahoma, Arizona, and Nevada. It is much

more “convenient™ for out of state witnesses and counsel to participate in one trial of all claims

in Las Vegas rather than two.

3. The Proposed Bifurcation is not “Conducive to Expedition and Economy.”

Fiduciaty Defendants have not demonstrated, and cannot demonstrate, that the proposed

bifurcation will result in a quicker or less expensive resolution of all of the claims in this
litigation.

The “expedition™ factor in Rule 42(b) goes to the time that will elapse in the complete
resolution of an entire case. In the abstract, it is hard to see how two trials can, in combination,
be more “expeditious” than one. In a specific case, in assessing whether two trials could more
expeditiously resolve an entire case, three considerations arise. First, what is the probability that
the first trial may resolve the entire case, and therefore eliminate the second trial? Second, how
long will the first trial take, compared with the second trial? And third, what is the state of the
court’s trial calendar? All three considerations cut against the Fiduciary Defendants® proposed

bifurcation.
i
/1
i/

i
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Where a single defense, such as laches, statute of limitations, or release would be case
dispoéiﬁve and can be tried in a relatively short time period, bifurcation makes sense.’ In this
case, however, the proposed first trial would not be short, as it would require trial of the same
Fraudulent Inducement Claims as to the Tharaldson Guaranty and the TM2I Guaranty as are

involved in the CVFS Subordination and Participant Interest purchase claims. And the proposed

first trial will not be case dispositive. Ifthe Court at the first trial were to hold that the guaranties
are enforceable, the Plaintiffs’ affirmative tort claims for fraud, constructive fraud, and breach
of fiduciary duty, and their statutory claim for securities fraud, would still have to be tried, but
the damages on those claims would increase from the $46 million subordinated debt to include
also the amount required fo be paid on the guaranties.’

The Court understands better than the parties the state of its trial calendar for the next year.

Based upon what Plaintiffs understand, however, if both trials could not be concluded in the time
the Court has allotted for trial beginning March 8, then the second trial could be delayed for 6-12
months simply because of the Court’s calendar and recent orders relating to shortage of
courtrooms. That would not favor an expeditious resolution of this case.

The “economy™ factor in Rule 42(b) goes to conservation of resources, including both the
Court’s available time and the dollars and cents costs to the parties of concluding the litigation.

The two trials proposed by Fiduciary Defendants would waste, not conserve, judicial resources,

§ West v. Devitt, 311 F.2d 787, 788 (8™ Cir. 1963) (issue of laches independent of the merits of
Plaintiff’s claim could be tried to the court first); State of Montana v. District Court, 467 P.2d 145, 147-
48 (Mont. 1970) (issue whether post-death release of claims by surviving spouse barred the claim
bifurcated and tried first; facts of release occurred long after the events creating liability, and trial on
release issue would be short); Granite State Insurance Co. v. Smart Madular Technologies, Inc., 76 F.3d
1023, 1027-28 (9" Cir. 1996) (issues of equitable estoppel to assert a breach of contract claim are
“distinct rather than common issues” therefore permitting bifurcation.) Angelo v. Armstrong World
Industries, Inc., 11 F.3d 957, 964-65 (10" Cir. 1993) (reverse bifurcation of asbestos injury claim; first
try whether there is a disease caused by asbestos and if so damages; then try the more complex and
separate issnes of exposure and whose asbestos was involved).

7 This is reflected in Plaintiffs’ Supplemental Disclosure on Damages, Exhibit 1 to Plaintiffs’
Opposition to Motion to Sirike Kyle Newman filed December 7, 2010, at 15:25 to 16:2; 17:20-27;
19:11-16; 20:23 to 21:1.
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,They would also be more costly to Plaintiffs than a single, simultaneous trial of all jury and non-
jury claims. Under these circumstances, “bifurcation of claims is not warranted, as it would
hamper judicial economy, rather than promoting it as defendants contend.” Tuttle v. Sears

Roebuck & Co., 2009 WL 2916894 *3 (N.D. Ohio 2009).

4. The Proposed Bifurcation Would Not Preserve Inviolate Plaintiffs’ Right to
Jury Trial.

A jury trial in civil cases is guaranteed by Article 1, § 3 of the Nevada Constitution and
Article], § 13 of'the North Dakota Constitution. Where claims triable to a jury and claims triable

to the court involve common questions of fact, it is unconstitutional to try the non-jury claims

first, as the doctrines of res judicata or collateral estoppel could effectively eliminate the right to
jury trial. Dairy Queen, Inc. v. Wood, 369 U.S. 469 (1962); Beacon Theatres, Inc. v. Westover,
359 U.S. 500 (1959). In Wood the plaintiff had a breach of contract claim for damages as well
as claims for trade-mark infringement, for injunctive relief, and for an accounting, The Supreme
Court reversed the District Court’s refusal to grant the plaintiff’s jury demand. The Court held
that because the “factual issues related to the question of whether there has been a breach of
contract” are “common with those upon which respondents’ claim to equitable reliefis based, the
legal claims involved in the action must be determined prior to any final court determination of
respondents’ equitable claims.” 369 U.S. at 479-80.

In the decades since Wood, both federal and state courts have consistently held that claims
triable to a jury must be fried first whenever those claims have common factual issues with the

claims not triable to a jury. E.g., Kolstad v. American Dental Ass'n, 108 F.3d 1431, 1440 (D.C.

Cir. 1997) (jury claims tried first; court bound by jury’s fact finding in later deciding non-jury
claims); Zions First Nat'l Bank v. Rocky Min. Irrigation, Inc., 795 P.2d 548, 662 (Ut. 1990)
(fraud issue must be resolved by jury first; court is bound by jury’s factual determinations on the
“parallel equitable issue.”) Indeed, a guaranty case cited by Fiduciary Defendants holds that,
even if bifurcation between jury issues and non-jury issues were to oceur, the jury claims must

be tried first. Bank of N. Y. v. Royal Athletic Ind., Ltd., 637 N.Y.8.2d 478, 479 (App.Div. 1996)
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(jury trial first on defenses going to validity of guaranty; if defenses are rejected, then a non-jury
trial would be held on the guaranty liability).

Only where the claims triable to the jury do not involve commeon factual issues with ¢claims
triable only to the court can the court exercise discretion to try the non-jury claims first. Granite
State Ins. Co. v. Smart Modular Technologies, Inc,, 76 F.3d 1023, 1027 (9" Cir. 1996) (facts
related to equitable estoppel defense are “distinct rather than common issues” with the breach of
contract and negligence claims.); West v. Devitt,311 F.2d 787, 788 (8" Cir. 1963) (issue of laches
independent of the merits of Plaintiff’s claim could be tried to the court first).

In light of these authorities, it is obvious that Mr. Tharaldson’s decision under all the facts
and circumstances, to sign the Tharaldson Guaranty and the TM2I Guaranty have “common

factual issues” with his simultaneous decision, under all the same facts and circumstances, to sign

CVFS’s $46 million Subordination and its Participant Interest purchase. Because the facts giving
rise to the Fraudulent Inducement Claims relative to the Guarantor Claims are the same as the
facts giving rise to the Fraudulent Inducement Claims relative to CVFS’s claims, the facts are
not distinct, but are common. Therefore, proceeding with Fiduciary Defendants® proposed
bifurcation would be unconstititional as to CVFS and therefore is precluded by Rule 42(b)’s
savings provision.®

Fiduciary Defendants cite Awada v. Shuffle Master, Inc., 123 Nev. 613, 624,173 P.3d 707,
714 (2007) in an argument that their proposed bifurcation would not impair Plaintiffs’
constitutional right to jury trial (Motion at 7:25-27). 4wada does not support Fiduciary
Defendants’ argument for two separate and independently sufficient reasons. First, the
Distributor in Awada had no jury-triable claims that could possibly have been adversely affected

by trying the rescission claim first, resulting in an order of rescission. Second, the Distributor in

® Under Nevada law, because Mr. Tharaldson is the manager and 100% owner of CVFS, and the
president and sole director of TM2I, CVFS would be deemed to be in privity with Mr. Tharaldson and
TMZ2], and thereby subject to collateral estoppel from a hypothetical first trial to the court. Kahi v.
Morse & Mobray, 121 Nev. 464,474, 117 P.3d 227, 234-35 (2005); Restatement (Second) of Judgments
§ 59 (business entities and their closely held owners, officers and directors are in “privity” for collateral

estoppel purposes).
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wada voluntarily made an early election of remedies, which has not occurred in this case, and
which Plaintiffs are entitled to delay until a jury verdict is rendered.

In Awada the Distributor filed a counterclaim which sought the equitable remedy of
rescission of a licensing agresment with Developer. There is no indication that the Distributor
asserted a tort claim for fraud, a contract claim for damages, or any other claim that might have
had common issues of fact with the rescission claim. 123 Nev. at 617-18, 173 P.3d at 710.° In
the absence of such claims having been asserted, there was no risk that frying the equitable claim
first could intrude on the Distributor’s right to a Jury trial on any other claims. In this case,
however, CVFS’s claims that the Mezzanine Deeds of Trust Subordination Agreement in which

it subordinated $46 million in first position liens, and the Nonrecourse Participation Agreement
through which it also purchased a loan participation, were induced by the very same acts and
omissions by the very same Fiduciary Defendants as the claims of Tharaldson and TM21 to avoid
the Tharaldson Guaranty and the TM2I Guaranty.

Also in Awada prior to the litigation the Distributor sent a letter to the Developer notifying
that it was rescinding the licensing agreement due to fraud and retuned to the Developer
everything he had provided to the Distributor in connection with the licensing agreement. Id,,
123 Nev. 617, 173 P.3d at 709. In its counterclaim, the Distributor sought rescission, not
damages, thereby confirming its early election not to sue for damages. See Note 4. Under
Nevada law, such an election does not have to be made prior to obtaining a jury verdict. J. 4,
Jones Construction Co. v. Lehrer McGovern Bovis, Inc., 120 Nev. 277, 289, 89 P 3d 1009, 1017
(2004); May v. Watz, 822 F.2d 896 (9* Cir. 1987) (a party is not required to make an election
between breach of contract remedies and rescission priorto ajury verdict); Restatement (Second)

of Contracts, § 378, Comment a. (no “particular time” limit for electing between rescission and

¥ After ruling in favor of Distributor on ifs rescission claim, the contract was at an end, so any breach
of contract claims Distributor might have asserted in its counterclaim were moot; and the court thereafter
“entered a written order dismissing [Developer’s] remaining claims with prejudice.” 123 Nev. at 61 8,
173 P.3d at 710. That the written order dismissed only Developer’s claims, indicates that there were no
Distributor claims other than for rescission,

20-

12019-001 00649




W o0 3 o oth B oW bR e

RONON NN N NN
SR T SR G ~ T T S - - v v R el

‘damages.) Trial of the “guarantor related claims™ first, to the court, would force Plaintiffs to elect
pre-maturely whether to affirm the guarantees and seek breach of contract and tort damages, or
whether to elect the equitable remedy of rescission, without the benefit of a jury verdict.

t Where, as here, the jury claims and the alleged non-jury claims are “inextricably
'intertwined” an order of bifurcation with trial first of the non-jury claims violates the fundamental
right of jury trial. Shum v. Intel Corp., 499 F.3d 1272, 1278-79 (Fed.Cir. 2007) (plaintiff®s claim

of inventorship has common factual issues with claim defendant misrepresented his claim of

inventorship.)
H 5. The Considerations Asserted by Fiduciary Defendants Do Not Justify Bifnircation.

Fiduciary Defendants’ arguments on “simplification,” “streamlining,” and judicial
“economy™ as a basis for bifurcation boil down to several points, which are either demonstrably
wrong, unsupported, unlikely to occur, or all of the above.

First, Fiduciary Defendants assert that the Guarantor Claims involve “less time and
|expense for the Defendants who were not directly involved in the claims related to the

guarantors.” Motion at 6:1-2. That is not true. Both guarantors have asserted fraud and

misrepresentation claims against APCO and Edelstein, as well as against Fiduciary Defendants.

The misrepresentations by APCO and Edelstein in connection with the closing and funding were

part and parcel of the same Senior Loan Transaction in which the two guaranties were issued,
Moreover, Fiduciary Defendants’ failure to detect and rectify the misrepresentations of APCO
and Edelstein is a significant part of the claims against the Fiduciary Defendants.

Second, Fiduciary Defendants assert that first trial will involve “fewer claims™ than would
the second trial. Motion at 9:1-11. Plaintiffs contend that both Tharaldson and TM21 had a
“right to expect trust and confidence in the integrity and fidelity of [SFC].” [11/23/10 Decision,
Ex. I at4:2-11.] So Fiduciary Defendants are incorrect in their assertion that the hypothetical
first trial would not have a breach of fiduciary duty claim.

Third, Fiduciary Defendants assert that the Guarantor Claims have 2 dollar value far

higher than the $400,000 value of CVFS’s claim on purchase of its Participant Interest. Motion

-21-
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at 8:10-16. Fiduciary Defendants’ conspicuously omit to mention CVFS’s $46 million
Subordination claim, which is twice as large as the BOK guaranty claim.

Finally, Fiduciary Defendanis assert that if they prevail at the first trial on the Guarantor
Claims that “the claims of CVFS will be moot and trial on thdse issues would not be necessary.”
This is true, Fiduciary Defendants argue, because “CVFS stands to recoup its entire $400,000
contiribution to the Senior Loan if the personal guaranty of Gary Tharaldson is enforced.” Motion
at 8:17-25. But CVFS also has Fraudulent Inducement Claims relating to the $46 million
Subordination, which would still have to be tried in a jury trial, which would necessitate all the
same evidence that had to be presented in the hypothetical first trial.

D. Conclusion on Bifurcation.

The bifurcation proposed by Fiduciary Defendants is not necessary to avoid any prejudice
to Fiduciary Defendants and would create prejudice to Plaintiffs. The proposal would make the
completeresolution of'the litigation less convenient not more; less expeditious, not more; and less

economical, not more. It would also violate Plaintiffs’ rights to jury trial under Article 1, Section

3 of the Nevada Constitution and Article 1, Section 13 of the North Dakota Constitution. The
Motion to bifurcate should be denied.
IV. CONCLUSION ON PLAINTIFFS® OPPOSITION TO THE MOTION.

The Motion must be denied as to striking the jury demands of Mr. Tharaldson and TM21
for all the reasons set forth in Part II. The Motion must also be denied as to bifurcation because

the requirements of Rule 42(b) for separate trials are not met in this case as demonstrated in Part

III.

V.  MOTION UNDER RULE 39%(c) FOR ADVISORY JURYON ALL CLAIMS NOT
TRIABLE TO A JURY,

For the reasons detailed in Part IV, there is no legal or factual basis for bifurcation under
Rule 42(b). In the unlikely event, however, that the Court were to bifurcate the case for trial,
Plaintiffs hereby move pursuant to NRCP Rule 39(c) for an advisory jury on the claims not triable
to a jury of right. This approach may avoid a long retrial if the Nevada Supreme Court were to

~22-
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reverse the Court’s decision on the validity of jury trial waivers or the scope of the jury trial
waivers.

A Rule 39(c) Standard.

The Nevada Rules aliow the District Court “apon motion” to “try any issue with an
advisory jury” that is not “triable of right by a jury.” NRCP Rule 3%{(c). Such a request is within
the broad discretion of the District Court. Harmon v. Tanner Motor Tours of Nev., Ltd., 79 Nev.
4,377 P.2d 622 (1963). The purpose of Rule 39(c) is to perfect the “complete fusion of law and
equity” and to permit “the time-saving trial of common jury and non-jury issues at one time
without the loss or surrender of any substantive rights by the parties.” Note 1 to F.R.C.P Rule
39(c); Bruckman v. Hollzer, 152 F.2d 730, 732-33 (9% Cir. 1946), Nevada courts have often
taken this approach where a case involves both equitable claims and legal claims. E.g., dnderson
v. Weise, 95 Nev. 540, 543, 598 P.2d 1144, 1147 (1979) (action to reform legal description on
a deed and to recover damages; jury was advisory on the reformation action and Court decided

to follow its recommendation; but mandatory on the damages claim.)

B. Jury Trial Waiver Does Not Preclude Advisory Jury.

That a trial by jury of right on some issues may have been waived does not preclude the
District Court from empaneling an advisory jury to assist in its determinations of those and other
non-jury claims. dmerican Lumbermens Mut. Cas. Co v. Timms & Howard, Inc., 108 F.2d 497,
499-500 (2d Cir 1939) (advisory jury is the “discretionary right of the court to have its
‘conscience enlightened.’”); Cudmore v. Smith, 260 F.Supp. 760 (D. Conn. 1966) (jury trial
waived by lack of timely demand; court empaneled advisory jury anyway); Computer Sys.
Engineering, Inc. v. Qantel Corp., 571 F.Supp .1365, 1372-73 (D.Mass. 1983) (jury advisory on
statutory unfair business practice claim, but mandatory on fraud claim tried concurrently). Any
other interpretation of Rule 39(c) is “undesirable” because “the use of an advisory jury is of no
binding legal significance, and the responsibility for the decision remains with the judge, he or
she should be allowed whatever help in reaching the decision he or she thinks desirable.” 9
Wright & Miller, Fed. Prac. & Proc. Civ. § 2335 (3™ Ed.).

23-
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C The Court Should Order That Any Non-Jury Claims be Tried to the Court with an
Advisory Jury.
If the Court were inclined to bifurcate, prudence would suggest empaneling an advisory

jury on all claims that are not triable to a jury of right.

Fiduciary Defendants would still preserve their right to a determination by the Court
(which would be free to follow or not follow the jury’s advisory recommendations) on the issues
not iriable to a jury as a matter of right,

Plaintiffs’ rights to jury trial on all issues triable of right to a jury are held inviolate thereby
hopefully avoiding a retrial if the Nevada Supreme Court disagrees with this Court on the

validity, or scope, of the jury trial waivers.

D. Conclusion on Rule 39(c) Counter-Motion
If the Court were to decide (in error Plaintiffs would suggest), to bifurcate the case,
empanelling an advisory jury on all issues not triable of right to a jury would be a prudent step
to mitigate substantial prejudice to all parties entailed by a retrial in the event the Nevada
Supreme Court reverses this Court’s decision on validity or scope of jury waivers.
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 24" day of January, 2011.
COOQOKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY & WOOG
/s/ Martin Muckleroy
Gnitirth H, Hayes, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 7374
Martin Muckleroy, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 9634
3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Local Counsel for Plaintiffs

AND

By

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C,
K. Layne Morril]
Martin A. Aronson

One East Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Counsel for Plaintiffs
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AND

MARQUIS & AUERBACH, P.C.

Terry A. Coffing, Esq.
10001 Park run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada §9145

Counsel for Plaintiffs
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J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Mark M. Jones, Esch

Matthew S. Carter, Esq.

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation and
Bradley L. Scott

Von 8. Heinz, Esq.

Abran E. Vigil, Esq.

Ann Marie McLougIlflin, Esq.
Lewis and Roca LL

Suite 600

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma

John D. Clayman, Esq.

Piper Turner, Esq.

Frederic Dorwart Lawyers

Old City Hail

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103-5010
Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.
Robert L. Rosenthal, Esq,
Howard & Howard

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Suite 1400

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Attorneys for Defendant APCO

P. Kyle Smith

Smith Law Office

10161 Park Run Dr.

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Attorneys for Gemstone Development West, Inc.

/s/ Valeria Maridon

I hereby certify that on the 24" day of Janu
OPPOSITION TO FIDUCIARY DEFENDANTS’
AND STRIKE JURY DEMAND AND PLAINTIFFS’ COUNTER-MOTION UNDER
RULE 39(c) FOR ADVISORY JURY ON ALL CLAIMS NOT TRIABLE OF RIGHT BY
JURY was e-served and emailed on the following persons:

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

, 2011, the foregoing PLAINTIFES?
OTION TO B CATE TRIAIL

Employee of Cocksey, Toolen, Gage, Dufly & Woog
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DISTRIGT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT THIKTEEN
LA VEOAS, NY 39153

Electronically Filed
1172372010 04:06:54 PM

L]
DISTRICT COURT (&.—, tﬁﬁww—- -

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA CLERK OF THE COURT
CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L,.C.; THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC.;
and GARY D, THARALDSON
CASE NO. A575963

Plaintiff(s). DEPT. NO, XIIT

va,

Date: November 15, 2010
Time: 2:00 a.m.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION;
BRADLEY J. SCOTT; BANK OF
OKLAHOMA, N.A.; GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC.; and
ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION
D/B/A/ APCO CONSTRUCTION,

Defendant{s) .

R T I B S N S e . - L W W S e

DECTSION

THIS MATTER having come before the Court on Novexber 22,
2010 for hearing on Plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
and on Defendants'{Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley Scott)
Counter-motion for Partial Summary Judgment on Claims Brought by
Gary Tharaldson and Tharaldson Motels 1I1I, Inc. relating to
Enforcement of Presales Conditions, and the Court having heard the
arguments of counsel and having considered the papers submitted on
behalf of the parties and then taken the matter under advisement
for further consideration;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Court decides the submitted issues as

follows:

12019-001
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MARK R, PENTON
IISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENY THTRTGEN
LAS VEGAS, NV 81155

A, a iffg!’ n

Plaintiffs essentially maintain that the subject Senior
Loan Agreement contemplated their participation in the venture and
that they had a right to rely and insist upon its performance to
the letter regarding, inter alia, the occurrence of pre-sale
conditions pertaining to *Qualified Buyer[s]* and *Qualified Pre-
Sales.” Thus, say Plaintiffs, since they contend that they are
able to demonstrate that there are no genuine issues of material
fact on the occurrence of pre-sale conditions, they are entitled to
findings to that effect.

The Court determines that the complexities of the
transactions in this case and the roles of the various participants
demonstrate that even the limited aspect that Plaintiffs would have
the Court decide is suffused with multiple genuine factual issues
going to course and acceptability of performance, knowledge of any
deficiencies and factual bases for waiver and/or estoppel related
thereto, materiality of any failure of condition, and cleanliness
of hands of the parties seeking the eguitable remedies of
rescission and restoration, which are part of what Plaintiffs are
seeking.

Interestingly, the words used by Plaintiffs in their
Opposition to the Counter-Motion carry & certain eloguence in
illustrating why this case is singularly inappropriate for even

partial summary judgment:

12019-001
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DISTRICT JUBGE

OEPARTMENT THIRTEEN
LAS VEGAG, NV 30155

... BS¥FC's argument completely ignores the economic
reality of the transaction, how the transaction was
structured and the relationship between the parties. (at

p- 23, 1l. 1-3)

SFC wants the Court to look at just the Senior Loan

Agreement. SPC’'s approach is not appropriate, and is

contrary to Nevada law. But the Court should not look at

the Senior Loan Agreement in a vacuum. Rather, the Court

should look at the entire Senior Loan transaction as a

whole and the economic realities of the transaction. (at

p. 24, 11. 6-9)

The Court DENIES Plaintiffs' Motion.

B. r e otion

By the same token, the Court is not persuaded that there
are no genuine issues of material fact concerning what the
Tharaldson Plaintiffs had the right to expect of the Scott
Defendants relative to a heightened standard on account of their
past relationship. ‘Thus, the Scott Defendants’ similarly recognize
the intricacies of the factual ingquiry on the subject of fiduciary
or other confidential relationship when they quote from Powers v.

United Services Auto, Association, 115 Nev. 3B, 42, 979 P.2d4 1286,

12019-001

P
v

00659



1288 (1999) at page 7 of their Reply in Support of Counter-Motion,
11. 11-312: "Under Nevada law, it would be more accurate to say that
‘la}l fiduciary relationship exists when one has the right to expect
trust and confidence in the integrity and fidelity of another.”

(emphasis in original)
The Court appreciates befendants’ contention that we are

simply looking at an arms-length commercial guaranties without any

O N R W N

*right to expect” more than what such a posture would entail.

5till, determining whether or not that is so will require a trial,

—
- O

Accordingly, the Counter-Motion is DENIED as well.

C. Cenclugion.

Counsel for the Scott Defendants is directed to submit a

e
W o

proposed order concerning Plaintiffs’ Motion consistent with part

[y
th

A above and with the briefing and argument of the befendants. Such

ot
Ll

| Proposed order should be submitted for review to Plaintiffs’

(=
~I

counsel and to counsel for the other Defendants. If counsel

-
®

disapprove the proposed order, such disapproval should not be the

o
g

subject of correspondence tc the Court, Instead, counsel can seek

[ 4
=

relief from any order processed by the Court by appropriate motion

[ ]
~h

practice.

4
~N

Counsel for Plaintiffs is directed to submit a proposed

| )
Q2

order concerning Defendants’ Counter-Motion consistent with part B

| 3]
LN

above and with the briefing and argument of Plaintiffs. Such

L -
&S h

proposed order should be submitted for review to Defendants’

N N
@ -
S

WARK R, DENTON
DISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT THIRTEEN
LAS VEGAS, NV 3185
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MARK R DENTON
DISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT THIRTEEN
LAS VEGAS, NY 23155

counsel, If counsel disapprove the proposed order, such
disapproval should not be the subject of correspondence to the
Court. Instead, counsel can seek relief from any order processed
by the Court by appropriate motion practice,

This Pecision is a summary of the Court’s analysis of the
matter and sets forth the Court's intended disposition on the
subject, but it anticipates further order of the Court to make such

disposition effective as an, order or judgment,

DATED this ﬁ dayl_,o’iff

vember , 2010,

9

MARK R, DENTeN
DISTRICT JUDGE
CERTIFPICATE
I hereby certify that on or about the date filed, this
document was e-served or a copy of this document was placed in the

attorney’s folder in the Clerk’'s 0Office or mailed to:

Martin A. Muckleroy, Esq. MORRIILI, & ARONSOW, P.L.C.
COOKSEY TOQLEN GAGE DUFFY & K. Layne Morrill, Esq.
WOOG Martin A, Aronson, Esq.
3330 H. Hughes Pkwy, Ste. 200 Stephanie L. Samuelson, Esdg.
Las Vegas, NV 89169 Christine R. Taradash, Esq.
8cooksevl 1 East Camelback Road, #340

Attorney for Plaintiffs Phoenix, AZ 85012

dmorrillémaazlaw,com

maronsonémaaziaw. com

azl
Co-Counsel for Plaintiffs

.
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MARK R. DENTON
DISYRIGT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT THIRTEEN
LAB VEGAS, RY 6985

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS P.C.
Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esqg.

Wade Gochnour, Esq.

3800 H. Hughes Pkwy., 14 Flr
Las Vegas, NV B9169
gxméh2law. com

h ) m
Counsel for Deft. APCO
Construction and Asphalt
Products Corporation

LEWIS & ROCA

Von Heinz, Esq.

3993 H. Hughes Pkwy., Ste. 600
Las Vegas, NV B91l69
vheinz@lirl com
ivienneau@lrlaw.com

Local Counsel for Bank of
Oklahoma, N.A.

FREDERIC DORWART LAWYERS
John D, Clayman, Esq.
Piper Turner, Esq.

0ld City Hall

124 E. Fourth Strt.
Tulsa OX 74103

dclavman@fdlaw. com

Counsgel for Bank of QOkla.,N.A.

SMITH LAW OFFICE
Kyle Smith, Esq,
10161 Park Run Pr.,
Las Vegas, NV 89145

ks@ksmithlaw.com

Counsel for Alex Edelstein

Ste. 150

KEMP JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
J. Randall Jones, Esdq.
Mark M, Jones, Esq,

Matthew $. Carter, Esg.

3800 H. Hughes Pkwy., 17 Fir.

Las Vegas, NV 89169
r. jones@kempiones.com

5, C
Counsel for Scott Financial
Corp. And Bradley J. Scott

N\ E} ¢ €%§2£govpzru
LORRAINE TASHIRO

Judicial Executive Assistantg
Dept. No. XIII
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, L.L.C,, a Nevada )
Limited Liability Company; THARALDSON MOTELS, IT, )

INC., a North Dakota corporaticn; and GARY D. jCase No,
THARALDSON, YyA5T79963
Plaintiffs, ) Dept. No.
v, }XTII

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a North Dakota

corporation; BRADLEY J. SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,

N.A., a national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT WEST,
INC., a Nevada corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS

CORPORATION D/B/A APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada

corporation; DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and

ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-10¢,

Defendants.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a foreign

corporation,
Counterclaimant,
v.
GARY D. THARALDSON,
Counterdefendant.
CONFIDENTIAL
O PR D P oS T O OF B RADLE e

PAGES 207-408
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA

A e et T O

01

REPORTED BY: HOLLY J. PIKE, CCR NO. 680, RPR, CSR
LST JOB NO.: 127285
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BRADLEY J. SCOQTT, VOLUME II - 9/2/2010
Page 382

to interpret into ~- related to closing and pay back the
loan,
BY MR. ARONSON:
Q. Right. You want to get the loan paid back; right?
A, Yes.
MR. ARONSON: Let's mark this as 700, please,
(Deposition Exhibit Number 700
was marked for identification.)
BY MR. ARONSON:
Q. Actually before we get into 700 =-- nevermind.
*Wouldnyousidentify Exhibitulo) ofawlaaaajﬁ*mm

A, Yeah. They appear to be gquestions asked by Tim
James to Scott Financial on December 14. I responded back
to him.

Q. I want to direct youxr attention to the second page
of Exhibit 700, please,

B, Okay.

Q. It's item Numbex 5, towards the bottom of the

page. Why don't you take a minute to read that, please.

A, Ckay.
QI SO e T Ing T the " TME 2= gudranty /' is"

smmmaﬁi@%ﬁﬂm

You are CEYTIRG iR R rE T IR e sPOn e tohis vermail

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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BRADLEY J. SCOTT, VOLUME II - 9/2/2010
Page 383

e ,,/c R g R R T B S R B el st e
EI5h that a TMIS Ghsimmiras ht be scmethin that ou
3¢

R Attty

couldwagreé*“to S EBOK - commii tted 'to“$24 million participation

fiaah SEATAMAR 0 Gy EaEe RS R A T Ve TR e g R
and uns tha co-léad”on ‘the transaction, is that zight?

Amwﬁ%ﬁﬁm%m et
ey s SRR TR R R R i R e R Y
QTSR alveady told me that you ragarded Bank of

Oklaheomaorvsome other Bank: aiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁbélléiﬂmiﬁ*being%ﬁmﬂ

. i it ‘
s TR TR f%fwwy‘ BENE, - e TSR ST

“{mportant to the'txansactxon,’corroct?

MR. JONES: Object to the form.

MR. JONES: I'll join.

R R

THE WITNESS:

ot PR it AR e ay\.

h” having g Go-Tead’ Tn
CEFIHdcfionedswinportant, torallparties. inthestransaction. .
BY MR. ARONSON:
Q. FAESEhIEFEETRESIREICRS
ezmat i iEY DEEenbEr 1472007+ = haduyoutieverspoken;;: te. Sar vy

andlichafdite vof: thisEs

TharaldsoniaboutiatIMI2: guaranty-“as<a ‘partiofiManhattanWest:

AEﬁ%ﬁ@mgggﬁgﬁknew@eﬁa@t&ymthe«daté@tha&kedntouGaryﬁﬁ@"

akbgututherguarantyfrequiément i Ts LRI Hh KPS S5 SR o v el
afberuWe " WETErawarernthatuthatsithe?dicectidnithe Ban ki ofue

Okdahomd 18- GNP WItR Eh8ir<approval, - I+méan~for~ the  fiFst .

time.welatalked*toRthem¥méretthanionce. about it.
Q. @myTherers/anﬁzndacataonthere on;thia, exhibit, . .it-at
R A L ey e

leau&hqppaars, that you a:e the one that® suggeated the,:

bufﬁﬂaﬁt--- ‘the-burn-off*rather, at $100-million.sales

* CONFIDENTIAL *
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BRADLEY J. SCOTT, VOLUME II - 9/2/2010

Q.

Does that refresh your recollection? Was that

your idea, that $100 million numbex?

A.

I don't know if we had a conversation on the phone

before this and Tim brought this up or if he was trying to

have me weigh in on it, or if it was my idea that we have

some parameters in there that, if I had difficulty

convincing Gary to execute the additional guaranty, that

there would be a way to have an exit strategy on that

guaranty.

Q.

I just don'

t recall.

Does this refresh your recollection at all as to

how you arrived at the $100 million number?

A,
Q.

Arrived at what?

At this $100 million trigger for the burn-off of

the proposed TMIZ2 guaranty.

MR. JONES:

THE WITNESS:

not sure w-

BY MR. ARONSON:

Q.

Cbject to the form,

Can you explain the gquestion? I'm

i'll rephrase it. It appears you're suggesting a

$100 million threshold for the burn-off on this TMI2

guaranty

a.

Are you referring to land sales?

Ch, I see,

This is land sales of other assets,

12019-001
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DISTRICT CQURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, L.L.C., a Nevada )
Limited Liability Company; THARALDSON MOTELS, II, )

INC., a North Dakota corporation; and GARY D. JCase No.
THARALDSON, YABT79963
Plaintiffs, JDept. No.
v. JXIII

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a North Dakota
corporation; BRADLEY J. SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,
N.A., a national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT WEST,
INC., a Nevada corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada
corporation; DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and

ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a foreign

e i S S P

corporatiocn,
Counterclaimant,
V.
GARY D. THARALDSON,
Counterdefendant,
CONFIDENTIAL
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presented to me that identifies that conversation.
BY MR. ARONSON:
Q. Well, the approved cap rate of 7 percent was
established back in May of 2007; right?
A. Whenever it was established. That was one of the

criterias, because the building was designed to be leased

and sold, not just socld.

;ﬁﬂmﬁﬁpﬂntﬁeuiQgﬁg@ﬁﬁgﬁﬂﬁgxﬁx%&ngéuhmw@gmz
3 AE R PREY

MR. CLAYMAN: Object to form.
MR. JONES: I'll join.
PRHESWIBNES S, cwTheresweresbtemepdnuthe: Bankyofiupms
OllahomamconmtmefRePEHCE PREGT Iy el Feidwn-I - didntufeed:
m@ﬁwanﬁedﬁ@@mhavﬁwﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁdé?ﬁf?f"%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁheﬁframewepkw@@&thewﬁ
grguasantyesbhatva s i e Tes reu BV BE AR S £ oK 1A REma Y Wit
BY MR. ARONSON:
Qe Somsgoutds AVHE R EP S TSRS S BUS RS S v
PP SV YERBIGY then THE2Fguarantysniaythat . w gﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁgﬁaﬁﬁ
N G e e e el o A e S
@Qmmmmseﬁ&yaumdﬂdnutHE3ﬁ&ndﬂth&twsﬁﬁhy&y&uﬁdia@netﬁdﬁndﬁﬁ@ |
1y sy Sl e P4 8| Y AT T & PN KA g TS TR L L
S Nl s (Tl T T Y=o L
S R e R B A SO 70 el

M&&ﬂmg}ﬂ? TR T e
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Q. sndlfolrameilsF Fouretad CARSHY *SoErES LI P RESH T

__—

G g s

2

Previ;

4 B Gk SR T A R e,
burn-off pv:i. ion, on.. with Mr, Tharaldson;

MR. JONES: Object to the form.
THESHTINBS S T R B
PESTRER S i,

MR. JONES: You've answered the guestion.

S T T R e e
R e R N

W 1 & O s W N

[te]

10

burn-off provision as
St i,

TR

16 RS T o S B Pha 1 preu g g e s LB o B,

R R AR

Rt e TR RS e o, T e
Taddon BRI S ekt

PO Y e .M ,,5@# n %ﬁgﬁﬁ%
T
Y A e T e T L R fﬁgﬁsactiogfﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%gaﬁ%gwﬁﬁ

T A

ORI e
e i e

L

G s o
TrEgs thr g e

i

o e« o § gy o AR b2 O
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;r-ra\ r~

A%h%%@

MR. ARONSON:

;%{5 ﬁ :,{ﬁ‘.- .a.:,.xa.«' —‘a 5

ect* becanse of

the tape, so we better take our break now.

MR. JONES:

Sure.

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Off the record at 2:21.

- {A short break was taken.)

BY MR. ARONSON:

Q. Mx. Scott,

We only have five minutes left on

in connection with the ManhattanWest

vertical financing, did you talk to Business Bank of Nevada,

ever, about being co-lead?

A, No.

Q. Did you talk to City Natioenal Bank, ever, about

being co-«lead?

A, No, not that I can recall.

Q- Did you talk to Bank of The West about being

A. I don't think so.

Q. By "talk,"

I mean communicate in any way?

A, Some of those banks we may have sent a credit

display about being a participant in the transaction.

far as being co-lead,

As

I don't recall a conversation with any

cf them about co-leading.
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alleged he didn't. WNow it's been proven that he did, so T
guess he changed his mind,
BY MR. ARONSON:

A AR

Agraphs: ofy the, TMI2:

by

ﬁ3‘:':i.sc>v.«m and g01ng oV

P

t%? ] ma,.mv.n;- ;.u:‘:-:*‘n"-‘!‘
pr¥oviasions

oty W’)&%’W@’“ S S R R 3 A e G,

£ ithe, TM12; qUATanty ‘With'

Awwmﬁv

BT >

nTha:aldson or tal

A N b RN e '<~"'1‘R.Pmmu .wﬂ_ﬁ

PMIZ\ quaranty , . whether M2 sgiarantox. voukd

; LA L5 TS (AN e e Rl co Y
mvgat1c;ed1t for-thé?collatoral agninét any guafhﬁ%é
:"z)q{:%‘

pg}antxu; ;;abzl;ty

e e

¥
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MR. JONES: Object to the form of the questlon.

ﬁi";ﬁﬁq,&-;‘mﬁ&f,ﬂ _I,} ”‘
11%?“%?

MR, CLAYMAN: Object to form.

BY MR. ARONSON:

Q. YTou're not aware of that?
MR. JONES: Object. That misstates his

testimony.

always
s tE

BY MR. ARONSON:

é%@

Yot UYL

omatimasi;t happans, right

- kpowzAs It: may s #In B¥siEransaction itiwads

%Jyeg conSLdered“
Qs P gous ever SPecifically’. disciss with. Gary

Tharaldson regurd;ng the TMI2 guarantyrthat therg would- be

....

no. qzed;t ‘against any’ potantzal THi guarantor liabil‘ty@for

RGHISEED [orans’ vues
)

tha faxr;markat value .of the improvamant in real-ést te

collateral?
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narantyy fromi

.»..l.u,........;-;.mu Ly

..,-:Ear i i .,'
.répresentation made that‘there would

iz SIS

scszp

N T PR
EMNY transactlon I've done wrtf‘fzﬁg

PO R e o it
Jﬂ}& ﬁ%ldson speczf;cally, on..the

o T A T

Ty

Miﬁhattanﬂbst@loangbofdr

R L

iiscussioniwi

E AN

el

samgﬁggaxantywthat

v

dp_éed tha t it was thehsame g aran v

Y e
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'ng £o guaranty-a“hundred percent‘of the debt.

e et

A

W.J?tyﬁabnu “ the wai ar{' of“ Sy i

el .Wk

g%sw?ﬁatﬁaﬁ%u; ‘
SRR ey Ty %Q'LGW'-"E’#‘\ A # Iy _au.... g

1dso§€§ﬁfore ha‘s;gﬂ ﬁﬁﬁﬁf

S R MY
Lo ig

e BT G R L
the

guaranty rand¥

Q. Was:theré injidiscussibnéibourt Nevada lawsapplydnghss
to mmﬁ@hwwldsm&persenaaﬁqmrmty«_—ar_:t_;!_g_;.,,!g?
laWapplyingatoithe - IMI2 - guaranty?

A. WBEpelieverithyt  THsHdrEdisEed»Becadsewe had tosget

SR s e o e

- becau'se TMI2 was a NOrEHED:

”céﬂ%b‘r%i’bn‘” 4nd that's
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e ——

why we had to use the jurisdiction in North Dakota.
Q. So it was discussed, and it was your
understanding, that North Dakota law would apply to the TMI2

guaranty?

A. Correct.

S *v.s,@;a

Ry

o, ifmm’ E
‘tﬂh%%you ‘had with Gary
2 -v‘-':.-‘-"v"‘-'::,,',, T "‘“g.%"

gt
persoasTRaR"
it it

'f qnyﬁduaiéntorfﬂ”ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?

- '&‘; Eégi ; ‘:, ‘m,wr u- 2k

e

MR. JONES: Objection. Asked and answered. At

least I thought it was.
THE WITNESS: Right,

BY MR. ARONSON:

RETEINES

R
1in f&%ﬁ%dg hot l;ava tha

SRR ot
%we*eVer'doneert

S U e

N B S R R
*ﬂwiﬁﬁm6§£;§hh3ra Tae s

SIRET L R A R 2

o CET T ’“hﬂviﬂsfmanhattahWbst b&%ore he algne

ﬁh@g§§§§h§§§§}@%§}agraph ~By- paragrapﬁ With him
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1

> HEEE

5

4 5‘%@@“@%@@%@ .3%. ﬁ%@:@ﬁmﬁem
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;
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9

10 R R

11| qehpubths

12 E%wgﬁg@«@% agrd

13
14 e ‘a»‘yﬁ '
15| theggeppemahaten
le ermss b

17 z
18
19
20
21 etter Docanse there “were things “ihat were
22 P S e WE??"Q?
23 As solén BETﬁ?gyour .
24 T ém gen%?w?ﬁggéd o
25 | tosmkenmsaEnesBESs Ry
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MR. ARONSON: Sure. If T could have a couple more
minutes, I could finish that line.

BY MR. ARONSON;

Q. WEW£fmﬁdeﬁ&%ﬁmﬁ@wwtalkatwe;am
s R B o S PR
MTraralaSBREBOUL Spacifie provisions in Jannary of 2008

. o o K i S A md‘%ﬂ
U R R S R T e e,
A RIS AT R AR B S R S e mibe p e SR
PrcobmedundnathesCoNVETS AT IO O T fE e a s M S ARy A ES R SRS

cdﬁﬁﬁﬁT%ﬁ%@dﬁﬁE%@%%V%&ﬁP&déhw@Mwe@aﬁiﬁkﬁﬁLm@%aﬁﬁEpeQ%%%@

L ey
%n%%ﬁ;ﬂ. AL ISR B mE i et s i AT, o i S et T T s g
Q.  You seem to believe you did AUy dlivaraydypew

T AN S o A W TR AL A o b B uazevﬁngnhm,*,g,um;mmﬂ.ﬂ“ﬁmﬁ My S R
dg?& A el 32 Bl

B X :
with Ryan Kucker about the senior loan agreaement; correct?

G A B, S A, b el Y T B e O o £ A s
Ay A N LT e T O CUme S S S Ry AR i S S e e

A Y g T Bl e 0 v LS ot ST e et e e e R B A R
£h reugh# e MK S S e~ eV E YV E R TG S * EREE " FST Gary to

sign TRam .
Q. ®AresyoursayinghRyan RUEKEFEETE ST RS ‘naid s ™
A. R RhEH IR R IO RS 4 R U HES QoG umen tsibe £0 £ew Cakys
-_rﬂ;%ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁg%%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ Nzl
0. eI RS TR
versionsotr thE SR S r T 88N~ P asais g
A e T e Re S S  m asinisriveme
arels ey e T VB R RS,
QIEESNGF S HEE it youstie!

e St SN s Y
O R R Y e

Q:

s

1y R o,
an agreement was

SRR ST A T SR R A S R
genBFE P EBREITEREY Fho

T T

‘f'mm L Fir bt e e T e SR, Loy
with the commitment letter, and other~communi cat

ety

I IR TR
ior lo
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S e St s ‘.=.-m‘ .
PR TRRR e RE AR

%éyeﬁ’;“’““‘
%ﬁ%ﬁ@”‘ StaidnwithrRyansucker bEFCEelGa IV Thaxal deons

USSR ?W%&%PW

ﬁ%ﬁ&&wm@mﬁh&@%%@mwwu"', i -
A. don't know if there's anythlng speci

itﬂ

e T

ic. We
just went through the general, Here's the documents. Here's
what you've got. Here is what we have to execute.
Everything's in order. The components of the term sheets
and, as adjusted and modified and approved, either verbally
or in writing, are incorporated into that. The parameters
of the changes in the presales and that they wanted into the
final documents were all thers.

I think the only things I remember talking about
probably were just the presales and there's one other area.

I can't remember what it was right now. I can't remember.

There's a couple areas.

.....

@%ﬁmgm@wﬁmﬁmwfﬁﬁﬁﬁ

g
R P B e R R R g
A. mmﬁ@wmﬁf SR hat IS ec;fléglly;m%\
change df“t
58&ﬁﬁénﬁ§$~

,"HwThenmthereﬂwaSwené*dfgc&§§i6ﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁtmﬁﬁéﬂchaﬁgeB

in =g.clarifying-the change in-the deposit..criteria.because ,
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HSHRSRE

O H -ﬁt SRR S8 de :
¥ *’z'%f—’ o ;
aﬁ.thar%§%tﬁ%gn%5&%% ectly
ik O
fossshsauRer ey
Q. On the various participation agreements, we have
| the Club Vista participation agreement on the senior loan.
We have the participation agreement on the Alex Edelstein

$13 million loan. We have the participation agresment on
the $46 million mezzanine loan.

Did you go over those documents in detail with
Mr. Tharaldson before he signed them in January of 20087

A. Yeah. We talked about the level of participation
on the senior loan had been brought down from $25 million
all the way down to about $400,000. I think it was $400, 000
by the time we closed, or mavbe it was $1.4 million. I
don't remember off the top of my head anymore.

Q. Other than the numbers, did you go owver the
language provisions paragraph-by-paragraph or page-by-page
of the participation agreaments?

A, Just the ones that he changed.

Q. What do you mean, "just the ones that he changed!?

A, Well, the ones he changed, like the split of the
late charges 50/50. Normally a hundred percent go to Scott

Financial. Participants got 50 percent of the late charges.
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Q. Any other issues you discussed?
A. The default fee, typically, is 50 percent to Scott
Financial, 50 percent to the participants. Gary required it
be two-thirds to the participants, one-third to Scott
Financial. Then the default rate is typically 50/50. Gary
Tharaldson required two-thirds of it go to the participants
and one-~third go to Scott Financial.
Those are the three components of the
participation agreement that's not standard language.
Q. That's what you discussed with whom,
Mr. Tharaldaon ox Mr. Rucker?
A. I don't remember if the conference call included
Gary sitting in the room or not. I don't recail. {”j
Q. Othexr than those_}ssuas,and tho dollar amount of ’

X A
B ke AR R S oo

ticipations, I-take it, you did not go over other

languaga in the pnrtlczpatxon agraﬂmant?
Eor

wAwmmehemvestm@fmwtmwsmpr@tty?muehﬁﬁta@&eﬂ&aﬂguage*

Itmﬁ been the same,in all the’documents.xﬁ;é

gﬁ 80, you did not go over: that language-with.
e S PTTTETTE L
Mr%ﬁgkg;gldson"reggxd;qg;gpg_H@phgttanﬂbqt ::qqﬁaction?

A. It would have been repetltlve to go over: them.,ﬁ@

e S

again. .We've Slgned multiple lcans with those part;cmpatlon =Y
‘agreements.
‘ﬁng. ) Did you ever, with Gary Tharaldson years agoe or

mﬁhenover -
R
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A. Sure.
Q. wmghefore ManhdttanWest,:go-over -
paragraph:-by-paragraph on-the participation ‘agreement? .ﬁi
* A.  Well, when.we first started domng busineSS, we B

weg@ﬁthrough .our. document profile- w1th hlm. With Kyle

W

o)
Bk

prim%vf%..ly yeahsu, -

iscussionuabout

Gar isﬂnoQggnggpgms}pwtb;oudﬁ”
g F ‘

a hundr%g pages .0: ;documents.mwThatﬂ”vwh,;&he&has his' ~people

R,

Q. Is Gary one to sit through discussions on five
pages of documents, in your opinion?

A. Depending on how important the deal was. Our
deals tended to be very important because they were large
numbers to him, large exposure numbers. So I think he paid
attention to a lot of the detail relative to the key and
critical path terms.

MR. AROﬁSON: We can take our break now,.

THE VIDEOGRAPHER: Off the record at 3:23.

{A short break was taken.)

THE VIDEOCGRAPHER: Back on the record at 3:42.
BY MR. ARONSON:

Q. Mr, Scott, let me show you what's been pxe#ioualy
marked as Exhibit 82, You can leaf through it, if you'd

like, but I'm really only going to ask you about the cover

page.
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Would you just confirm for the record that this
appears to be a January 15, 2008, e-mail with attachments
from the Maslon law firm to several other partias?

A, That's right.

Q. This is regarding at least drafts of the senior
locan documents for ManhattanWest as of Januwary 15th of 2008.
Does that appear to be the camse to you?

aA. Yeah, some of them.

Q. The Maslon law firm was your lawyer, the Scott

~ Financial lawyer in your view, in this ManhattanWest

transaction; correct?

A, They've been my lawyer throughout the life of our
company and then, probably, five to seven years previously { )
at BNC National Bank when I was employed there. -

Q. This is getting sent to Alex Edelstein and
Mr. Barton at Heolland & Hart. Do you recognize that name as
Gemstone's attorney on the deal? .

A. I believe that's correct.

Q. And to Jim Horning and Peter Smith at Gemstone.
eHAtHeFedrant
baina¢sent toGREY TRATATddon S ARy BSuFonrhaha,

e o
tidocuments aresnot' i

TgHWouTaTEgEs:

g appear that they are At this ;ﬁncémé%,

i J
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e

1 forwarded . this. Exh:.bit. 821 to’ Gary 'I'haxaldaon or Ryan

2 Kuq_lgax‘?i?“?-i e

3

4 i

5 mgh.rectly ‘lw:.i:h-ﬁ‘any attornayi-thit was rapfasentxng ‘Gary 8%
6 Tha&?'ldsaﬁf'%F'b.tl'."lﬁlfa':ﬁ.-ﬁénhéﬁiﬁiﬂﬁé’siﬁééﬂiﬁ’i"fﬁfﬁﬂéé{ﬁﬁ'%docmnts?&%‘%g?
7 T nqwleﬁ&éﬁéﬂé‘%l sdonit know <if -he -HEG
8 attorneys: 1ooking at’”documents’;f ‘r: ;.woul‘dg;‘;have,-done‘ that .on
9 hi;gz0wn.and we wouldn'thave™ se?:t it.directly to him,: e
10 weré“'&sendmngz;-lt-.- directly-toithis ‘attorney.on behalf of. . thef
i1 wer. because he was writing. a bo¥rgw?r s oplnlon on . 4
12
13 Q. Dowyogu ‘havea s;oczf:.c recollection as to whether
14 G%;fgparildépnﬁ_wa:‘é ;sent or saw any drafts of the,senior
15 1oall%§docuﬁents:'a€%zuanh'at'tan before.he-signed the. final

i DO you, shave’ anywspecifi%“%ollect;:gpuﬁiiw{ou

19 sant any drafts, or you had Jason Ulmer send any:drafts of
20 Zany" ‘ofthe senior loan - ‘agreements ‘€6 Ga:y;.'.l'haraldson before
21 hq.signed. the..sénior-loan-documents?
22 A.gg-Again,: T.donlt. recalli. 8
23 Q. Hpuld. you.axpect-thers" would" be an’ e-mn:.l r;c@é-d
24 if fyou-did;-in~fact, forwird these 'documents- ﬁ‘;’.@

Mr...Tharaldson?: ...~
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AERE e

A.fg“I would;expect theréswould be:

ESRTT

fhnygﬁggéiffbhrecolleégﬁﬁﬁﬁasrﬁﬁ?ﬁf

4:. “.'e.r& o i ;ﬂ‘@@%t
*iﬁ%%he 1se AP IS TR Eirm,

M

b e i ST e TSy,
S resth ESnéact%withWhnﬁattoxnaymﬂg teaskting
M. ﬁﬁ?”““fﬁ®&* -
A % S
Maﬁﬁ%%f%@" % PSR E aments?
. i d"&

R A R S SR

gaction., If she sent

for#Ciuy Vistanavihtarases ‘6 the

documents to Bill Spiry, I believe, in Manhattan. She
possibly did, but I don't remember about ManhattanWest.

?’ 16- T ,.’vgb,,.._‘;qc AP

Q. B Yo e T Adv$8 T T YoubFatalL; v did youlave

ai%%ﬁﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁggj

§§B§5h¥xgpkq§a§h§tﬁ§aryaoﬁ)cl#bfif

‘ganior loan. documentsgﬁ {ﬁ}
N E
MR. JONES: Object to the form.

MR. CLAYMAN: OCbject to form.

a;,g'

TGary.istaibigiboy. HeveiBo L T

ﬁ%

oggggﬁSﬁbilIiBﬁ%ﬁ&E?ﬁ%%fngﬁéya%wi;think;hewknogs£when%he

o R, gt e
nEgdsitol have Edmebody | & Is&iHos K aty -loan, documents«onithi s

b o s
PRk
BY MR. ARONSON:

RO ‘ﬁ-

o all¥ Eight oo

you,. apecifically, xacall ever” advis:ng Gary Tharaldsod¥or

T

S S . g e
M&'question @gﬁﬁﬁﬁéyuz‘«gcott’lj.ﬁu
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COOQKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY & WOO0G
MARTIN A, MUCKLEROY, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 009634

3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 949-3100

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C.
K. LAYNE MORRILL, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 004591

MARTIN A, ARONSON, E3Q.
Arizona Bar No. {09005

JOHN T. MOSHIER, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 007460 :
One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, Arizona 85012
Telephone: (602) 263-8993

Attorneys For Plaintiffs

Electronically Filed
11/24/2008 04:08:33 PM

R

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, LL.C., &
Nevada limited liability cornpany; THARALDSON
MOTELS II, INC., & North Dakota corporation;
and GARY D. THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,
V.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a North
Dalkota corporation; BRADLEY J. BCOTT; BANK
OF OKLAHOMA, N.A., a national bank;
GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC,, a
Nevada corparation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation; DOE
INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE BUSINESS
ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
}
)
}
}
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

AND RELATED COUNTERCLAIMS

AD3.0005 10363903.1

Case No. A579963
Department No. 13

PLAINTIFFS’ MORE DEFINITE
STATEMENT OF FRAUD CLAIMS
AGAINST DEFENDANT APCO
CONSTRUCTION
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1 In accordance with the Court’s Order denying Defendant APCO Construction’s Motion to
2 | Dismiss, Plaintiffs respectfully submif their more definite statement of their fraud claims against
3 || Defendant APCO. The following allegations against Defendant APCO should be inserted between
4 || paragraphs 203 and 204 of Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint, the balance of which First Amended
5 | Complaint is incorporated in its entirety.
6 I 203.A. The misrepresentations General Contractor APCO made to SFC as agent and fiduciary
7 “ for Plaintiffs included the “Contractor Consent” and “Contractor Certificate” both dated J anuary 22,
8 || 2008, and both more fully described in Paragraph 96 hereof.
g 203.B. In the January 22, 2008, Contractor Consent, APCO falsely stated that “[a]ll liens,
10 || claims, rights, remedies and recourses that [APCO] may have or may otherwise be entitled fo assert
11 || against all or any portion of the Project shall be, and they hereby are made expressly subordinate,
12 | junior and inferior to the liens, claims, rights, remedies and recourses as created by the loan Agreement
13 ]| and the Collateral Documents.” In truth, APCO now claims that its lien claims are senior and superior
14 || to the Loan Agreement and the Collateral Documents, and APCO knew the basis for such contentions
15 || when it signed the Construction Consent.
16 203.C. Inthe January 22, 2008 Contractor Certificate, APCO falsely executed a Certificate as
17 || to Sworn Construction Statement expressly representing that as of January 22, 2008, no work had been
18 || sempieted on the Property or the Project. In truth, APCO knew and now claims that it performed work
19 || on the Property and on the Project prior to January 22, 2008, and that its statements were false at the
20 || time they were made.
7] 203.D. APCO made its misrepresentations to SFC as agent and fiduciary for Plaintiffs.
99 || Misrepresentations made to an agent about matters within the scope of the agency are equivalent to
273 || Tepresentations made directly to a principal, in this case, to the Plaintiffs. APCO intended or had
n4 || reason to belisve SFC would communicate the misrepresentations to third parties such as Plaintiffs.
95 il
26 || 7/
27 m
28 i

HI5.0005 1036903.1
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1 203.E. In addition to the direct misrepresentations APCO made to SFC in the Contractor
2 | Consent and Confractor Certificate, such misrepresentations constituted indirect misrepresentations to
3 Plaintiffs. APCO participated directly in the Senior Loan transaction and issued its Contractor Consent
4 ! and Contractor Certificate for the purpose of inducing the closing of the Senior Loan transaction. It was
5 |I foreseeable to APCO that the misrepresentations it communicated to SFC would be communicated by
& SFC to others such as Plaintiffs.
7 203.F. In the Contractor Consent and Contractor Certificate, APCO represeﬁted that it did not
8 || have a claim of lien priority against Plaintiffs when, on information and belief, APCO knew it would
o || have a lien priority claim if Plaintiffs signed the Senior Loan Agreement and agreed to subordinate their
io first lien position, Alternatively, APCO knew it might have & lien priority claim at the time it made the
11 || Contractor Consent and Contractor Certificate and APCO falsely represented that it presently intended to
12 || waive and would waive and not assert any claim for lien priority that might exist. On information and
13 || belief, APCO made its representation that it would not assert or would waive any lien priority claim it
14 || might have with the present intention not to perform the promise to waive such lien priority claims, and
15 || instead to assert any len priority claims it might have, particularly after Plaintiffe signed the Senior Loan
16 || Agreement.
17 203.G. Plaintiffs were misled by and rightfully relied on APCO’s misrepresentation. APCO’s
18 || misrepresentations to SFC induced Plaintiffs to enter into the Senior Loan Agreement, umnder which,
10 || among other things, Plaintiff CVFS agreed to subordinate its $56 million of first position loan funds
np | secured by the Project and the Property. The Senior Loan Agreement provided the loan funds from
ny || which APCO was to be paid for its work on the Project and the Property.
99 203.H. APCO’s mistepresentations, coupled with CVFS’s subordination of its position on its $56
o3 || million in loan funds, has led to a claimed broken priority. APCO claims that CVES, which was
24 originally in first position on the Project and Property is now in a lien priority pesition juniorto APCO’s
25 claimed lien (and incidently also junior to the claims of other providers of labor and materials to the
26 lf Project and Property).
27 ||
28 i

4050005 10359031 —-3—

12019-001 00541



(Page 4 of 5)

W0 Ny v R W N e

NN N NN NN =
» 3 a X RBRBEE8 x5 866508238

203.1. The misrepresentations APCO made to SFC as agent for Plaintiffs were justifiably relied
and acted upon by SFC to Plaintiffs’ damage and detriment, Among other things, SFC caused Plaintiffs

to close the Senior Loan trangaction in reliance on the truth of APCO’s misrepresentations.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this <  /Say of Novemiber, 2009.

COOKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY & WOQG

By

“  Martin Muckleroy, Esq.
Nevada Bar No, 009634
3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200
Las Vepas, Nevada 80169
Local Counsel for Plaintiffs

AND

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C,

K. Layne Morrill

Martin A, Aronson

John T. Moshier

One East Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, A7 85012

Counsel for Plaintiffs

4050005 1036903.1 ]
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that on the day of November, 2009, the foregoing PLAINTIFFS® MORE
DEFINITE STATEMENT FRAUD CLAIMS AGAINST DEFENDANT APCO

CONSTRUCTION was served on the following persons by mailing a copy thereof, first class mail,
- postage prepaid, to:

J. Randall Jones

Merk M. Jones

Matthew S. Carter

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Seventeenth Floor

Las Vepas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation and
Bradley L. Scott

Von 8. Heinz

Abran E. Vigil

Ann Marie MeLoughlin

Lewis and Roca LLP

Suite 600

3993 Howard Hughes Parloway
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma

John D. Clayman, Esg.

Frederic Dorwart Lawyers

Old City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103-5010
Aftorneys for Bank of Oklahoma

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esg.
Howard & Howard

3800 Howard Hughes Parlcway
Suite 1400

Las Vegrs, Nevade 82165

| Attorneys for Defendant APCO

AN

n&p]o%ee of Cooksey, Toolen, Gage, Duffy & Woog

405.0005 10365031
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MARK R. DENTON
DISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT THIRTEEN
LAG VEGAS, WV 29155

0123 DISTRICT COlth-F%T DEC 11 2009
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA .
Qe
CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, LLC, et )
al., )
)
Plaintiff(s), ;
VS. ' ) CASE NO. A579963-B
} DEPT.NO. X
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, etal., )
)
Defendant(s). )
AND ALL RELATED CLAIMS. )

ORDER SETTING CIVIL JURY TRIAL,
PRE-TRIAL, AND CALENDAR CALL

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

A. A Jury trial of the above-entitied case has been given a firm setting on a
three week stack to begin, Tuesday, March 8, 2011 at 9:00 a.m. The actual date and
time during the stack will be determined at the calendar call

B. In accordance with EDCR 2.68, a pre-trial conference with the
designated attomeys and/or parties in proper perscn will be held on February 14, 2011
at 2:00 p.m. In addition fo the matters referred to in such rule, the items to be brought
to the calendar call {see below) with reference to EDCR 2.69 will be discussed.

C. A calendar call will be held on February 28, 2011 at 2:00 p.m.

D. All parties (attorneys and parties in proper person) MUST comply with

ALL REQUIREMENTS of EDCR 2.67 prior to the pre-trial conference except that the
due date for the Pre-Trial Memorandum will be established at the pre-trial conference.

As to the Pre-trial Memorandum, counsel should be particularly attentive to their exhibit

—

T e —

Flists and objections to exhibits, as exhibits not listed or objections not made will not be

L

o e ae Ty cie Tt 4w
Q R e 5 ny:
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27
28

MARK H. DENTON
DISTRICT JUDGE

DEPARTMENT THIRTEEN
LAE VEGAS, NV 80153

admitted/allowed over objection based on non-compliance with the Rule’s
requirements. (Also, it is helpful to the Court when counset list pertinent pre-trial
motions and orders pertaining thereto if it is likely that they will be focused on during
trial.}

E. All discovery deadlines, deadlines for ﬁling dispositive motions and
motions to amend the pleadings or add parties are controlled by the previously issued
Case Management Order and/or any amendments or subsequent orders.

F. Counsel are also directed to abide by EDCR 2.47 concerning the time for
filing and noticing motions in limine. Except upon a showing of unforeseen
extraordinary circumstances, the Court will not shorten time for the hearing of any such
motions.

Failure of the designated trial attorney or any party appearing in proper
person to appear for any court appearances or to comply with this Order will
result in any of the following: (1) dismissal of the action; (2) default judgment; (3)
monetary sanctions; (4) vacation of trial date; and/or any other appropriate
remedy or sanction.

Counsel are required to advise the Court immediately when the case setlies or is
otherwise resolved prior to trial. A stipulation which terminates a case by dismissal
ishall also indicate whether a Scheduling Order has been filed and, if a trial date has

been set, the date of that trial.

)
DATED this _/ / %é%%

MARKR. DENTON
DISTRICT JUDGE

2

A D S P TR
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MARK H. DENTON
DISTRICT JWOGE

DEPARTMENT THIRTEEN
LAS VEGAB, NV 83155

CERTIFICATE

i hereby certify that on the date filed, | placed a copy of this Order in the

atiomey’s folder in the Clerk's Office or mailed a copy to:

COOKSEY TOOLEN GAGE DUFFY & WOOG
Attn: Martin A, Muckleroy, Esq.

Martin A. Aronson, Esq.
One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD
Attn; Mark M, Jones, Esg.

HOWARD & HOWARD
Attn: Wade B. Gochnour, Esqg.

LEWIS AND ROCA
Attn: Von S. Helnz, Esq.

John D. Clayman, Esq.
Old City Hall

124 E. Fourth Street
Tulsa, OK 74103

M il

LORRAINE TASHIRQ
Judicial Executive Assistant
Dept. No. Xl
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HOWARD & HOWARD

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Wells Fargo Tower., Suite 1400

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(762) 257-1483
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Electronically Filed

01/25/2010 10:23:34 AM
HOWARD & HOWARD CLERK OF THE COURT

GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3146

WADE B. GOCHNOUR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No, 6314

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 1400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Telephone: (702) 257-1483

Fax: (702) 567-1568

Email: grm@h2law.com -

wh law.com

Attorneys for Defendant
APCO CONSTRUCTION formerty

||ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION

d/bfa APCO Construction

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, CASENO.: A579963
L.L.C., a Nevada limited liability company; DEPT.NO.: X1
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC. , a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D.

THARALDSON,
APCO CONSTRUCTION’S ANSWER
Plaintiffs, TO PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED

vs. COMPLAINT and PLAINTIFFS’ MORE

DEFINITE STATEMENT OF FRAUD
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a CLAIMS; and CROSS-CLAIM
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J.
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,N.A., a
national bank; GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT FRODUCTS
CORPORATION, dba APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada Corporation;
DOE INDIVIDUALS 1 -100, ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1- 100,

Defendants.
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1 || APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada
Corporation formerly named as ASPHALT
2 || PRODUCTS CORPORATION, dba APCO,
3
Cross-Claimant,
4 ‘
5| v |
6 || GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT WEST,
INC.,, a Nevada corporation; SCOTT
7 || FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a North
8 Dakota corporation; DOES I through X,
inclusive,
9
Cross-Defendants,
10
B
g
% § E E 1 APCO CONSTRUCTION’S ANSWER TO PLAINTIFE’S FIRST AMENDED
g ,_%\ g8 12 COMPLAINT and PLAINTIFFS’ MORE DEFINITE STATEMENT OF FRAUD
2 §° BER CLAIMS; and CROSS-CLAIM
TE2R 13
2¥548 Date: N/A
g ‘g [ 4 Time: N/A
§2- 15 |
16 Defendant APCO CONSTRUCTION, formerly known as ASPHALT PRODUCTS
17 || CORPORATION, dba APCO, a Nevada Corporation (“APCO”) by and through their counsel,
18 || Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq., and Wade B. Gochnour, Esg., of the law firm of HOWARD &
19 |[HOWARD hereby files this Answer to the Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and to
20 || Plaintiffs” More Definite Statement Of Fraud Claims Against APCO Construction (Collectively
21 “Amended Complaint”) and alleges as follows:
22 NATURE OF THE ACTION
23 1. Answering Paragraph 1 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have
24 ||sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of the
25 || allegations contained therein, and upon said grounds, denies them. '
26 ||/ '
27 |
28 ||/
Page 2 0f 43
#542805-v1
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1 PLAINTIFES
2 2. Answering Paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not
3 || have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base & belief as to the truth of the
4 || allegations contained therein, and upon said grounds, denies them.
5 3. Answering Paragraph 5 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon information
6 ||and belicf, admits the allegations of Paragraph 5 of the Amended Complaint.
-7 FIDUCIARY DEFENDANTS
8 4, Answering Paragraphs 6, 7 and 8 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not
9 || have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of the
10 || allegations contained therein, and upon said grounds, denies them,
25 % % 11 5. Answering Paragraph 9 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon information
% % g E § 12 || and belief, admits the allegations of Paragraph 9 of the Amended Complaint.
528 13 OWNER DEFENDANT
25 g? ED E 14 6. Answering Paragraph 10 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon information
= § g 3 15 |jand belief, admits that Gemstone Develdpmcnt West Inc, (“Gemstone West, Inc,”) is a Nevada
16 [{corporation and that Gemstone West, Inc. is named as a defendant in this action. As to the
17 || remaining allegations of Paragraph 10 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have
18 ||sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these
19 || remaining allegations and upon said grounds, denies them., |
20 CONTRACTOR DEFENDANT
21 7. Answering Paragraph 11 of the Amended Complaint, APCO admits that it is a
22 |I'Nevada corporation, that its prior corporate name was Asphalt Products Corporation, and that it
23 || was doing business as “APCO” and/or “APCO Construction.” APCO further admits that APCO
24 || contracted with Gemstone West, Inc. to perform work on the Project commonly referred to as
25 ||the Manhattan West Project. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraph 11 of the Amended
26 || Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a
27 |l belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon said gfounds, denies them.
28 ||///
Page 3 of 43
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1 FICTITIOUS DEFENDANTS
2 8, Answering Paragraph 12 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have
3 || sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base 2 belief as to the truth of the
4 || allegations contained therein, and upon said grounds, denies them.
5 SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION
6 9, Answering Paragraphs 13 and 14 of the Amended Complaint, APCO admits that
7 || the above referenced Court has a subject mafter jurisdiction of this action. As to the remaining
8 |l allegations of Paragraphs 13 and 14 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have
9 || sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these
10 || remaining allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
%g % % 11 GENERAL AND PERSONAL JURISDICTION
%%‘gg % 12 10.  Answering Paragraphs 15, 16 and 17 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does
é?ﬁ E. A 8 13 {|not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of the
g § ;’% % g 14 ||allegations contained therein, and upon said grounds, denies them.,
= % é 3 15 11.  Answering Paragraph 18 of the Amended Complaint, APCO admits that this
16 || Court has general jurisdiction over APCO and, upon information and belief, admits that this
17 || Court has general jurisdiction over Gemstone West, Inc. APCO further admits that both APCO
18 || and Gemstone West, Inc. have their principal place of business in Clark County, Nevada.
19 || APCO denies all remaining allegations of Paragraph 18 of the Amended Complaint,
20 VENUE
21 12,  Answering Paragraph 19 of the Amended Complaint, APCO admits that venue
22 ||is appropriate in this Court under NRS 13.010(2)(a) and (¢) because the dispute set forth in the
23 || Amended Complaint involves an interest in real property located in Clark County, Nevada and
24 1{|that the res of the action is the real property located in Clark County, Nevada, As 1o the
25 || remaining allegations of Paragraph 19 of .the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have
26 || sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these
27 || allegations and upon said grounds, denics them.
28 ||/

Page 4 of 43

#542805-v1

12019-001 00530



(Page 5 of 43)

1 GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
2 Plaintiffs’ Business
3 13.  Answering Paragraphs 20, 21, 22, and 23 of the Amended Complaint, APCO
4 |l does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of
5 || these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
6 Scott’s and SFC’s Fidueciary Relationship with Plaintiffs
7 14.  Answering Paragraphs 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, and
8 || 38 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon
9 || which to base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
10 The Manhattan West Project
%%% g il 15.  Answering Paragraphs 39, 40, and 41 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does
§ E"E :;;1 § 12 || not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the fruth of the
43 ;E E,ﬁ_, 13 || allegations contained therein, and upon said grounds, denies them.
%E ;% g’ §, 14 16.  Answering Paragraph 42 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon information
8 § § 3 15 || and belief, admits that Gemstone Development West, LLC was the development entity for the
16 || Manhattan West Project. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraph 42 of the Amended
17 || Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a
18 ||belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
i8 17.  Answering Paragraphs 43, 44 and 45 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon
20 ||information and belief, admits the allegations contained therein.
21 The Manhatian West Acquisition and Development Financing
22 (The Prior Loan and Edelstein Loan) .
23 18, Answering Paragraphs 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58 and 59 of
24 {|the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon
25 || which to base a belicf as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
26 || /i
27 ||/
28 |/
Page 5 043
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1 Subsequent Modifications to Prior Loan and Edelstein Loan
2 19.  Answering Paragraphs 60, 61, 62, 63, 64 and 65 of the Amended Complaint,
3 || APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
4 || truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
5 The Congtruction Financing Syndication
€ (The Senior 1.oan)
7 20.  Answering Paragraphs 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71,72, 73, 74, and 75 of the Amended
8 |{ Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a
9 || belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.,
1o The Senior Loan Documentation and the “Mezzaning Financing™
gg% E 11 21.  Answering Paragraph 76 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon information
E%‘E% ;‘% 12 ||and belief, admits that on or about January 22, 2008, SFC as a lender entered into a Loan
; = % ”{ig 13 || Agreement with Gemstone Development West, Inc., as a borrower. As to the remaining
2 g § En =14 allegations of Parégraph 76 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient
= % g 3 15 |[xnowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining
16 |{allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
17 22, Answering Paragraphs 77, 78, 79, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 89, 90, 91,
18 |{|92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104 and 105 of the Amended Complaint,
19 || APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
20 |{wuth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
21 The Senior Loan Agreement Signature, the Subordination, the Guaranty, the TVI2I
22 Guaranty and the CVFS Participation
23 23.  Answering Paragraphs 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112, and 113 of the
24 || Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to
25 || base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
26 |/
27 (M
28 |1/ff
Page 6 of 43
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1 Subsequent Changes to Loans
2 24,  Answering Paragraphs 114, 115, and 116 of the Amended Complaint, APCO
3 || does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of
" 4 |[these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
5 Default under the Prior Loan, the Edelstein Note, the Mezzanine Loans,
6 the Senior Loan and the Rental LOC Notes
7 25.  Answering Paragraphs 117, 118, 119, 120 and 121 of the Amended Complaint,
8 {{ APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
9 || truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them,
. 10 ‘The Fraudulent Inducement
%% % g 11 26.  Answering Paragraphs 122, 123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 128, 129, 130 and 131 of
§ :iﬁ -g g 12 {{the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon
é i § 1 8 13 which to base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them,
ES E ,;% .ED g 14 Deteriorated Financial P}ospectv.
o EL R 27.  Answering Paragraphs 132, 133, 134 and 135 of the Amended Complaint,
16 || APCO does not bave sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
17 |{truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
18 Primary Reliance on Guarantors.
19 28.  Answering Paragraphs 136, 137 and 138 of the Amended Complaint, APCO
20 || does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of
21 || these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
22 Fraud Relating to the Pre-sale Condition.
23 29.  Answering Paragraphs 139, 140, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147 and 148 of
24 ||the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon
25 || which to base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
26 ||/
27 11/
28 ||/
Page 7 of 43
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HOWARD & HOWARD
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Wells Fargo Tower., Suite 1400

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 257-1483
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Fraud Relating to First Lien Condition.

30,  Answering Paragraph 149, 150, 152, 153, 154, 155 and 156 of the Amended
Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a
belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.,

31.  Answering Paragraph 151 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon information
and belief, admits that SFC wﬁs_ aware that work had been performed on the Project prior to the
recording of the construction loan Deed of Trust. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraph
151 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information
upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon said
grounds, denies them.

Insurance Over Broker Priority; Switched Title Insurance Companles.

32.  Answering Paragraphs 157, 158, 159, 160, 161, 162, 163, 164 and 165 of the
Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to
base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.

Subordination Exacerbates Broken Priority

33,  Answering Paragraphs 166, 167, 168, 169 and 170 of the Amended Complaint,
APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.

Fraud Relating to Terms of Guaranty, the TM2I Guaranty and the Subordination.

34.  Answering Paragraphs 171, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 177, 178, 179, 180, 181
and 182 of tl:e Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient k:now!edgé or information
upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies
them. '

Administration of Senior I.oan
3s. Answering Paragraphs i83, 184, and 185 of the Amended Cqmplaint, APCO

does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of

these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
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36.  Answering Paragraph 186 of the Amended Complaint, APCO admits that
Gemstone Development West, Inc. failed to attempt to resolve the payment issues for the work
performed by APCO and its subconiractors on the Project or otherwise address the change
orders that increased the contract amount to pay for such additional work. As to the remaining
allegations of Paragraph 186 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient
knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining
allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.

37.  Answering Paragraph 187 of the Amended Complaint, APCO admits that
Gemstone Development West, Inc, failed to pay for the work performed by APCO and the
subcontractors which resulted in construction liens filed against the Project, including that of
APCO, As to the remaining allegations of Paragraph 187 of the Amended Complaint, APCO
does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of
these remaining allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.

Defamatory Statements

38,  Answering Paragraphs 188, 189, 190 and 191 of the Amended Complaint,
APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.

Termination of SFC’s Asency on Prior Loans, the Edelstein Loan,
the Mezzanine Loans and the Senior Loan

39,  Answering Paragraphs 192 and 193 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not

have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these
allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
Punitive DPamages

40,  Answering Paragraphs 194, 195, 196, 197, 198 and 199 of the Amended
Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a
belief as to the truth of these aliegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
i |
i
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FIRST CLAIM OF RELIEF
(Fraudulent Misrepresentation)

41,  Answering Paragraph 200 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 40 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

42.  Answering Paragraph 201, 202, 212 and 216 of the Amended Complaint, APCO
does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of
these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them,

43,  Answering Paragraphs 203, including Paragraphs 203.A through 203.I of
Plaintiff’s More Definite Statement of Fraud Claims, and 210 of the Amended Complaint,
APCO denies each and every allegation contained therein.

44.  Answering Paragraphs 204, 205, 206, 207, 208, 209, 211, 213, 214, and 215 of
the Amended Complaint, APCO denies each and every allegation contained therein as they are
asserted against or otherwise relate to APCO. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraphs
204, 205, 206, 207, 208, 209, 211, 213, 214, and 215 of the Amended Complaint as they are
made or relate to the Fiduciary Defendants as defined in the Amended Complaint or any other
Defendant in this action, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which

to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon said grounds, denies

them.
SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
{(Fraudulent Concealment/Fraudalent Omissions)

45.  Answering Paragraph 217 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges cach and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 44 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

46.  Answering Paragraphs 218, 219, 220, 221, 223 and 225 of the Amended
Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information ﬁpon which to base a

belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
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1 47.  Answering Paragraphs 222 and 224 of the Amended Complaint, APCO denies
2 || each and every allegation contained therein as they are asserted against or otherwise relate to
3 || APCO. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraphs 222 and 224 of the Amended Complaint
4 |jas they arc made or relate to any other Defendants in this action, APCO does not have
5 ||sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these
6 || remaining allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
7 THIRD CLATM OF RELIEF
8 | (Constructive Fraud)
9 48.  Answering Paragraph 226 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
10 ||realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through.47 of this
g % % % 11 || Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
%%‘gﬁ % 12 49, Answering Paragraphs 227, 228, 229, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234 and 236 of the
5 % [go ig 13 || Amended Complaint, APCC does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to
; E § E 14 ||base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
g2~ 15 50.  Answering Paragraph 235 of the Amended Complaint, APCO denies each and
16 || every allegation contained therein as they are asserted against or otherwise relate to APCO. As
17 ||to the remaining allegations of Paragraph 235 of the Amended Complaint as they are made or
18 {jrelate to any other Defendants in this action, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or
19 |l information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon
20 || said grounds, denies them.
21 FOURTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
22 (Negligent Misrepresentation/Negligent Omission)
23 51,  Answering Paragraph 237 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
24 |irealleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphsi through 50 of this
25 || Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
26 52.  Answering Paragraphs 238, 239, 240, 241, 242, 243, 244, 245, 246, 247 and 249
27 || of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon
28 || which to base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said gro:;mds, denies them.
Page 11 of 43
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53.  Answering Paragraph 248 of the Amended Complaint, APCO denies each and
every allegation contained therein as they are asserted against or otherwise relate to APCO. As
to the remaining allegations of Paragraphs 248 of the Amended Complaint as they are made or
relate to any other Defendants in this action, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or
information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon
said grounds, denies them.

FIFTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
(Secarities Fraud ~Violation of NRS 90.211 et. seq.)

54,  Answering Paragraph 250 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges cach and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 53 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

55. Answering Paragraphs 251, 252, 253, 254, 255, 256, 258, 259, 260, 261, 262
and 263 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information
upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies
them.

56. Answering Paragraph 257 of the Amended Complaint, APCO denies each and
every allegation contained therein as they arc asserted against or otherwise relate to APCO. As
to the remaining allegations of Paragraph 257 of the Amended Complaint as they are made or
relate to any other Defendants in this action, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or
information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon
said grounds, denies them.

SIXTH CLATM OF RELIEF
(Defamation)

57.  Answering Paragraph 264 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 56 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

i
i
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1 58.  Answering Paragraphs 265, 266, 267, 268, 269 and 270 of the Amended
2 || Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a
3 |l belief as to the truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
4 SEVENTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
5 (Breach of Fiduciary Duty)
6 59,  Answering Paragraph 271 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
7 ||realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 58 of this
8 || Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
9 60.  Answering Paragraphs 272, 273, 274 and 275 of the Amended Complaint,
_ 10 || APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
a g % % 11 || truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them,
3 %gg g 12 EIGHTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
5 E % Eaﬁ 13 (Damages —-BOK, Aiding and Abetting Breach of Fiduciary Duty)
gé E s J 14 61.  Answering Paragraph 276 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
m% g . 15 || realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 60 of this
16 || Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
17 62.  Answering Pai'agraphs 277, 278, 279 and 280 of the Amended Complaint,
18 |} APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
19 ||truth of these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
20 NINTH CLAIM.OF RELIEF
21 (Acting in Concert/Civil Conspiracy)
22 63. - Answering Paragraph 281 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
23 || realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 62 of this
24 |! Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
25 64. Answering Paragraphs 282, 283, 284 and 285 of the Amended Complaint,
26 ||APCO denies each and every allegation contained therein as they are asserted against or
27 || otherwise relate to APCO. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraphs 282, 283, 284 and
28 ||285 of the Amended Complaint as they are made or relate to other Defendants in this action,
Page 13 of 43
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APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the
truth of these remaining allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.
TENTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
(Breach of Contract)

65.  Answering Paragraph 286 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges each and every answer and allegation-contained in paragraphs I through 64 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

66.  Answering Paragraphs 287, 288, and 289 of the Amended Complaint, APCO
does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of
these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them,

ELEVENTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
(Damages —Breach of Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing)

67.  Answering Paragraph 290 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 66 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

68.  Answering Paragraphs 291 and 292 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not
have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these
allegations and upon sa_.id grounds, denies them,

69.  Answering Paragraphs 293 and 294 of the Amended Complaint, APCO denies
each and every allegation contained therein as they are asserted against or otherwise relate to
APCOI. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraphs 293 and 294 of the Amended Complaint
as they are made or relate fo other Defendants in this action, APCO does not have sufficient
knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining
allegations and upon said grounds, denies them,

i
"
1/
"
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TWELFTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
(Negligence) ‘

70.  Answering Paragraph 295 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs 1 through 69 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

71. Answering Paragraphs 296, 297 and 298 of the Amended Complaint, APCO
does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of
these allegations and upon said grounds, denies them.

THIRTEENTH CLAIM OF RELIEF
(Declaratory Judgment)

72.  Answering Paragraph 299 of the Amended Complaint, APCO repeats and
realleges each and every answer and allegation contained in paragraphs I through 71 of this
Answer to the Amended Complaint as though fully set forth herein,

73. Answering Paragraph 300 of the Amended Complaint, APCO, upon
information and belief, admits that Gemstone Development West, Inc. is the owner of the
Property and Project subject to this action. As to the remaining allegations of Paragraph 300 of
the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or information upon
which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon said grounds,
denies them.

74,  Answering Paragraph 301 of the Amended Complaint, APCO admits that APCO
was the initial contractor of the Manhattan West Project. As to the remaining allegations of
Paragraph 301 of the Amended Complaint, APCO does not have sufficient knowledge or
information upon which to base a belief as to the truth of these remaining allegations and upon
said grounds, denies them:.

75.  Answering Paragraphs 302, 303, 304, 305, 306, 307, 308, 309, 310, and 311 of
the Amended Complaint, APCO denies each and every allegation contained therein.

1/
i
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GENERAL DENIALS
Any and all allegations in the Amended Complaint not expressly admitted or otherwise
responded to by APCO in this Answer are hereby denied.
FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs have failed to state a claim against APCO upon which relief can be granted.
SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
The claims of the Plaintiffs have been waived as a result of their acts and conduct.
THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
APCO’s notice of lien against the Property or the Project has priority over any deeds of

trusts or mortgages on the Property pursuant to Nevada law,
FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Any and all damages sustained by the Plaintiffs are the result of negligence, breach of

contract and breach of warranty, express and/or implied, of a third-party over whom APCO has -

no control.
FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
At the time and place under the circumstances alleged by the Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs had

full and complete knowledge and information in regard to the conditions and circumstances
then and there existing, and through Plaintiffs’ own knowledge, conduct, acts and omissions,
assumed the risk attendant to any condition there or then present.
SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Whatever damages, if any, were sustained by the Plaintiffs, were caused in whole or in

part or were contributed to by reason of Plaintiffs’ own actions.
SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The lability, if any, of APCO must be reduced by the percentage of fault of others,

including the Plaintiffs.
' EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Plaintiffs are estopped from pursuing any claim against APCO.

s
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NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
The alleged damages complained of by the Plaintiffs were caused in whole or in part by
a new, independent and intervening cause over wlﬁc’:h APCO had no control. Said independent,
intervening causc was the result of any alleged damages resulting to the Plaintiffs.
TENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs have failed to name indispensable pariies.
ELEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
APCO is not liable to the Plaintiffs.
TWELFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The damages, if any, were caused in whole or in part, or were contributed to by reason

of the negligence of the Plaintiffs,
THIRTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
APCO alleges that its or its subcontractor’s work, products, materials and services on
the Project were performed in compliance with all applicable laws, building codes and/or
governmental regulations enacted by the State of Nevada, and any applicable political
subdivision of the State of Nevada.
FOURTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs have failed to plead with sufficient specificity any fraud against APCO.
FIFTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

APCO denies that it was a joint tort-feasor or acting in concert with the remaining

Defendants in this action,
SIXTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
APCO has been foroed to retain the services of an attorney fo defend this action and
therefore, is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees,
SEVENTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs failed to mitigate their damages.
EIGHTEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The doctrine of unclean hands prevents any recovery by Plaintiffs.
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NINETEENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs are not entitled to the declaratory relief or other remedies requested.

TWENTIETH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs had full knowledge of all of the actions alleged against APCO through their

authorized agent(s).
TWENTY-FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs lack standing to bring these actions against APCO.
TWENTY-SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

APCO alleges that APCO performed no acts or omissions relevant to the subject matter

of the Plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint such as would create any liability or duty whatsoever on
the part of APCO.
TWENTY-THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
The incident alleged in the Plaintiffs’ Amended Complaint, and the resulting damage, if

any, to Plaintiffs, was proximately caused or contributed to by its own negligence, and such
negligence was greater that the negligence, if any, of APCO.
TWENTY-FOURTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Plaintiffs’ claims against APCO are barred for failure of consideration.
TWENTY-FIFTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
Plaintiffs’ claims are barred due to the intervening, vested rights of APCO and third-

parties.
TWENTY-SIXTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Any term of a contract that attempts to waive or impair the lien rights of a contractor,

subcontractor or supplier is void pursuant to Nevada law, including but no limited to NRS
108.2453 and NRS 108,2457,
TWENTY-SEVENTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
The alleged agreement referred to in the Amended Complaint was void for want of any

consideration whatsoever.
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TWENTY-EIGHTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

The damages, if any, suffered by Plaintiffs were avoidable to them prior to,
contemporaneously with, and subsequent to, all acts or omissions allegedly committed by
APCO.

TWENTY-NINTH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
APCO is not liable to Plaintiffs for any damages claimed in the Amended Complaint.
THIRTIETH AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Because the Amended Complaint is couched in conclusory and vague terms, APCO
cannot fully anticipate all affirmative defenses that may be applicable to this case. Accordingly,
APCO reserves the right fo assert additional affirmative defenses.

THIRTY-FIRST AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Plaintiffs’ claims are barred under the docirines of estoppel and/or waiver.
THIRTY-SECOND AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE
The damages, if any, suffered by Plaintiffs were avoidable by Plaintiffs prior to,
contemporaneously with, and subsequent to all of the acts or omissions allegedly committed by
APCO.
THIRTY-THIRD AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE

Pursuant to NRCP Rule 8 and 11, as amended, all possible affirmative defenses may not

have been alleged herein insofar as sufficient facts were not available after reasonable inquiry
upon the filing of this Answer to the Amended Complaint, and therefore, APCO reserves the
right to amend its Answer to allege additiona! affirmative defenses if subsequent investigation
S0 warrants.

WHERFEFORE, APCO prays for judgment as follows:

1. That Plaintiffs take nothing by way of their Amended Complaint on file herein
and that the same be dismissed with prejudice;

2, For an award of attorneys’ fees and costs incurred herein by APCO; and

3. For such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.
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CROSS-CLAIM

APCO CONST‘RUCTiON (“*APCO”), by and through its attorneys, the law firm of
Howard and Howard, and hereby alleges as follows:

1. Upon information and belief, Cross-Defendant GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT
WEST, INC. (“Gemstone”) is a Nevada corporation, and is the owner of the Manhattan West
Mixed-Use Development Project, commonly referred to as 9205 W, Russell Road, 9215 W.
Russell Road, 9255 W. Russell Road, 9265 W. Russell Road, and 9275 W, Russell Road, Clark
County, Nevada and described in the contract with APCO as being located on Assessors Parcel
Numbers 163-32-101-003, 163-32-101-004, 163—32-101-005, 163-32-101-010 and 163-32-101-
014 but initially listed by the Clark County Assessors Office as APN #163-32-101-019, and
then well after commencement of construction was subdivided into 163-32-101-019; 163-32-
101-020; 163-32-101-022; 163-32-101-023 and 163-32-112-001 through 163-32-112-246,
inclusive together with an undivided allocated fractional interest in and to amy common
elements on said property (*Property”). Lots identified as 163-32-112-001 through 163-32-
112-246 consist of Buildings 2, 3, 7, 8 and 9 of Manhattan West, Phase 1. Each separate
condominium unit in Buildings 2, 3, 7, 8 and 9 is more fully identified in Exhibit 1 attached
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference), The entire Property is described by the Clark
County Assessor’s Office as PT NE4 NW4 SEC 32 21 60, SEC 32 TWP 21 RNG 60 and more
fully described in that certain Grant Bargain Sale Deed recorded on February 7, 2008 in Book
20080207 as Instrument No. 01481 of the Offictal Records of Clark County Recorder.

2. That the true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate, associate or
otherwise of those Cross-Defendants (jointly referred to as “Defendants™) named herein as
Dees I through X, are Defendants presently unknown to APCO, who therefore sues said
Defendants by such fictitious names and APCO will seek leave to amend this Amended
Complaint to show their true names and capacities when the same has been ascertained. APCO
believes that the Doe Defendants are individuals or entities within the jurisdiction of this Coust,
who may be holders of promissory notes secured by deeds of trust recorded against the subject

property, an ownership or leasehold interest of the property, may be responsible for monies due
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1 {land owing to APCO, may be interfering with payments due to APCO, or are otherwise
2 -neglige_nt or responsible in some manner for events referred to in this Amended Complaint, and
3 |i caused damages approximately thereby to APCO as alleged herein.
4 3. APCO and Gemstone entered into the ManhattanWest General Construction
5 || Agreement for GMP, dated September 6, 2007 (the “Agreement”).
6 4, The Agreement was drafted by Gemstone.
7 5. Pursuant to the Agreement, APCO was to act as the General Contractor for the
8 || construction of the Manhattan West Mixed-Use development project located on the Property
9 |i{the “Project™).
10 6. The Project was to be constructed in two phases, with the first Phase consisting
g % % % 11 || of the construction of five (5) buildings.
§ %‘;@ 3 % 12 7. APCO performed its work on the Project pursuant to the Agreement.
SEED bg 13 8  Almost from the beginning of the Project, APCO had difficulty obtaining
% E ,i% :gb S 14 required information from Gemstone.
i % § 3 15 9. Gemstone also began making changes to the plans and specifications from the
16 beginning of APC(’s work on the Project.
17 10.  During the course of the construction of the Project, Gemstone continued to
18 || make changes in the plans and specifications, including changes to the electrical, plumbing and
19 ||HVAC plans.
20 11.  As changes were made, APCO would submit requests for change orders to
21 (| Gemstone,
22 12,  Many of the changes made by Gemstone affected the timing and sequence of the
23 |{Project. As aresult, APCO also made several requests for an extension of time to complete the
24 || buildings, which were part of Phase I of the Project.
25 13,  With very limited exceptions, Gemstone wouid find excuses to ignore or
26 || otherwise refuse to approve the change orders submitted by APCO.
27 14.  This included a refusal to approve requests for extensions of the Agreement
28 || schedule.
Page 21 of 43
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1 15.  In order to keep the Project moving, APCO continued to work on the Project
2 || and incorporate the changes made despite Gemstone’s refusal to approve the change orders.
3 16.  On or about June 20, 2008, APCO submitted its Application and Certification
4 || For Payment for the month ending May 31, 2008, requesting a fotal amount of $3,230,671.71
5 || (the “May Application?).
6 17.  Without prior warning, on or about July 2, 2008, Gemstone sent a letter to
7 || APCO, giving APCO notice of Gemstone’s intent to withhold the sum of $226,360.88 from
8 || APCO’s May Application, which represented APCO’s fee for the billing period.
9 18.  On or about July 8, 2008, APCO provided Gemstone its written notice of
10 || APCO’s dispute of the intended withholding.
gg % % 11 19.  As of July 17, 2008, Gemstone still had not paid APCO any sums due for the
§ %‘i wé § 12 || May Application. _
it % < 2‘ 13 20. As a result of Gemstone's failure to make any payment, APCO provided
ggg % © 14 || Gemstone with written notice of APCQ’s intent to stop work pursuant to NRS 624.610, if
% S 15 || APCO was not paid in full for the May Application, by July 28, 2008.
16 21.  After recciving the stop work notice, Gemstone paid APCO all amounts under
17 || the May Application except for the sum of $226,360.88.
18 22.  As aresult of Gemstone’s failure to make full payment, APCO stopped work on
19 |lthe Project. ‘
20 23.  After APCO stopped work on the Project, Gemstone paid APCO the outstanding
.21 sum of $226,360.88 from the May Application, and as a result, APCO returned to work on the
22 || Project.
23 24.  During this time, APCO and Gemstone exchanged correspondence regarding
24 |Imany of the change order requests submitted by APCO, and Gemstone’s failure and/or refusal
25 ||to act upon or otherwise respond to the change order requests. ‘
26 25, NRS 624.610(1)(d) provides:
27 (d) Within 30 days after the date that a written request for a
28 change order is sui?mitted by the prime contractor to the
owner, the owner fails to:
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(1) Issue the change order; or

(2) If the request for a change order is unreascnable
or does not contain sufficient information to make a
determination, give written notice to the prime contractor
of the reasons why the change order is unreasonable or
explain that additional information and time are necessary
to make a determination . . .

26.  NRS 624.610(3) provides:

3. If an owner fails to issue a change order or give
written notice to the prime contractor pursuant {o the
provisions of paragraph (d) of subsection 1:

(a) The agreement price must be increased by the
amount sought in the request for a change order;

(b) The time for performance must be extended by
the amount sought in the request for a change order;

(c) The prime contractor may submit to the owner a
bill or invoice for the labor, materials,- equipment or
services that are the subject of the request for a change
order; and

(d) The owner shall pay the prime contractor for
such labor, materials, equipment or services with the next
payment made to the prime contractor.

'27.  On or about July 18, 2008, APCO submitted its Application and Certification
For Payment for the month ending June 30, 2008; requesting a total amount of $6,566,720.38
{the “June Application™}.

28.  Because Gemstone had simply not responded to several change order requests
submitted by APCO, the June Application included these undisputed change order requests as
provided for in NRS 624.610.

29,  Afier submission of the June Application, some discussions were held between
APCO and Gemstone, and APCO agreed to accept less than all of the undisputed change
orders.

30, Even afler this agreement, on or about August 6, 2008, Gemstone provided
APCO with notice of its intent to withhold the additional sum of $1,770,444.28, representing

“a]l unapproved change order requests included in the June Progress Payment.”
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1 31, As of August 8, 2008, the date payment was due for the June Application,
2 || Gemstone had not made any payment for the June Application.
3 32, As a result of Gemstone’s failure to make any payment on the June Application,
4 || APCO sent its notice of intent to stop work on Monday, August 11, 2008, noting that if APCO
5 || was not paid by August 21, 2008, APCO would stop work on the Project.
6 33.  Aficr receipt of APCO’s written notice of intent to stop work for non-payment,
7 || Gemstone sent a letter on Friday, August 15, 2008, claiming that APCO was in breach of the
8 |l contract and that Gemstone would terminate the Agreement for cause if the alleged breaches
9 || were not cured by Sunday, August 17, 2008 (the “Termination Letter”),
10 34.  The Termination Letter actually set out what Gemstone stated were “Immediate
g g % % 11 || Termination Breaches” and the “Curable Breaches.”
§§»§ g % i2 35,  As part of the “Immediate Termination Breaches,” Gemstone included several
it E EE 13 ||items of work that had been completed by APCO months before, as Gemstone’s grounds for
2 E pg.n §= £ 14 {| termination of the Agreement. More specifically, Gemstone claimed APCO to be in breach for
i % § 3 15 || failure to supply rebar and concrete workers for concrete work. APCO and ifs subcontractors
16 || completed this work months before the Gemstone’s notice.
17 36. APCO, through its counsel, responded to each of the alleged grounds for
18 |{termination on August 15, 2008, the same day that APCO received the Termination Letter, and
19 || noted that APCO would continue to work on the Project.
20 37, Also on August 15, 2008, despite the cure period still being in effect, Gemstone
21 {}improperly contacted several of APCO Subcontractors for the Project, notifying them that
22 || Gemstone was terminating its Agreement with APCO as of Monday, August 18, 2008, and that
23 || Gemstone already had a replacement general contractor in place.
24 38.  On Monday, August 18, 2008, while at the Project site, Gemstone’s CEO, Alex
25 || Bdelstein, asked the APCO site personnel why they were still on the Project since they had
26 ||been terminated.
27 39. As a result of these statements, APCO asked for written confirmation of
28 || Gemstone’s position, and noted that APCO intended to continue to work on the Project until
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Gemstone no longer allowed APCO on the Project site, or until the deadline for APCO’s stop
work notice had run.

40,  Ultimately, APCO was not paid for the June Application and stopped work on
the Project on August 21, 2008, and provided Gemstone with written notice of APCO’s intent
to terminate the Agreement on September 5, 2008,

41. Gemstone, without -valid cause or reason, informed APCO that is was
proceeding with its improper termination and ordered APCO off of the Project by Saturday,
August 23, 2008.

42,  Since payment for the June Application was not made in full by Gemstone, the
Agreement terminated pursuant to APCO’s notice of termination on September 5, 2008,
pursuant to NRS 624.610. '

43.  After impropeﬂy removing APCO from the Project, Gemstone agreed to issue
joint checks to some of the subcontractors in an effort to induce the subcontractors to return to
work on the Project for the replacement General Contractor.

44,  Gemstone has further notified APCO of Gemstone’s intent to withhold any
further payment to APCO.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach of Contract - Gemstone)

45.  APCO repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
through 44 as though fully set forth herein.

46,  There was a valid and enforceable contract between APCO and Gemstone.

47.  APCO complied with the material terms of the Agreement. |

48.  Gemstone materially breached the Agreement by, among other things:

a. Failing to make payments due to APCO,
b. Interfering with APCO’s relationships with its subcontractors;

¢. Refusing to review, negotiate or consider change order requests in good

faith;
d. Failing to timely provide fully approved construction documents;

Page 25 of 43

#542805-v1

12019-001

00571



(Page 26 of 43

1 e. Removing APCO from the Project without valid or appropriate grounds;
2 and
3 f. Otherwise breaching the terms of the Agreement.
4 49.  As g result of Gemstone's material breach of the Agreement, APCO has been
5 |!damaged in an amount in excess of $10,000.
6 50.  APCO is entitled to pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on all amounts
7 || found due and owing,
B 51.  APCO has been forced to retain the services of an attorney in this matter, and
9 || APCO is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees and costs incurred.
10 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
g g % % 11 (Breach of the Duty of Good Faith and Fair Dealing - Gemstone)
E _g‘g, | '%; 12 52,  APCO repcats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
% § 5 g 13 |{ through 51 as though fully set forth herein,
g g ﬁ% :gn = 14 53.  There is an implied duty of good faith and fair dealing implied in all contracts in
- g é 3 15 || the state of Nevada.
16 534.  QGemstone bas breached the duty of good faith and fair dealing by performing in
17 || a manner that was unfaithful to the purpose of the contract by among other things:
18 a. Refusing to consider change order requests secking additional time due
1% to Gemstone’s changes of the Project plans and specifications;
20 b. Insisting, that the despite the many changes made by Gemstone, that the
21 original schedule be followed, and by attempt'ing to use the oﬁginal
22 schedule to justify withholding sums due to APCO;
23 c. Creating a pretext for the alleged termination of APCO for cause after
24 receiving APCO’s notice of intent to stop work for non-payment;
25 d. Citing items of work that had been completed for months as a basis for,
26 the alleged termination of the contract; and
27 e. Employing another General Contractor and notifying APCO’s
28 subconiractors of Gemstone’s intent to replace APCO on the same day
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i that Gemstone provided APCO notice of its right to cure the alleged
2 breaches of the Agreement.
3 55.  As a result of Gemstone’s breach of the duty of good faith and fair dealing,
4 || APCO has been damaged in an amount in excess of $10,000.
5 56, APCO is entitled to pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on all amounts
6 || found due and owing. '
7 57.  Gemstone’s actions were intentional and malicious and evidence a wanton and
8 || reckless disregard of APCO’s rights and APCO is therefore entitled to punitive damages in
9 |} excess of $10,000.
i0 58.  APCO has been forced to retain the services of an attorney in this matter, and
g _‘g g % 11 || APCO is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees and costs incurred.
& g gg § 12 THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
g o Eﬁ i3 (Vielation of NRS 624 Prompt Payment Act - Gemstone)
E ;g %% § g 14 59,  APCO repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
E 2 15 || through 58 as though fully set forth herein.
1l 60.  Gemstone violated NRS 624.609 by irnlﬁropcrly- withholding payments due to
17 || APCO,
18 61.  Gemstone violated NRS 624.610 by failing to approve or give written notice of
19 |} the reasons why change order requests were not being approved within 30 days.
20 62. Gemstone further violated NRS 624,610 by failing to pay for change order
21 || requests that were deemed approved pursuant {o the statute.
22 63.  APCO provided Gemstone with written notice of APCO’s intent to stop work if
23 || payment was not made, and stopped work after payment was not made.
24 64.  After stopping work, APCO provided Gemstone with written notice of APCO’s
25 |{}intent to terminate the Agreement.
26 65.  APCO has now terminated the Agreement in accordance with the terms of NRS
27 [|624.610,
28 66.  APCO is entitled to the remedies set forth in NRS 624.610.
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67. APCO is entitled to pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on all amounts
found due and owing,
68.  APCO has been forced to retain the services of an attorney in this matter, and
APCQ is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees and costs incurred.
FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Defamation - Gemstone)
69.  APCO repeats and realleges each and every aliegation contained in paragraphs !
through 68 as though fully set forth herein.
70. Gemstone has made false and defamatory statements about APCO, including,
but not limited to:
a. That Gemstone has “recorded Over (sic) 60 distinct contract breaches”
by APCO;
b. That subconiractor change orders were not being approved because
APCO commingled the subcontractor change order with illegitimate
change order requests from APCO;
¢. That APCO owes Gemstone a great deal of damages;
d. That APCO “squandered” time on the Project; and
e. That APCO was more interested in “CYA activities and. unjustified
change order requests” than the Project schedule.
71.  Gemstone published these and other false and defamatory statements to third
parties,
72.  The publication by Gemstone was not privileged.
73. Gemstone knew, or should have known, that the statements were false and
defamatory.
74.  The statements by Gemstone would tend to injure APCO in its trade, business
and/or profession, and therefore are defamation per se.
75.  As aresult of Gemstone’s defamatory statements, APCO has been damaged in

an amount to be determined at trial, which sum is in excess of $10,000.00,
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76.  Gemstone’s actions were intentional and malicious and evidence a wanton and
reckless disregard of APCO, and APCO is therefore entitled to punitive damages in excess of
$10,000.

77.  APCO has been forced to retain the services of an attorney in this matter, and
APCO is entitled to an award of attorney’s fees and costs incurred.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Declaratory Relief - Gemstone) -

78.  APCO repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
through 77 as though fully set forth herein. _

79.  There exists a justiciable controversy between APCO and Gemstone as to the
terms of the Agreement, the effect of Gemstone’s purported fermination of the Agreement,
APCO’s termination of the Agreement, and the legal rights and remedies of the pariies,

80.  The interests of APCO and Gemstone arc adverse.

81.  APCO has a legally protectible interest in the coniroversy between itself and
Gemstone. '

82,  The issues are ripe for judicial determination.

83.  APCO has been forced to retain the services of an attorney in this matter, and
APCO is entitied to an award of attorney’s fees and costs incurred.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
{(Unjust Enrichment against Gemstone and SFC)

84,  APCO repeats and realleges each and every a.llegation contained in paragraphs 1
through 83 as though fully set forth herein. '

85. APCO furnished work on the Project for the benefit of Gemstone, Scott
Financial Corporation (“SFC™), the owners, reputed owners or those parties that may have an
interest in the Property at the specific instance and request of Gemstone.

86, Gemstone, SFC, owners, reputed owners and those parties ﬁ1at may have an
interest in the Property accepted, used and enjoyed the benefit of the work that APCO provided
on the Project.
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1 87. Gemstone, SFC, owners, reputed owners and those parties that may have an
2 || interest in the Property knew, or should have known, that APCO expected to be paid for the
3 {| work that APCO furnished on the Project.
4 88. APCO has demanded that Gemstone pay the sums outstanding for the Work
5 || furnished by APCO on the Project through the date of termination in the total sum of
6 |(|$20,782,659.93.
7 89, To date, Gemstone, owners, reputed owners and those parties that may have an
8 |l interest in the Property, and each of them, have failed, neglecied and refused to pay said sums
9 |to the detriment of APCO.
. 10 90. Gemstone, SFC, owners, reputed owners and those parties that may have an
g % % % 11 ||interest in the Property have been unjustly enriched to the detriment of APCO.
E%"?g% 12 91, It has been necessary for APCO to engage the services of an attomey, and
é L é < E 13 || APCO is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as damages.
g g 58 14 SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
= % § 3 15 (Monies Due and Owing Against - Gemstone)
16 92.  APCO repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
17 || through 91 as though fully set forth herein.
1B 93. Up to the date of termination by APCO for Gemstone’s failure to pay, APCO
19 || has performed all terms and conditions of the agreement executed between the parties and has
20 |l not been paid for all sums justly due and owing.
21 94,  The monies due and owing to APCO by Gemstone are in excess of $10,000.00
22 ||according to proof at trial.
23 95. It has been necessary for APCO to engage the services of an attorney and APCO
24 ||is entitied to reasonable attorneys® fees and costs as damages.
25 EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
26 (Interference with Contractual Relations against - Gemstone)
27 96.  APCO repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
28 ||through 95 as though fully set forth herein.
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1 97.  There exists a valid contract between APCO and its subcontractors foxj the work
2 || on the Project.
3 98.  Gemstone knew of the contracts between APCO and subcontractors.
4 99.  Gemstone committed intentional acts intended or designed to disrupt or interfere
5 || with the contractual relationship that existed between APCO and its subcontractors.
6 100. Gemstone caused substantial interference and delay in APCO’s ability to
7 || perform under the contacts between APCO and its subcontractors,
B 101,  There was an actual disruptioﬁ of the confracts.
9 102.  As a result of Gemstone’s interference with APCO’s contractual relations with
. 10 ||its subcontractors and disruption of APCO’s ability to perform thereunder, APCO has suffered
% .% ;% g 11 || substantial damages, in an amount in excess of $10,000.00.
g%%g § 12 103. Gemstone's actions were intentional and malicious and evidence a wanton and
g g éf«i 13 {{reckless distegard of APCO and APCO is therefore entitled to exemplary and/or punitive
gg §° go E 14 || damages in excess of $10,000.
8 § § 3 15 104. Tt has been necessary for APCO to engage the services of an attorney and APCO
16 {|is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as damages.
17 NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
is (Fraud Against Gemstone and SFC)
19 105. APCO repeats and realieges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
20 || through 104 as though fully set forth herein.
21 106. Gemstone approached APCO to be the general contractor on the Project.
22 107. The original contract price for the work on the Project to be performed by
23 || APCO and its subcontractor was the sum of $153,472,300.00.
24 108." Prior to the execution of the agreement, Gemstone and SFC, through their
25 ||agents, made certain representations that were material and induced APCO to execute the
26 |i agreement,
27
28
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109, More specifically, Gemstone and SFC represented to APCO that there was
sufficient funding to pay for all the work to be performed by APCO and its subcontractors to
complete the Project on the Property.

110, Gemstone and SFC fuﬁher represented that they had the ability to pay for all the
work performed by APCO and its subcontractors on the Project and that funding for the Project
was in place.

111. Gemstone and SFC knew or should have known that the conditions for financing
were not properly met and the representations made by Gemstone and SFC to APCO were false
and Gemstone and SFC knew them fo be false when they were made.

112. In reliance upon those representations, APCO entered into a contract for
construction with Gemstone.

113. APCO would not have entered into the agreement had APCO known that those
representations were false and untrue. ‘

114.  As a result of those false representations, which caused and induced APCO to
enter into the agreement with Gemstone, APCO has been damaged in excess of $10,000.00.

115. Gemstone and SFC misrepresentations warrant the imposition of exemplary
and/or punitive damages in excess of $10,000.00,

116. It has been necessary for APCO to engage the services of an attorney ami APCO
is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as damages.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION |

(Negligent Misrepresentation against Gemstone and SFC
Plead in the Alternative)

117,  APCO repeats and realieges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
through 116 as though fully set forth herein.

118. Gemstone and SFC were negligent in their representations as set forth in
paragraphs 105 through 116, above.

119.  As a result of Gemstone and SFC’s negligent representations, APCO executed

the agreement.
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1 120. As a direct, proximate and foreseeable result of APCQ’s reliance upon
2 Gémstone and SFC negligent representations, APCO has been damaged in an amount in excess
3 || of $10,000.00.
4 121, It has been necessary for APCO to engage the services of an aftorney and APCO
5 {|is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as damages.
6 ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
7 (Priority over Deeds of Trast)
8 122. APCO repeats and reatleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
9 |ithrough 121 as though fully set forth herein. '
10 123.  Upon information and belief, Gemstone Apache, LLC was the Trustor on the
% _g % % 11 || Deeds of Trust recorded on July 5, 2006 in Book 20060705 as Instrument Nos. 04264, 04265
§E§;‘§>v§§ 12 ||and 04266, in the office of the County Recorder for Clark County, Nevada, as amended
L E % R 13 (“Mezzanine Deed of Trust™).
gg %n % g 14 124.  Upon information and belief, First American Title Insurance Company (“First
§ z 15 || American”) is the trustee of the Deeds of Trust recorded on July 5, 2006 in Book 20060705 as
16 || Instrument Nos. 04264, 04265 and 04266, in the office of the County Recorder for Clark
17 || County, Nevada, as amended, on February 7, 2008 as Instruments Nos. 01484 and 01485 and
18 ||the Second Amendment to Third Deed of Trust and Security Agreement with Assignment of
19 {| Rents and Fixture Filing Line of Credit, recorded on September 9, 2008 against the Property, in
20 || Book 20080909 as Instrument No. 03943 of the Official Records of Clark County Nevada.
21 125.  Upon information and belief, Gemstone acquired the Property from Gemstone
22 || Apache, LLC on or around February 7, 2007 and assumed the Mezzanine Deeds of Trust,
" 23 || which have been amended to secure payment of the restructured mezzanine note.
2q. 126. Upon information and belief, Gemstone is the Trustor on the Senior Debt Deed
25 [|of Trust, recorded on February 7, 2008 against the Property, in Book No. 20080207 as
26 || Instruments No. 01482 (“Construction Deed of Trust”) as well as the Mezzanine Deed of Trust,
27 ||as amended on February 7, 2008 by Instruments Nos. 01484 and 01485 and the Second
28 || Amendment to Third Deed of Trust and Security Agreement with Assignment of Rents and
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Fixture Filing Line of Credit, recorded on September 9, 2008 against the Property, in Book
20080909 as Instrument No. 03943 of the Official Records of Clark County Nevada.

127. Upon information and belief, Commonwealth Land Title Insurance Company
(“Land Title”) is the trustee of the Construction Deed of Trust recorded on the Property on
February 7, 2008 the Property, in Book No. 20080207 as Instrument No. 01482.

128. Upon information and belief, SFC is the beneficiary on the Mezzanine Deed of
Trust, as amended, and the Construction Deed of Trust,

129, SFC subordinated the Mezzanine Deeds of Trust to the Construction Deed of
Trust per the Mezzanine Deeds of Trust Subordination Agreement which SFC signed and
recorded on February 7, 2008 in Book No. 20080207 as Instrument No. 001486 of the Official
Records of Clark County Nevada.

130. The work of improvement to the Property commenced prior to the recording of
the Construction Deed of Trust, which is the senior deed of trust on the Property.

131.. APCO’s claim is superior to the claims against the Property of_ Gemstone, SFC,
and other Defendants.

132, Tt has been necessary for APCO to engage the services of an attorney and APCO
is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as damages.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
{(Indemnification)

133, APCO repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in paragraphs 1
through 132 as though fully set forth herein.

134.  The construction work performed by APCO’s subcontractors was performed on
the Property being developed by Gemstone,

135. Pursuant to the agreement between APCO and Gemstone, Gemstone agreed to
pay for all labor and materials performed by APCO’s subcontractors on the Property.

136, Gemstone obtained any benefit that would have been conferred by the
construction work performed by APCQ’s subcontractor on the Property.
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137.  Gemstone should indemnify APCO for any and all losses, damages or expenses
APCO sustains as a result of any Amended Complaint or action that is brought and filed against
APCO by any of its subcontractors for non-payment or otherwise for work performed on the
Project and for any monies that APCO may be forced to otherwise pay as a result of any such
actions, including, but not limited, any judgment award and the attorney’s fees and costs
incurred by APCO in defending the action filed by any such subcontractor.

138. It has been necessary for APCO to engage the services of an attorney and APCO
is entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs as damages.

WHEREFORE, APCO prays for the following relief:

1. That APCO be awarded general and consequential damages in excess of

$10,000;

That APCO be awarded special damages in excess of $10,000;

That APCO be awarded punitive or exemplary damages in excess of $10,000;
That APCO be awarded pre-judgment on all amounts found due and owing;

U

For an award of reasonable attorneys fees;

6. That the Court declare the rank and priority of all lien claims and secured
claims, including those of SFC, and that APCO’s Lien be ascertained and adjudged as a valid
lien having priority over the interests and deeds of trust, including those of SFC and Plaintiffs;

7. That APCO be awarded post-judgment interest on all amounts; and

8. For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

DATED this 25 day of January 2010.

HOWARD & HOWARD

by il B

GWEN RUTAR MULLINS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 3146

WADE B. GOCHNOUR, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6314

3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 1400
L.as Vegas, Nevada 39169

Attorneys for APCO Construction
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EXHIBIT 1

Condominium units identified as APN 163-32-112-001 through 163-32-112-246, inclusive are
further broken down per separate buildings as follows:

Building 2
9275 W. Russell Road, Las Vegas Nevada consisting of the following:

APN: 163-32-112-001 (Unit 101) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-002 (Unit 102) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-003 (Unit 201) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-004 (Unit 301) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-005 (Unit 401) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.

Building 3
9205 W. Russell Road, Las Vegas, Nevada consisting of the following:

APN: 163-32-112-006 (Unit 101) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-007 (Unit 102) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-008 (Unit 201) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-009 (Unit 301) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-010 (Unit 401) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc

Building 7
9215 W. Russell Road, Las Vegas, Nevada consisting of the following;

APN: 163-32-112-011 (Unit 101) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-012 (Unit 102) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-013 (Unit 103) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-014 (Unit 201) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-015 (Unit 202) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-016 (Unit 203) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-017 (Unit 204) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-018 (Unit 205) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-019 (Unit 206} owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-020 (Unit 207) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-021 (Unit 208) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-022 (Unit 209) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-023 (Unit 210) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-024 (Unit 301) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-025 (Unit 302) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-026 (Unit 303) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
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163-32-112-027 (Unit 304) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-028 (Unit 305) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-029 (Unit 306) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-030 {(Unit 307) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-031 (Unit 308) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-032 (Unit 309) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-033 (Unit 310) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-034 (Unit 401) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-035 (Unit 402) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-036 (Unit 403) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-037 (Unit 404) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-038 (Unit 405) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-039 (Unit 406) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-040 (Unit 407) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-041 (Unit 408) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-042 (Unit 409) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-043 (Unit 410) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-044 (Unit 501) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-045 (Unit 502) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-046 (Unit 503) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-047 (Unit 504) owned by Gemstone Development West, inc.
163-32-112-048 (Unit 505) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-049 (Unit 506) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-050 (Unit 507) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-051 (Unit 508) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-052 (Unit 509) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-053 (Unit 510) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-054 (Unit 601) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-055 (Unit 602) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-056 (Unit 603) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-057 (Unit 604) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-058 (Unit 605) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-059 (Unit 606) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-060 (Unit 607) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-061 (Unit 608) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-062 (Unit 609) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-063 (Unit 610) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-064 (Unit 701) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-065 (Unit 702) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-066 (Unit 703) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-067 (Unit 704) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-068 (Unit 705) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-069 (Unit 706) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-070 (Unit 707) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-071 (Unit 708) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-072 (Unit 709) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
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163-32-112-073 (Unit 710) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-074 (Unit 801) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-075 {(Unit 802) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-076 (Unit 803) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-077 (Unit 804) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-078 (Unit 805) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-079 (Unit 806) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-080 (Unit 807) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-081 (Unit 808) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-082 (Unit 809) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-083 (Unit 810) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-084 (Unit 902) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-085 (Unit 903) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-086 (Unit 904) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.

Building 8
9265 W. Russell Road, Las Vegas, Nevada consisting of the following:

APN: 163-32-112-087 (Unit 101) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-088 (Unit 102) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-089 (Unit 103) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-090 (Unit 104) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.

- 163-32-112-091 (Unit 105) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-092 (Unit 106) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-093 (Unit 107) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-094 (Unit 108) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-095 (Unit 109) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-096 (Unit 110) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-097 (Unit 111) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-098 (Unit 112) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-099 (Unit 113) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-100 (Unit 114) owned by Genistone Development West, Ing.
163-32-112-101 (Unit 115) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc

" 163-32-112-102 (Unit 116) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-103 (Unit 117) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-104 (Unit 118) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-105 (Unit 119) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,

" 163-32-112-106 (Unit 120) owned by Gemstone Pevelopment West, Inc.
163-32-112-107 (Unit 201) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-108 (Unit 202) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-109 (Unit 203) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-110 (Unit 204) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-111 (Unit 205) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-112 (Unit 206) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
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163-32-112-113 (Unit 207) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-114 (Unit 208) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-115 (Unit 209) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-116 (Unit 210) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-117 (Unit 211) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-118 (Unit 212) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-119 (Unit 213) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-120 (Unit 214) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-121 (Unit 215) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-122 (Unit 216) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-123 (Unit 217) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-124 (Unit 218) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-125 (Unit 219) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-126 (Unit 220) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-127 (Unit 301) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-128 {Unit 302) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-129 (Unit 303) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-130 (Unit 304) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-131 (Unit 305) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-132 (Unit 306) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-133 (Unit 307) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-134 (Unit 308) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163.32-112-135 (Unit 309) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-136 (Unit 310) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-137 (Unit 311} owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-138 (Unit 312) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-139 (Unit 313) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-140 (Unit 314) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-141 (Unit 315) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-142 (Unit 316) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-143 (Unit 317) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-144 (Unit 318) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-145 (Unit 319) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-146 (Unit 320) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-147 (Unit 401) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-148 (Unit 402} owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-149 (Unit 403) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-150 (Unit 404) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-151 (Unit 405) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-152 (Unit 406) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-153 (Unit 407) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-154 (Unit 408) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-155 (Unit 409) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-156 (Unit 410) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-157 (Unit 411) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-158 (Unit 412) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
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163-32-112-159 (Unit 413) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-160 (Unit 414) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-161 (Unit 415) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-162 (Unit 416) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-163 (Unit 417) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-164 (Unit 418) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-165 (Unit 419) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-166 (Unit 420) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.

Building 9
9255 W. Russell Road, Las Vegas, Nevada consisting of the following:

APN: 163-32-112-167 (Unit 101) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-168 (Unit 102) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-169 (Unit 103) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-170 (Unit 104) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-171 (Unit 105) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-172 (Unit 106) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-173 (Unit 107) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-174 (Unit 108) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-175 (Unit 109) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-176 (Unit 110) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-177 (Unit 111) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-178 (Unit 112) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-179 (Unit 113) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-180 (Unit 114) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-181 (Unit 115) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc
163-32-112-182 (Unit 116) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-183 (Unit 117) owned by Gemstone Deveiopment West, Inc.
163-32-112-184 (Unit 118) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-185 (Unit 119) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-186 (Unit 120) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-187 (Unit 201) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-188 (Unit 202) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-189 (Unit 203) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-190 (Unit 204) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-191 (Unit 205) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-192 (Unit 206) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-193 {Unit 207) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-194 (Unit 208) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-195 (Unit 209) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-196 (Unit 210) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-197 (Unit 211) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-198 (Unit 212) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
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163-32-112-199 (Unit 213) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-200 (Unit 214) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-201 (Unit 215) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc

163-32-112-202 (Unit 216) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-203 (Unit 217) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-204 (Unit 218) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-205 (Unit 219) owned by Gemsione Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-206 (Unit 220) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-207 (Unit 301) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-208 (Unit 302) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-209 (Unit 303) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-210 (Unit 304) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-211 (Unit 305) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-212 (Unit 306) owned by Gernstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-213 (Unit 307) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-214 (Unit 308) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-215 (Unit 309) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-216 (Unit 310) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-217 (Unit 311) owmed by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-218 (Unit 312) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-219 (Unit 313) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-220 (Unit 314) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-221 (Unit 315) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc

163-32-112-222 (Unit 316) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-223 (Unit 317) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-224 (Unit 318) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-225 (Unit 319) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-226 (Unit 320) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-227 (Unit 401) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-228 (Unit 402) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-229 (Unit 403) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-230 (Unit 404) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-231 (Unit 405) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-232 (Unit 406) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-233 (Unit 407) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-234 (Unit 408) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-235 (Unit 409) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-236 (Unit 410) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-237 (Unit 41 1) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc,
163-32-112-238 (Unit 412) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-239 (Unit 413) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-240 (Unit 414) cwned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-241 (Unit 415) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc
163-32-112-242 (Unit 416) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-243 (Unit 417) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
163-32-112-244 (Unit 418) owned by Gemstone Development West, Inc.
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CLAIMS; and CROSS-CLAIM, by the

Martin A. Muckleroy, Esq. '
COOKSEY TOOLEN GAGE DUFFY &
wOo0G

3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, #200
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

E-filing system

K. Layne Morrill, Esq.

Martin A, Aronson, Esq.
MORRILL & ARONSON

One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Email to Imorrill@maaziaw.com,
maronson@maazlaw.com

Mark M. Jones, Esq.

KEMP JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy., 17 Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Bradley Scott and Scott
Financial Corporation

Email to m.jones@kempjones.com,
n.miller@kempjones.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I do hereby certify that on the 25" day of January 2010, I served a copy of the foregoing
APCO CONSTRUCTION’S ANSWER TO PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED
COMPLAINT and PLAINTIFFS’ MORE DEFINITE STATEMENT OF FRAUD

method stated to the following:

John D. Clayman, Esq.

FREDERIC DORWART LAWYERS
01d City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, Oklshoma 74103-5010
Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma
E-filing system

Von S. Heinz, Esg.

LEWIS AND ROCA, LLP

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Ste. 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma
E-filing system

Gemstone Development West., Inc,

c/o Alexander Edelstein, registered Agent
9121 W, Russell Road, Ste, 117

Las Vegas, Nevada 89148

Prepaid 1* class mail

Yoo {lik.

H542805-v1
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CLERK OF THE COURT

ANS

J. RANDALL JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No.: 001927

MARK M. JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No.: 000267

MATTHEW S. CARTER, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No.: 009524

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Seventeenth Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel. (702) 385-6000

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley J. Scott

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case No.: AS579963
Dept. No.: XIII

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.1..C., aNevada Limited Liability
Company; THARALDSON MOTELS 11,
INC., a North Dakota corporation; and
GARY D. THARALDSON,

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION
AND BRADLEY J, SCOTT’S AMENDED
ANSWER TO APCO CONSTRUCTION’S
v. CROSS-CLAIM

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J.
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A,, a
national bank; GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation;
DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants,

PlaintifFs,

AND ALL RELATED CLAIMS.

COME NOW Defendants/Crossdefendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J.
Scott (hereinafier collectively, “Scott™), by and through their attorneys, Kemp, Jones &
Coulthard, LLP, and hereby answer the cross-claim of APCO Construction as follows:

1. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 1 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

therefore denies said allegations.
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2 With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 2 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

3. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 3 of the cross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations,

4. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 4 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said alicgations and
therefore denies said allegations.

5. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 5 of the cross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations,

6. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 6 of the cross-claim, Scott
was informed by the borrower that the Project was to be constructed in three phases, With
respect to the balance of the allegations contained in paragraph 6 of the cross-claim, Scott admits
said allegations,

7. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 7 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

8. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 8 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

9. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 9 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

10.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 10 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

11,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 11 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

therefore denies said allegations.
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12, With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 12 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

13.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 13 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

14.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 14 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

therefore denies said allegations.

O O w1 v U R W N

15.  With respect to the alicgations contained in paragraph 15 of the cross-claim, Scott

—
(=]

is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

—
[

therefore denies said allegations.

bt
L3S

16.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 16 of the cross-claim, Scott

—
LY

denies that it received the complete pay application from the borrower in June. Rather, Scott

es Parkway
Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

received the application in mid-July. With respect to the balance of the allegations contained in

) 385-6000
(702) 385-6001
=

et
L

paragraph 16 of the cross-claim, Scott admits said allegations.

(702
Fax
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17.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 17 of the cross-claim, Scott

JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

800 Howard Hu.

3
3

is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

KEMP,
o

therefore denies said allegations.

L
hee)

18.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 18 of the cross-claim, Scott

]
(=

is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

ov
i

therefore denies said allegations.

)
[

19.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 19 of the cross-claim, Scott

N
w

is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

[l
Y

therefore denies said allegations.

[ o]
Lh

20,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 20 of the cross-claim, Scott

[y
(=23

is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and

o]
-~

therefore denies said allegations.

o]
Q0

21,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 21 of the cross-claim, Scott
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is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

22.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 22 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

23.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 23 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

24.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 24 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

25.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 25 of the cross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations.

26.  Withrespect to the allegations contained in paragraph 26 of the cross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations,

27. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 27 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as 1o the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

28.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 28 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said aliegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

29.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 29 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said ailegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

30.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 30 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

31.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 31 of the cross-claim, Scott
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is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

32.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 32 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belicf as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

33,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 33 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

34,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 34 of the ¢ross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations.

35,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 35 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

36.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 36 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

37.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 37 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

38.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 38 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

39.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 39 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

40.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 40 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

41,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 41 of the cross-claim, Scott
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denies said allegations.

42.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 42 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

43,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 43 of the cross-claim, Scoftt
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

44,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 44 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach of Contract - Gemstone)

45.  Answering paragraph 45 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers set forth above.

46.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 46 of the cross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations.

47.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 47 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

48,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 48 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations. _

49.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 49 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

50.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 50 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

51.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 51 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach of Duty of Good Faith and Fair Dealing - Gemstone)

52.  Answering paragraph 52 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
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of its answers set forth above.

53,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 53 of the cross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations.

54,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 54 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

55, With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 55 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations,

56.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 56 of the cross-claim, Scoft
denies said allegations.

57.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 57 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

58,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 58 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of NRS 624 Prompt Payment Act - Gemstone)

59,  Answering paragraph 59 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers set forth above.

60.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 60 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

61.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 61 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

62.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 62 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

63.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 63 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

64.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 64 of the cross-claim, Scott

is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
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therefore denies said allegations.

65.  Withrespect to the allegations contained in paragraph 65 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations,

66.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 66 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

67.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 67 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

68.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 68 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Defamation - Gemstone)

69.  Answering paragraph 69 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers sct forth above.

70.  'With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 70 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

71.  Withrespect to the allegations contained in paragraph 71 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

72.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 72 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

73, With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 73 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

74.  With respect to the allepations contained in paragraph 74 of the cross-claim, Scott

is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
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therefore denies said allegations.

75.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 75 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

76,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 76 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

77.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 77 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Declaratory Relief - Gemstone)

78.  Answering paragraph 78 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers set forth above.

79.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 79 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

80.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 80 of the cross-claim, Scott
admits said allegations.

81.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 81 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

82,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 82 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

83.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 83 of the cross-claim, Scott
denics said allegations.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unjust Enrichment against Gemstone and SFC)
84.  Answering paragraph 84 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all

of its answers set forth above.
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85.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 85 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

86,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 86 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form & belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

87.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 87 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

88.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 88 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

89.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 89 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies that it has failed, neglected, and refused to pay any sums to APCO. With respect to the
balance of the allegations contained in paragraph 89 of the cross-claim, Scott is without
sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and therefore
denies said allegations.

90.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 90 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations,

91.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 91 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations,

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
{Monies Due and Owing - Gemstone)

92,  Answering paragraph 92 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers set forth above,

93.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 93 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

94,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 94 of the cross-claim, Scott
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denies said allegations,

95.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 95 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

EXGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Interference with Contractual Relations - Gemstone)

96.  Answering paragraph 96 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers set forth above.

97.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 97 of the ¢ross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allepations.

98.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 98 of the cross-claim, Scott
is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations and
therefore denies said allegations.

99.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 99 of the cross-claim, Scott
denies said allegations.

100.  With respect to the aliegations contained in paragraph 100 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

101.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 101 of the cross-claim,
Scott is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations
and therefore denies said allegations.

102.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 102 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

103.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 103 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

104,  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 104 of the cross-claim,

Scott denies said allegations.
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NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Fraud Against Gemstone and SFC)

105. Answering paragraph 105 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all

of its answers set forth above.

106.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 106 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

107. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 107 of the cross-claim,
Scott admits said allegations.

108.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 108 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

109.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 109 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

110.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 110 of the cross-claim,
Scoft denies said allegations.

111.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 111 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations,

112.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 112 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allepations.

113. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 113 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

114.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 114 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations,

115.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 115 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations,

116. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 116 of the cross-claim,

Scott denies said allegations.
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TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Negligent Misrepresentation against Gemstone and SFC Plead in the Alternative)

117. Answering paragraph 117 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers set forth above.

118.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 118 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

119.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 119 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

120. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 120 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

121.  'With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 121 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Priority over Deeds of Trust)

122.  Answering paragraph 122 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers set forth above.

123, With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 123 of the cross-claim,
Scott admits said allegations.

124.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 124 of the cross-claim,
Scott admits said allegations.

125.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 125 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations to the extent that the date should be February 7, 2008. With respect
to the balance of the allegations contained in paragraph 125 of the cross-claim, Scott admits said
allegations.

126. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 126 of the cross-claim,
Scott admits said allegations.

127.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 127 of the cross-claim,

Scott admits said allegations.
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128.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 128 of the cross-claim,
Scott admits said atlegations.

129.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 129 of the cross-claim,
Scott admits said allegations.

130. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 130 of the cross-claim,
Scott is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations
and therefore denies said allegations.

131.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 131 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

132.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 132 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Indemnification)

133,  Answering paragraph 133 of the cross-claim, Scott repeats and realleges herein all
of its answers sct forth above.

134.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 134 of the cross-claim,
Scott admits said allegations,

135. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 135 of the cross-claim,
Scott is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations
and therefore denies said allegations.

136. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 136 of the cross-claim,
Scott is without sufficient information to form a belief as to the truth or falsity of said allegations
and therefore denies said allegations.

137.  With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 137 of the cross-claim,
Scott denies said allegations.

138, With respect to the allegations contained in paragraph 138 of the cross-claim,

Scott denies said allegations.
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10.

11.

12,

13,

4.

AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES

APCO Construction has failed to state a claim for which relief may be granted.

APCO Construction has failed to commence this action within the time required by the
applicable statutes of limitations and APCO Construction’s claims are therefore barred.
APCO Construction lacks standing to bring this action.

APCO Construction’s claims are barred by the doctrines of laches, waiver and estoppel.
APCO Construction has failed to mitigate its damages, if any, after discovery of the
alleged injury, if any.

APCO Construction is guilty of unclean hands and therefore is not entitled to any relief
from Scott.

Any damages which APCO Construction may have sustained were proximately caused
by the acts of persons other than Scott, and therefore, APCO Construction is rot entitled
to any relief from Scott.

Alternatively, should Scott be found liable, the fault of all partics, joined and nonjoined,
including that of APCO Construction must be evaluated and liability apportioned among
all persons and entities appropriate to respective fault,

APCO Construction’s recovery, if any, must be offset by any compensation already
received.

If APCO Construction has incurred any injury or damage, which Scott denies, the risk of
such injury or damage was not foreseeable,

APCO Construction failed to give requisite notice as required by statute, contract or other
rule.

By its own actions, APCO Construction has ratified, approved and adopted the actions of
Scott in connection with the allegations contained in the Counterclaim.

By reason of its own acts, APCO Construction has released and discharged Scott from
the claims alleged.

APCO Construction has failed to do equity towards Scott and therefore is not entitled to

any relief,
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15.
16,

17.

18.

19.

20.

21,

22,
23.

APCO Construction’s claims are barred by the statute of frauds.

APCO Construction’s claims are not well grounded in fact and are not warranted by
existing law or a good faith argument for the extension or modification of existing law,
but are initiated only for purposes of harassment, unnecessary delay and the occurrence
of needless costs of litigation to Scott.

The claims of APCO Construction are barred in whole or in part to the extent that APCO
Construction has not suffered any injury in fact.

Any damages that APCO Construction alleges to have suffered from the matters alleged
in the Counterclaim are too remote or speculative to allow recovery.

Any injuries APCO Construction claims to have suffered were not proximately or
materially caused by Scott’ alleged acts, conduct, or omissions, and APCO Construction
is therefore barred from recovery.

The acts alleged were performed by an employee or representative lacking authority and
acting outside the scope of his or her employment.

There is no privity of contract nor any other type of privity between APCO Construction
and Scott.

APCO Construction’s claims are barred due to a lack of consideration,

Scott hereby reserves the right to allege additional defenses as they

may become known, or as they evolve during the litigation, and to amend its Answer
accordingly.

WHEREFORE, Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott pray for judgment on

the crossclaim as follows:

I. That APCO take nothing and that the crossclaim be dismissed with prejudice;

2. That they be awarded their attorney’s fees and costs of suit in defending the

crossclaim; and
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1 3. For such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.
2 DATED this 23" day of February, 2010.
3 KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
4
5 /s/ Matthew S. Carter
I RANDALL JONES, ESQ. (#1927)
6 MARK M. JONES, ESQ. (#267)
MATYHEW S. CARTER, ESQ. (#9524)
7 3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor
8 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Attorneys for Defendants/Crossdefendants
9 Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott
10
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that on the 23™ day of February, 2010, the foregoing SCOTT FINANCIAL
CORPORATION AND BRADLEY J. SCOTT’S AMENDED ANSWER TO APCO

CONSTRUCTION’S CROSS-CLAIM was served on the following persons by mailing & copy

thereof, first class mail, postage prepaid, and e-mailing to the e-mail addresses listed as follows:

Martin A. Muckleroy, Esq.

COOKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY
& WOOG

3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89169
mmuckleroy@cookseylaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS P.C,

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Wade Gochnour, Esg.

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 14® Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

grm@h2law.com

wbg@h2law.com

kdp@h2law.com

Counsel for Defendant APCO Construction
and Asphalt Products Corporation

FREDERIC DORWART LAWYERS
John D. Clayman, Esq.

Piper Turner, Esq.

Old City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, OK 74103
jclayman@fdiaw.com
pturner@fdlaw.com

Counsel for Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C.
K. Layne Morrill, Esq.

Martin A. Aronson, Esq.
Stephanie L. Samuelson, Esq.
Christine Taradash, Esq,

1 East Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012
lmorrill@maazlaw.com
maronson@maazlaw.com
ssamuelson@rmaazlaw.com
ctaradash@maazlaw.com
Co-Counsel! for Plaintiffs

LEWIS & ROCA

Von Heinz, Esq.

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 82169
vheinz@lrlaw.com

Jvienneau@lrlaw.com

Local counsel for Bank of Oklashoma, N A,

HOLLAND & HART, LLP

Gavin C. Jangard, Esq, .

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 10™ Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169
gejangard@hollandhart.com

Counsel for Alexander Edelstein & Gemstone
Development West, Inc

s/ Julia L,_Melnar
An employee of Kemp, Jones & Coulthard
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada limited liability company,
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
THARALDSON,
Petitioners,
Vs.

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
COURT FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA,
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CLARK,
AND THE HONORABLE MARK R.
DENTON, DISTRICT JUDGE,

Respondents.
and

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, A
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J.
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A., a
national bank; GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION, dba APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada Corporation

Real Parties in Interest.

Case No.:
District Court CES(IQe frg%?gg ”;3% a.m.

Tracie K. Lindeman

PETITIONERS’ APPENDIX
(VOLUME 3 BATES NUMBERS 00500-00753)

Marquis Aurbach Coffing
TERRY A. COFFING, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4949
MICAH S. ECHOLS
Nevada Bar No. 8437
DAVID T. DUNCAN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9546

10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Cooksey, Toolen, Gage, Duffy & Woog
GRIFFITH H. HAYES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 7374

MARTIN A. MUCKLEROY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9634

3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200

Morrill & Aronson, P.L.C.

K. LAYNE MORRILL, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 4591

MARTIN A. ARONSON, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 9005

JOHN T. MOSHIER, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 7460

One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012

Lemons, Grundy & Eisenberg
ROBERT L. EISENBERG, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 950
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Complaint (filed 01/13/09) Vol. 1,
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Notice of Pendency of Action (Lis Pendens) (filed 01/13/09) | Vol. 1,

Bates No. 00065-00074
APCO Construction’s Answer to Complaint, Cross-Claim Vol. 1,
and Third-Party Complaint (filed 02/13/09) Bates No. 00075-00121
Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott’s Answer Vol. 1,
to APCO Construction’s Cross-Claim and Third-Party Bates No. 00122-00138
Complaint (filed 04/15/09)
Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott’s Amended | Vol. I,
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Party Complaint (filed 05/04/09)
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to Complaint and Counterclaim (filed 05/08/09) Bates No. 0015800199
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D. Tharaldson (filed 08/10/09)
Defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Vol. 2,
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Opposition to Defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Vol. 3,
Bradley J. Scott’s Motion to Strike Jury Demand (filed Bates No. 00500-00512
09/08/09)
Defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Vol. 3,
Scott’s Reply in Support of Motion to Strike Jury Demand Bates No. 00513-00521
(filed 09/28/09)
Defendant Bank of Oklahoma’s Joinder in Defendants Scott | Vol. 3,
Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott’s Motion to Bates No. 00522-00525
Strike Jury Demand (filed 09/29/09)
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Motion to Strike Jury Demand: Denied (filed 10/05/09)
Notice of Entry of Order Granting Motion for Firm Trial Vol. 3,
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Complaint and Plaintiffs” More Definite Statement of Fraud | Bates No. 00547-00589
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1 Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott’s Amended Vol. 3,
Answer to APCO Construction’s Cross-Claim (filed Bates No. 00590-00607
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Scott Financial Corporation, Bradley J. Scott and Bank of Vol. 3,
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Extend Deadline for Filing Motions /n Limine; and (3)
Renewed Motion to Strike Jury Demand on Order
Shortening Time (filed 01/10/11)
APCO Construction’s Joinder to Scott Financial Vol. 3,
Corporation, Bradley J. Scott and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.’s | Bates No. 00627-00629
Motion (1) To Bifurcate Trial, and (2) to Extend Deadline
for Filing Motions In Limine; and (3) Renewed Motion to
Strike Jury Demand on Order Shortening Time (filed
01/17/11)
Plaintiffs” Opposition to Fiduciary Defendants’ Motion to Vol 3,
Bifurcate Trial and Strike Jury Demand and Plaintiffs’ Bates No. 00630-00753
Counter-Motion under Rule 39(c) for Advisory Jury on All
Claims Not Triable of Right by Jury (filed 01/24/11)
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Decision:

Scott Financial’s Motion for Summary Judgment Regarding
Plaintiffs’ First, Second and Third Claims for Relief:
Granted in Part and Denied in Part;

Bank of Oklahoma’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
on Plaintiffs’ First and Second Claims for Relief: Granted
(filed 01/25/11)

Vol. 4,
Bates No. 00754—-00757

Decision: .

Bank of Oklahoma’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment
on Plaintiffs’ Third, Seventh and Eleventh Claims for Relief:
Granted;

Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott’s Motion
for Summary Judgment on Tharaldson’s and Tharaldson
Motels I Inc.’s Third and Seventh Claims for Relief and for
Partial Summary Judgment on Their Eleventh Claim for
Relief: Granted in Part as to the Third Claim, Denied in Part
as to the Seventh and Eleventh Claims (filed 01/25/11)

Vol. 4,
Bates No. 00758-00761

Joint Reply in Support of Scott Financial Corporation,
Bradley J. Scott and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.’s Motion (1)
To Bifurcate Trial, and (2) to Extend Deadline for Filing
Motions I/n Limine; and (3) Renewed Motion to Strike Jury
Demand on Order Shortening Time and Joint Opposition to
Counter-Motion Under Rule 39(¢) for Advisory Jury on All
Claims Not Triable of Right by Jury (filed 01/28/11)

Vol. 4
Bates No. 00762-00798

Court Minutes January 31, 2011:

Motion to 1) Bifurcate Trial, 2) Extend Deadline for Filing
Motions In Limine, and 3) Renewed Motion to Strike Jury
DPemand: Under Advisement;

Joinder to Motion to 1) Bifurcate Trial, 2) Extend Deadline
for Filing Motions /n Limine, and 3) Renewed Motion to
Strike Jury Demand: Under Advisement;

Counter-Motion Under Rule 39(c) for Advisory Jury on All
Claims Not Triable of Right by Jury: Continued (filed
01/31/11)

" Vol. 4,
Bates No. 0079900802

Plaintiffs’ Reply to Fiduciary Defendants’ Joint Opposition
to Plaintiffs’ Motion Under Rule 39(c) for Advisory Jury on
All Claims Not Triable of Right by Jury (filed 02/01/11)

Vol. 4,
Bates No. 00803--00806

Court Minutes February 04, 2011:

Motion to 1) Bifurcate Trial: Motion Granted, Court Will
Try Guaranty Issues First in Bench Trial;

Counter-Motion Under Rule 39(c) for Advisory Jury on All
Claims Not Triable of Right by Jury: Denied (filed 02/04/11)

Vol. 4,
Bates No. 00807-00808
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Decision: Vol. 4,
Motion to 1) Bifurcate Trial, 2) Extend Deadline for Filing | Bates No. 00809-00812
Motions /»n Limine, and 3) Renewed Motion to Strike Jury
Demand: Under Advisement;
Joinder to Motion to 1) Bifurcate Trial, 2) Extend Deadline
for Filing Motions /n Limine, and 3) Renewed Motion to
Strike Jury Demand: Granted in All Respects;
Counter-Motion Under Rule 39(c) for Advisory Jury on All
Claims Not Triable of Right by Jury: Denied (filed 02/04/11)
Decision: Vol. 4,
As to Club Vista- First, Second, Third and Fourth Claims for | Bates No. 00813-00817
Relief: Denied;
As to TM2I- Denied in Part as to the Second and Fourth
Claims for Relief and Granted in Part as to the Third Claim
for Relief;,
As to Tharaldson- Denied as to the First Claim for Relief
(filed 2/07/11)
Order Granting Motion (1) to Bifurcate Trial, (2) to Extend | Vol. 4,
Time for Filing Motions /n Limine, and (3) Renewed Motion | Bates No. 00818-00820
to Strike Jury Demand, and Denying Plaintiffs’ Counter-
Motion Under Rule 39(c) for Advisory Jury on All Claims
Not Triable of Right By Jury (filed 02/10/11)
Transcript of Proceedings: Hearing on Motions (filed Vol. 4,
02/10/11) Bates No. 00821-00876
Notice of Entry of Order Denying Plaintiffs’ Motion for Vol. 4,
Partial Summary Judgment RE: First and Prior Lien Bates No. 00877-00882
Condition (filed 02/10/11)
Notice of Entry of Order Denying Plaintiffs” Motion for Vol. 4, ~
Partial Summary Judgment RE: Construction Risk Bates No. 00883-00887
Conditions (filed 02/10/11)
District Court Docket Vol. 4,
‘ Bates No. 00888-00915
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D. CHRIS ALBRIGHT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 004904

MARTIN A. MUCKLEROY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009634

ALBRIGHT, STODDARD, WARNICK & ALBRIGHTY

801 South Rancho Dr., Bidg. D

Las Vegas, NV 89106
dcg@all;riggtstoddard.com
mmuckleroy@albri ghtstoddard.com
Tel: (702) 384-7111

Fax: (702) 384-0605

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C.

K. LAYNE MORRILL, ESQ,

Arizona Bar No. 004591

MARTIN A. ARONSON, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 0090035
STEPHANIE L. SAMUELSON, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No.. 018099

One E Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

(602) 263-8993

Attomeys for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., 2 Nevada limited liability company,
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC,, a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,
vs.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J,
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A, a
national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT
WEST, INC., a Nevada corporation;
ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORP., a Nevada
cotporation, dba APCO CONSTRUCTION;
DOE INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Dcfegdants.
AND RELATED COUNTERCLAIMS

Electronically Filed
09/08/2009 02:40:48 PM

W“’"W

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASENO. AS579963
DEPTNO. Xl

OPPOSITION TQ DEFENDANTS SCOTT
FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND
BRADLEY J. SCOTT’S MOTION TO
STRIKE JURY DEMAND
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OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND
BRADLEY J. SCOTT’S MOTION TO STRIKE . JURY DEMAND

Plaintiffs Club Vista Financial Services, L.L.C. (“CVFS"), Tharaldson Motels II, Inc. (“T™M21)
and Gary D. Tharaldson (“Tharaldson”) respectfully submit that the Motion to Strike Jury Demand of
Defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott (the “Scott Defendants™) should be
denied. The Motion is based on jury trial waivers in guaranty instruments signed by TM2I and
Tharaldson. CVFS has signed no jury trial waiver and is entitled fo a jury trial on all claims,
Furthermore, the guaranty instruments Defendants rely on were induced by fraud, breach of fiduciary
duty and other misconduct, Therefore the guaranties and the purported jury trial waivers contained
in them are void, if so determined by the jury.

This Response is supported by the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities.

DATED this _gi\day of September, 2009.

ALBRIGHT, STODDARD, WARNICK & ALERIGHT

/ D. CHRIS ALBRIGHT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No, 009404
MARTIN A. MUCKLEROY, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009634
801 S. Rancho Dr, Bldg. D
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C.

K. LAYNE MORRILL, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 004591

MARTIN A. ARONSON, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No, 009005
STEPHANIE L. SAMUELSON, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 018099 -
One E Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

(602) 263-8993

Pro Hac Vice Application Pending

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I INTRODUCTION AND FACTUAL BACKGROUND

This case for fraud and breach of fiduciary duty and breach of contract and other claims arises
out of a highly unusual real estate finance deal. Defendants Scott Financial Corporation (“SFC™) and
Bank of Oklahoma (“BOK™) are co-lead lenders in a 29 lender $110 million syndicated loan
participation, which those Defendants structured to provide above market interest rat;as for the lenders
and substantial loan origination and servicing fees for co-lead lender Defendant SFC. Even though
called the co-lead lender, SFC did not loan a gingle dollar to the developer/borrower, but did collect
substantial fees. The Scott Defendants induced Plaintiffs Tharaldson and TM2], with whom they have
Jong had a fiduciary relationship of the highest trust and confidence, 0 give 100% unlimited
guarantees of the performance of & wholly unrelated developer/borrower. Now that the Project has
failed, Plaintiffs have leatned that the Scott Defendants and co-lead lender BOK did not perform
appropriate due diligence and loan administration, but instead “underwrote” (without disclosure) the
Project solely on the financiat sirength of Plaintiffs’ guarantees. While this allowed Defendants to
obtain a sub prime rate of return on a prime rate credit, Defendants wrongfully in;luced Plaintiffs’
participation in the financing transaction through multiple breaches of fiduciary duty,
misrepresentation and omissions.

Plaintiff Tharaldson is a successful real estate entrepreneur who has had substantial success
in the motel and lodging business. Plaintiff CVFS is a Tharaldson owned company that is involved
in the business of making real estate development loans. Plaintiff TM21 is a Tharaldson affiliate that
is engaged in the business of owning and operating motel and lodging properties.

The Scott Defendznts’ business relationship with Tharaldson dates back to about 1992. Over
the years, a fiduciary relationship of trust and confidence developed under which Bra;i Scott and Scott
Financial Corporation acted as Tharaldson’s in-house lending division, The Scott Defendants became
intimately familiar with Tharaldson’s business, operations and finances, and Tharaldson has relied
exclusively on the Scott Defendants to protect Tharaldson’s interests, inciuding the interests of CVFS

and TM2I, in lending transactions the Scott Defendants have promoted or been involved in.
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The Scott Defendants initially induced Theraldson affiliate CVFS to loan some $56 million of
first position loan funds for the Marhattan West real estate development which was being built by an
urrelated third party developer. The Scott Defendants, acting with co-lead lender BOK then induced
CVFS, Tharaldson and TM2[ to enterintoa {ransaction known as the Senior Loan Agreement whereby
a consortium of 29 participant lenders (one of whom was CVFS for a $400,000 participation share)
agreed to provide another $110,000,000 of financing to the Preject. Under the Senior Loan
transaction:
A) CVFS agreed to subordinate its first position project funding to the pgsiﬁon of
the Senior Loan Agreement participants;

B) $10 million of CVFS’ previously advanced $56 million was repaid leaving
CVFS with an outstanding balance owed of $46 million which was now ina
subordinated position rather than a first lien position;

C) Tharaldson and TM?2I gave guarantics of the 51 10,000,000 Senior Loan even

though they were not borrowers or affilisted in any way with the borrower on,
or developer of, the Project;

D. CVFS participated as a lender in the Senior Loan in the amount of $400,000.

As detailed at length in the Amended Complaint, Plaintiffs’ consent to '.Lhe Senior Loan
transaction was induced by Defendants’ wrongful conductincluding fraud, misrepresentation, material
omission and breach of fiduciary duty. The Senior Loan transaction, including the subordination of
CVES? prior first lender position, and the issuance of the Tharaldson and TM2I guaranties was highly
prejudicial to Plaintiffs and conferred unwarramted and undeserved benefits to Defendants. The
Second Amended Complaint seeks, infer alia, to rescind the Senior Loan transaction and void the
Tharaldson and TM2I guaranties on the basis of fraudulent inducement, breach of fiduciary duty and
other misconduct. The Second Amended Complaint also seeks damages arising out of those
transactions.

The fiduciary duty is the highest duty recognized by the law. Because of the long term
fiduciary relationship between the Scott Defendants and Plaintiffs, this is not atypical lender borrower

case. Lere Guaraators Tharaldson and TM?21 signed documents based on the recommendation of the
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Scott Defendants that the documents were fair, appropriate and adequately protected theirrights. The
Amended Complaint alleges that waiver provisions and other terms in the guaranties were unfair, one-
sided and inserted in breach of the Scott Defendants® fiduciary duties to Tharaldson and TM2L
Plaintiffs have properly demanded a jury trial pursuant to NRCP 38(b).

The Scott Defendants’ Motion to Strike Jury Demand ignores what this case is really about.
First, the Scott Defendants take the position that CVFS’ only interest in the case is as a $400,000
participant in the Senior Loan. Defendants completely overlook the unpaid $46 million CVFS
advanced as a project lender and that CVFS’ principal claims are to invalidatc the Senior Loan
transaction including the pwrported subordination of CVFS® first lender position. The Scott
Defendants wrongfully contend that CVES is a Plaintiff on only a very few of the Amended
Complaints’ thirteen claims for relief, In truth, however, CVFSisa Plaintiff on evéry count but the
Sixth Claim for Relief for Defamation.

Second, the Scott Defendents’ agreement that the Tharaldson and TM2I guaranties contain jury
trial waivers and that contractual jury trial waivers are enforceable fails to address what happens when
the agreement containing the jury trial waiver is invalid due to fraud, breach of fiduciary duty or other
misconduct. Here, TM2!’s and Tharaldson’s core arguments are that the guaranties are void. Because
the guaranties themselves are void, the terms contained within them, including the jury trial waiver
provisions, are also void.

Furthermore, the law is clear that the scope of jury trial waiver provisions should be strictly
sonstrued to avoid impinging on the constitutional right to a trial by jury. The jury trial waiver
provisions at issue only purport to address claims relating to the guaranties. Inno ¢vent can they be
expanded to include the claims of Tharaldson and TM2I for defamation, which claims do not arise
under or out of the guaranties.

Finally, Defendants have asserted that the claims of Tharaldson and TM2]I should be severed
for a separate non jury trial from the claims of CVFS which Defendants admit are triable to a jury.
This wasteful and unnecessary suggestion makes no practical sense. The claims of CVFS, Tharaldson
and TM2I arise out of identical facts and are completely intertwined. There is o need for the judicial

burden and expense to the parties of trying the case more than once. The best solution is a single trial
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with the Court deciding any issues that it ultimately finds should not be submitted to the jury.

The Motion to Strike Jury Demand should be denied as it relates to CVFS. As relates to TM21
and Tharaldson, the jury should determine those parties’ claims that the guaranties are unenforceable
and those parties’ defamation claims. Only if the jury determines that the gua.ranﬁeé are enforceable
should the guaranty issues be taken from the jury and decided by the Court.

18 CVFS NEVER SIGNED A JURY TRIAL WAIVER AND ALL OF ITS CLAIMS ARE
ALL TRIABLE TO A JURY.

The Scott Defendants take an ambiguous and apparently incorrect position on the jury trial
rights of CVFS, While recognizing that CVES is the signatory to nio document purporting to contain
a jury trial waiver, and conceding that CVES”® claims are all triable to a jury, the Scott Defendents
incorrectly suggest that CVFS is not a claimant on most of the claims in the Complaint. In truth, all
of the claims for relief, except the Sixth Claim for Relief for Defamation, have been brought by CVFS.

The Scott Defendants mischaracterize CVFS® interest as being only the interest of a loan
participant for its $400,000 investment in the Senior Loan financing at issue in the case. The Scott
Defendants conveniently ignore the unpaid $46 million CVFS has itself loaned on the project and they
ignore CVFS’ primary allegations that CVFS was induced through the frand and misconduct of
Defendants to enter into the Senior Loan Agreement which had the purported effect of subordinating
the $46 million CVFS previously had loaned to the project to 2 position juniorto the Sﬁxior Loandebt.

It is CVES’ position that the Senior Loan Agreement and attendant subordination was
wrongfully induced and therefore void. As discussed below, Defendants’ wrongful acts in connection
with the Senior Loan Agreement are part and parcel of every claim in the Complaint CVFS asserts and
include every claim for relief except the Sixth for Defamation.

First Claim for Relief (Fraudulent Misrepresentation)
Second Claim for Relief (Frandulent Concealment/F raudulept Omission)

Third Claim for Relief {Constructive Fraud)
Fourth Claim for Relief (Negligent Misrepr entation/Negligent Omission

Page 60f 13
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On each of these claims, CVFS seeks to invalidate the Senior Loan transaction and purported
subordination to the Senior Debt of CVFS® $46 million lending position based on the wrongful
misrepresentations and omissions of Defendants. None of these claims is premised on or limited by
CVFS’ position as a $400,000 loan participant. All four claims address the core validity of the
transaction at issue in the case

Fifth Claim for Relief (Securities Fraud-Vielation of NRS 90.211 ef seq.

CVFS’ position on this claim is based on CVES’ status as a loan participant. It should be
noted, however, that both TM2l and Tharaldson allege that the Guaranty transaction they sue on isan
investment contract and therefore a security, Hence, the securities fraud claim implicates the entire
Senior Loan transaction even though CVFS on the one hand and TM2]/Tharaldson on the other hand
base their claims on different aspects of the transaction.

Sixth Claim for Relief (Defamation

On this claim only, the Scott Defendants are correct. CVFS does not assert a right of recovery
for defamation.

Seventh Claim for Relief (Breach of Fiduciary Du

CVFS asserts this claim as a lender of $46 million that was wrongfully subordinated to the
Senior Debt. CVFS is not claiming merely as a loan participant.

Eighth Claim for Relief (BOK, Aiding and Abetting Breach of Fiduciary Duty)

Ninth Claim for Relief (Acting in Concert/Civil Conspiracy)
These claims, like the Seventh Claim for Relief, are brought because of CVFS’ status as the

lender of $46 miilion on the project.
Tenth Claim for Relief (Breach of Contract)
Eleventh Claim for Relief (Breach of Covenant o Good Faith and Fair Dealin
Twelfth Claim for Relief (Negligence)
CVFS brings these claims for damages in the alternative to its claims to invalidate the Senior
Loan Agreement and the subordination of CVFS’ $46 million in loan funds. These claims are not
based on CVFS” status as a loan participant, but rather on the Agreement CVFS as a major project

lender made to subordinate its $46 million position to the Senior Debt.
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Thirteenth Claim For Relief (Declaratory Judgment

This omnibus claim seeks declaratory relief invalidating the Senior Loan Agreement and
subordination transaction and establishing CVFS’ lien priority as the first position lien holder on the
project for its $46 million in project financing. The claim is independent of CVFS’ position as a
$400,000 loan participant in the Senior Loan financing.

All of the Scott Defendants’ suggestions that CVFS is a Plaintiff merely because it was a
$400,000 participant in the Senior Loan ignore the heart of CVFS’ case challenging the validity of, and
Defendants’ performance under, the Senior Loan Agreement. The suggestion that CVFS is not a

. Plaiitiff on most of the claims in the Amended Complaint is just plain wrong. In truth, the only claim

which CVES does not assert is the Sixth Claim for Relief for Defamation.

The Scott Defendants acknowledge that CVFS has jury trial rights on all of its claims. To the
extent they suggest that CVFS is not a Plaintiff on most of the claims in the case, Defendants are
incorrect and rely on a mischaracterization of CVFS’ role in the transactions at issue as being a mere
$400,000 participant in the Senior Loan transaction, while ignoring that CVFS financed the first $46
million on the project. All claims for relief in the Amended Complaint except the Sixth Claim for
Defamation are claims of CVFS and all of CVFS’ claims are triable 10 a jury as a matter of right.
II. THE GUARANTIES ARE VOID FOR FRAUDULENT INDUCEMENT, BREACH OF

FIDUCIARY DUTY AND OTHERMISCONDUCT, THEREFORE THE JURY TRIAL

WAIVERS IN THE GUARANTIES ARE ALSO VOID.

The only case Defendants rely on, Lowe Enterprises Residential Partners L.P. v. Eighth
Judicial District Court ex rel. County of Clark, 118 Nev. 92, 40 P.3d 405 {2002) establishes that pre-
litigation contractual jury trial waivers are valid in Nevada if entered into knowinglj, voluntarily and
intentionally. 118 Nev. at 101,40 P.3d at 411. Neither Lowe nor any other Nevada case addresses the

situation where the agreement containing a jury trial waiver is itselfvoid for fraud, misrepresentation,

e T % T v R I
o ~ & th

omission, breach of fiduciary duty or some other formation defense. In such cases, the entire
underlying agreement is void. Awada v. Shuffle Master, Inc., 173 P.3d 707,713 (Nev. 2007); Havas
v. Bernhard, 85 Nev. 627, 631,461 P.2d 857, 859-60 (1969).

Here, guarantors TM2I and Tharaldson claim that the Guaranty instruments in which the jury
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1 || trial waivers appear arc void for, inter alia fraud, misrepresentation, material omission and breach of

fiduciary duty. TM2I and Tharaldson have specifically alleged that the Scott Defendants breached

fiduciary duties by including in the guaranties a variety of terms including waivers of the guarantors’
rights, disadvantageous choice of law provisions and other provisions that were contrary to the

guarantors’ best interests.! The Amended Complaint alleges that it was a breach of fiduciary duty to

2

3

4

5 .

6|l submit to Tharaldson and TM2I unfair and one-sided guaranty instruments which detrimentally
71| effected their rights and which gave the Scott Defendants rights and benefits which they, as fiduciaries,
g |l hadno right to request or insist upon.

9 While the issue has not been addressed in Nevada, courts in other states have recognized that
10|| where 2 party alleges an agreement containing a jury trial waiver is entirely invelid, that party is
1 entitled to a ju::y; irial on the validity of the Agreement notwithstanding the presence of a jury trial
12 || waiver provision within the void document. Numerous New York cases so hold,? as do cases from
13 || other states. C&C Wholesale, Inc. v. Fusco Management Corp., 564 8.2d 1259 (Fla.App. 1990);
14 Chase Commercial Corp. v. Owen, 32 Mass App. 248, 588 NE.2d 703, 708 (1992); Howard v, Bank
o\ South, 209 Ga.App. 407, 433 SE.24 625, 627-28 (1993). ‘

16 Here, guarantors TM2I and Tharaldson claim that theix signatures on the guaranty instruments

17

18] The Amended Complaint does not specifically allege the jury trial waivers in the guaranties were the
ecific result of fraud, breach of fiduciary duty or other wrongful conduct. 1fthe Court believes such
194h allegation is necessary, and Plaintiffs believe that it is not, Plaintiffs respectfully request leave of

ourt to file a Second Amended Complaint direcily asserting that the jury trial waivers were the product
203 fraud, breach of fiduciary duty and other wrongful conduct. '

L5

213 Bank of New Yorkv. Royal Athletic Inds., 637 NYS 2d 478 (App. Div. 1996); Wesley v. Brinkly, 198
oo Nfisc. 783, 100 NYS 2d 996 (1950); Federal Housecraft, Inc. v. Faria, 28 Misc 2d 155,216 NYS 2d
13 (1961); International Roofing Corp. v. Van der Veer, 43 Misc 2d 93, 250 NYS 24 387 (1964);
93 (vardner v. North Roofing & siding Corp. ,55 Misc 2d 413, 285 NYS 24 693 (1967); Gothan Credit
94 Torp. v. Brancaccio, 83 NYS 2d 341 (1948); Brevoort, Inv. v. Meredith, 154 NYS 2d 398 (1956).

[

7~

3|in Lowe, the Nevada Supreme Court declined to follow the Georgia Supreme Court’s decision in Bank

uth, NA v. Howard, 264 GA 339, 444 SE.2d 799, 800 (1994) which affirmed the Georgia Court of

26 Appeals in Howard but more broadly held that pre-litigation jury trial waivers are never enforceable

der Georgia law. Lowe declined to follow Bank South’s broader rule, 40 P.3d at 409-410, but Lowe

27 8id not reach the Georgia Court of Appeals’ more narrow holding in Howard that in the presence of

aud in the inducement of an agreement containing a jury trial waiver, that fraud vitiates the waiver just
it vitiates the balance of the agreement.
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containing the jury trial waivers were wrongfully induced through framd, misrepresentation, material |

omission and breach of fiduciary duty. They also claim that the Scott Defendants breached fiduciary
dutiesin presenting Tharaldson and TM21 with guaranty instruments containing prejudicial, unfair and
inequitable terms. Tharaldson and TMZ2] are entitled to a jury trial on their claims that the instruments
containing the jury trial waivers are void for misrepresentation, omission and preach of fiduciary duty.
As the guaranties are vitiated by fraud, breach of fiduciary duty and other misconduct, so also are the

jury trial waivers vitiated by the same fraud or misconduct.

IV. THE DEFAMATION CLAIMS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE JURY TRIAL

WAIVERS.

The right to a trial by jury being & fundamental constitutional right, contractual waivers of jury
trial rights are strictly construed and are not to be expanded beyond their necessary scope. Medical
Air Technology Corp. v. Marwan Investment, Inc., 303 F.3d 11, 18-19 (1* Cir, 202); Gaylord Dep't
Stores, Inc. v. Stephens, 404 So.2d 586, 588 (Ala 1981); Cantor v. TechLease, Inc., 398 N.Y.8.2d 286,
287-88 (App.Div. 1977); North Charlston Joint Venture v. Kitchens of Island Fudge Shoppe, Inc., 307
S.C. 533, 416 SE.2d 637, 638 (1992). The waiver provisions at issue here by their terms apply to
claims related to the guaranties. The Defamation Claims do not arise under, involve or implicate the
guaranties but are entirely independent of the guaranties. Plaintiffs Tharaldson and TM2I are entitled

to a jury trial on their defamation claims.

Y. THE COURT SHOULD NOT SEVER THE CVFS AND TMS2ZI/THARALDSON

CLAIMS FOR SEPARATE TRIALS.

Defendants court judicial mismanagement and a procedural nightmare by suggesting that the
claims of CVES on the one hand and TM2l/Tharaldson on the other hand should be severed for
separate jury and non jury trials. The claims of all Plaintiffs arise out of the same identical operative
facts and are completely intertwined. Having two separate trials on exactly the same facts would be
a horrible waste of judicial resources and would cost the litigants a vast amount of otherwise

unnecessary attorneys’ fees and litigation expenses. Two trials instead of onc on the same issnes also
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raises the risk of inconsistent results and inconsistent case postures for purposes of potential appellate
review. Assuming arguendo that any claims turn out not to be triable o a jury, the Court should hold
a single trial with jury triable issues being decided by the jury and non jury issues being decided by the
bench. See In Re Credit Suisse First Boston Morigage Capital, LL.C., 273 8.W.3d 843, 846
(Tex.App. 2008}. '

V1. CONCLUSION

CVFS is party to no instrument purporting to waive jury trial rights and CVFS is entitled to a
trial by jury for every claim in the Amended Complaint except for the defamation claim in the Sixth
Claim for Relief which claim is not brought on behalf of CVFS. ‘

The guaranty instruments containing the jury trial wavier provisions Defendants contend are
applicable to TM2l and Tharaldson are void for fraud, breach of fduciary duty and other misconduct
in the inducement of the guaranty instruments. Tharaldson and TM2] are entitled to a jury trial on the
invalidity of the guaranty instruments. Only if the jury finds the guaranties to be valid should the
guaranty claims be taken from the jury for decision by the Couxt. '

The defamation claim (Sixth Claim for Relief) is outside the purported scope of the jury trial
waiver provisions and the defamation claims should be tried to a jury in any event,

il
W
i
i
i
it
i
i
1
i
n
i
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In no event should the Court permit the waste and expense of separate jury and non jury trials
for CVES on the one hand and TM2U/ Tharaldson on the other hand. The factual underpinnings of each
of the Plaintiffs’ cases are identicel and the claims are wholly intertwined. The Court should hold a
single trial on all issues and submit to the jury the question whether the guaranties are void for fraud,
breach of fiduciary duty, or other misconduct. Only if the jury finds the guaranties to be valid should
the Court take issues relating to the guaranties from the jury for decisio.n by the bench.
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/D. CHRIS ALBRIGHT, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 009404 .
MARTIN A. MUCKLERQY, ESQ.
MNevada Bar No. 009634
801 S. Ranche Dr, Bldg. D
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C.
K. LAYNE MORRILL, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No, 004591
MARTIN A. ARONSON, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 009005
STEPHANIE L. SAMUELSON, ESQ.
Arizona Bar No. 018099

One E Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

(602) 263-8993

Pro Hac Vice Application Pending

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
{ HEREBY CERTIFY that on the day of September, 2009, 1 served the foregoing

OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANTS SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND BRADLEY
1. SCOTT’S MOTION TO STRIKE JURY DEMAND by mailing a copy of the sare, postage

prepaid and addressed to the following:

J. Randall Jones

Mark M. Jones

Matthew S. Carter

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation and
Bradley L. Scott

Von S. Heinz

Abran E, Vigil

Ann Marie McLoughlin

Lewis and Roca LLP

Suite 600

3993 Howard Hughes Parkway
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma

John D. Clayman, Esq.

Frederic Dorwart Lawyers

01d City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103-5010
Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.
Howard & Howard

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Suite 1400

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Attarneys for Defendant APCO

Phillip S. Aurback, Esq.

Marquis & Aurback

10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Attorneys for Third-Party Defendant
Nevada Construction Services
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HARRISON, KEMP. JONES & COULTHARD
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Electronically Filed
09/28/2008 03:17:51 PM

A b s

the waivers signed by Gary D. Tharaldson (“Tharaldson™) and Tharaldson Motels IT, Tne. ("TM21") |

I RPLY
J RANDALL JONES, ESQ. CLERK OF THE COURT
Nevada Bar Now: 001927
MARK M; JONES, EZQ.
Bevada Bar No.: DO0R67. _
MATTHEW S, CARTER, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No.: 009524
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
‘3800 Howard Mughes Parkway
Sevenieenth Floor
Las Vegag, Nevada 89169
Tel. (702) 385:6000 _
Attoineys. for:Scott Finanéial Corporation
and Bradley J. Scott
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, Case No.:  A379963
L.L.C., a Nevada Limited Liability Company; | Pept. Ne.: XIII
THARALDSON MOTELS TT, INC., a Notth
Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
THARALDSON, o . o N
‘ DEFENDANTS SCOTT FINANCIAL
Plaintiifs, CORPORATION AND BRADLEY J.
SCOTT'S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF
Y. MOTION TO STRIKE JURY DEMAND
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, 4 : ‘ _
North. Dakata corporaion; BRADLEY ), Flearing Date: October 5, 2009
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.,a | Hearing Time: 9:00 a,m.
hational bank, GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Mevada corporation;
DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES [-100,
Defendants,
I.
INTRODUCTION
Plaintiffs’ oppesitionixes apples and ofarigss. While they correvtly argie that the claims -
JHof Club Vista Finuneial Serviges (“CVFS”) are not subject to ariy jury rial waivers, the fact is that

|l are presumptively valid under Nevada law and must therefore be enforced by this Court unless and
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until Plaintiffs can prove that those waivers were not entered into intentionally, knowingly, and
yoluntarify. Because none of the artiments offered by Plaintiffs can satisfy the burden placed on.
them. by Lowe Enterprises Residential Partners, LB, v, Eighth Judicial District Court. ex. red,
County of Clark; 118 Nev. 32,40 P 3d.405, (2002), Scoit’s instant motion 1o strike the jury demand
with regard to Theraldson-and TH2E shoald be granted in its entirety,

Plaintiifsareue that, becduss they have alleged fraud in theiy First Amended Comiplaint, the

guaranties containing the jury waivers are Com pletely invalid and thierefore cannot propérly be

enforced by this Court, This arguimient, however, puts the cart before the horse; the fact that CVFS |

o either of thie other Plaintiffs hus atfeged frand does nat render ajury trial waiver invalid in Nevada
(not, actually, does the aflegatior of fraud automatically rendeér any ugreement invalid), since the
Nevada Supreme Court has set-forth its own 1est tor determining the validity of such a waiver.

Simply alleging fraud is not enoagh to invalidate a waiver bgcause the party challenging the-waiver

hias an evidentiny burden to demonstrate fraud, which is not the same a5 simply throwing outan

allegation. Because ne such demonstration has been made; voiding the jury trial waivers of

Tharaldson and TM2T on these grounds would be lighly improper.

Also, Plaintifls* contention that the claims in this case are shnply too intertwined for multiple
trials is wiconvincing. IFthis Court acgepts the outline of the clainis offered in plaintiff's opposition
— that there are (1) CVFS claims related to the subordination of the origitial deeds of trust and its
participation in the Senior Loan, and (2) guarantor claims related fo the Senior Loan, then there is

riocompellingreason why those sets of'claims canngt betried separately. Stvtt woutd furfhersubmit

‘that, in the light of the: presummptively valid jury trial watvers of Tharaldson and TM2I, this Court

must do all it can fo try and sccommodate Seott's enforcement of the jury trial wakvers. Scolt
snbmits that this.Court would otherwise besetting a bad precedent for futurecases in Nevada, where
any plaintiff who wants to disavow his own agreed-10 jury tria} waiver need oply join another

plaintiff with rélated claims who has not signed such-awaiver. Because of the strong public policy

of this State that parties and courls honor contracls, this must not. be -allowed to happen. |

Accordingly, sud for ail the foregoing Teasons; Seott hereby requests that the instant motion {ostrike

Plaintiffs’ jury demand be granted in its entirety.

Pape Zof 9

12019-001

00514



Wevads 891469

Fax (702) 385-6001

Sevenienth Floor

© (702) 1856000

HARRISON, KEMP. JONES & COULTHARD
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
1as Veg

A’

L N =~ T - R X N+ "V, SR VR P S % S

O W e~ Oy B

Il
ARGUMENT-

A, The. Number of Claims CVFS has in This Action is Immaterial to. Whether the Jury

Trisl Waivers Should Be Enforced Against Tharalison and TMIL

PlaintilTs spend a large amount of their opposition. discussing how CVES is a Plaintiffon
several of the claims asserted in the First Aniended Complaiit. Regardless of whether this is tive,
Scott submils that it is.irrelevant:to the quesiion.of whether the jury trial waivers agreed to by both
Tharaldson.and TM2I should be-enforced. The opposition helpfully lays out the basis of the CVES
claims, and it appears that the bases of those claims (gither the participation in.the Senior Loan or
{Hesubordination of the prior deeds.of trust) are conceptually separate from the elaims that relate-lo
theguarantors.

According tothe opposition, CVF3 brings its claims for relief nut only as a-participant in the
Senior Loan, but also-as the lender of $46 million on the project, an interest which Plainfiffs claim
has. been wrongfully and frandifently subordinated. This set of claims, however, is factually and
lepally distinct from the claims-of Thataldson and TM21, which allege that they were wrongfully and
frandulently indiiced into,guarantying the Seniot Loan, Though thiste are similar facts.and theories

in both cases, there is nio cormpelling reason for therito be tried together, particilaily where all.of:

the evidence indicates that Tharaldson and TM2] knowingly, intentionally, and voluntarily agreed

to this arrangement after having had the opportunily to consult with independent counsel on the
matter,

Tn other words, though CVFS:and the gnaramtordefendants{Tharaldsonand TM2{) may both
be suing on fraud and other similar leggl theories, the exact elaims that each Plaintiffis alleging are

substantively different as to the elements of each respective fraud claim. Plaintiffs offer no specific

L reason why the claims of the guatanitor defendants and the CVFS wi so similar that they must be |

tried together in front of a jury. Therefore, simply pointing ouf that the Plaintiffs all sue on similar
legal theories and concluding that the claims ave “intertwined” is just noteiongh for this Court 10
disregard the express agreements of the pasties that the claims of Tharaldson and TM2] reldting to
the loan documents should be tried separately from thoss of CVFS,
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'B. UnderNevada Lav, theJury Trial Waivers arcPresumptively Valid, Plaintiffs Cunnot

Avoid Them Simply by Alleging Fraud.

As discugsed in Scott’s original motion, the Nevada Supretme Court in Lowe held that jury
trial waivers are presumptively valid.! The only way that a jury trial waiver canbe invalidated is if
the party challenging the waiver can prove that the waiver was not entered into knowingly,
intentionally, and voluntarily® Here, Phaintiffs assert that becausc they have alleged fraud in their.
Birsi Amenided Coniplaint, the agreements that they allege they were frasdutently indiced into (e,
the SeniorLoan documents) are invalid. Therefore, they speciously reason, the jury trial waivers
must be invalid as well.

L There is o authority for Plaintiffs’ contention that the mere allegation of frapd

instantly negates a jury saiver as to.all claims ir alitigation,

First and foremost, the-cases cited by Plaintiffs do not.stand for the proposition that party

I pay merely allege fraud to get out of its jury trial waivers. Rather, they state thet aparty who asserts.
I the detenss of finud to invalidage an agréptaeit isentitied inly toa jutytsial on the issine.of whether

the agreement was frauduiently induced. If the jury fintds ffaudulent.inducementy then and only”

then may the waived claims be tried before a jury;ifnot, then the ¢laimsmust proceed ina non-jury
trial. The courtin Bank of New York v. Royal Atlilefic Industries, Lid , made this perfisctly clear:

By asserfing this [fréud] defense, the tespondents are cliallenging the
validity of those guarantecs, and therefore, they are ¢ntitled 10 & Jury
tria!l on this defense: [eitations omitted] Tfthe respondents-are found
1o have effectively revoked their guaraniecs, then the complaint will
bie dismissed insolar as it is agseried agatyst them; if net, theymust
proceed on the remainder of the complaintin a nonjery trisl,

The Bank of New York court was not along ifi {his distinction. Plaintiffs’ other cited authority algo

|| holds-that, in the case of a challgnge to {he agregmen( on the basis of fraud, only a limited trisl on

' See Lowe Enterprises Residemtial Parivers. L. P, v. Eighth Judicial District Cowrt ex. Rel. County of
Clark, 118 Nev. 92, 100, 40 P.3d 4085, 410 (2002).

g

13 294 A Dd 380, 386 637 N.Y.5.24:478, 479 (N.Y A 2 Dept. 1996) (smphasis added),
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that alleged fraud s allowed, not a full jury trial anall glaims. In fact, the New York Superior Court

specilically beld that:

“Ihis court does ¥ ywever, cofichide that the defendants are
gntitled fo. n jary frml, generally, upun all the issues. Such a
dewermination would be in contravention to y the agreement stied npon;
if it is subsequently. decided to be a binding contraei,™

16N.X.8.2d 113, L4 (N.Y. Sup.

Accord, Federal Housecraft, Inc. v. Fariu, 28 Misc.2d 135, 156,2
1961) (holding that “the party resisting the comragt should be affsrded the privilege of a
prefiminary trial by jury on the defense of fraud.”);: and Gardner & North Roofing & Siding
Corporation v. Champagne, 55 Misc.2d.413, 414-15, 285 N.Y 8.2d 693, 695 (N.Y. Co. Ct. 1967)
(bholding that the party alleging fraudulens inducement was “entitled t 4 tial by jury solely on the

issue offraud. The enforceability of the plaintiff's claimunder the.contract would then depend upon.

the determination of the fraud jssue.”).. Purthermore, the non-New York authority cited by Plaintiffs

does noi directly address the issue of fraudulent allegations, and certainly does net stand for the
novel proposition that the riere allegation of fraud will invalidatea willful, intentional, and knowing
waiver of the right {e a jury trial.

In sum, none of this so called persuasive authority cited by Plaintifis changes any pari of the

analysts set down by the Nevada Supreme Courtin Lowe, and this Court shiould therefore follow thie

Liowe-test in detetmining the validity of the waivet. And, since thereds no.cviderice to indicate that

{he jury teial watver itself, which was bolded and capitalized in both documents, was agreed w0
Treanse.of any fraud or mistepresentation, it should e allowed fo staird &% amatter of fairness tind
Nevada law.

Even if, however, this Courtwere inclined to followthe authority cited by Plaintiffs, the most

that itcould possibly grany would be a limited jury trial solely on the issue of ‘whether Tharaldson’s

|| and/or TM21%s conserit to their guaranties was frandulently induced. Underne circutnstances would

the mere allegation of fraud entitled them to-a fill jury trial on all claims; fraud in the inducemert

would have to be proven through a separate “mini-trial™ as per the authority cited by Plaintiffs.in

¢ Internationed Roofing Corp. v, ¥an Der Veer, 43 Misc.2d 93, 94, 250 N.Y.$.2d 387, 388 (NY . Sup
1964) femphasis added).
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their opposition.

2 Plaintiffs shavdd be estopped fram asserting trat the loan doctiments are invalid,
since they liavé afready accepted benefits wndeér them, and have tried to use them
to improperly circimyent the discavery process.

Plaintiffs arc comradicting themselves. They stem 10 believe (hat, while they may enforee-

any of the Seénior Loan decuments as they please (and, in fact, to improperly tircymivent the
aversight and protection of the discovery procedures of this-Court), those documents are nonetheless

invalid when Scott afternpts-to entores a validprovisionaf the guaranties that Tharaldson and TM2I

‘knowingly, intentionally, and voluntaily ageeed to.  Scott would refer to Court 1o Plaimiiffs’

opposition to Scoft’s pending moetion for declaratory relief, on file herein, in which Plaintitfs assert.
that they -are able to tise the Senior Loan documents 1o flaunt thie. rules of civil procedure and
propound rogue discovery requests-outside of the jurisdiction of this Court. Surely this ‘behavior

implies that Plaintiffs do not really believe the Senior Loan degcoments are invalid; othierwise, they

1 would not be using them to make.an end-rud around the Nevada Rufes of Civil Procexdure..

1C. The Jury Frial Waivers Apply to AH Cigims Related to thic Senior Lonin (facluding the

Defamation Claims), Not Just Claims Regarding the ‘Guarantics.

THe opposition’s claini that thejury irial waiversin the Tharaldson and TM2T guaranties only
apply to ¢laims directy involving the guatanticsihemselves is false. Asthis Court cai see from the
guaranty agreements; the language of the jury trial waivers ig far broader than Plaintiffs represent,

Specifically, borh jury trial waivers stufe that they apply to “LITIGATION REGARDING THE

I PERFORMANCE OR ENFORCEMENT OF, OR IN ANY WAY RELATED T0, THIS
1} GUARANTY, ANY RELATED AGREEMENTS, OR: OBLIGATIONS THEREUNDER™

Scott submits that the unambizvous language of these waivers encompasses all claimsrelated
to the guaranty in addition to all claims relating to any doguments having to do with the Senior Loan.

Recause all of Plaintiffs’ claims relate to the SeniorLoan docoments, therefore; all of the claims of

| T haraldson and ‘TM2I are subject to the jury trial waivers contained in their respective guarantics.

% Swe Bxhibits 1 and 2 to the. griginal motlon at paragraphs 13 and 11, respectively, (Bmphiasis original.)
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D. Principles of Fairness and Nevada Law Require that Tharaldson’s and TM2Y's Jury
Waivers Must Be Enforced Despite Plaintiffs* Congerns About the Inconvenience of
Separate Trials.

Aecording to the Nevada Supréme Court’s devision in Lowe, the relative convenjenice of
severing a claims fo be tried.is not a factor that this Court should consider in deteriniining whether
to enforee the jury trial waivers of Tharaldson and TMZ21. It is the policy of Nevada Courfs, in the
absonce of a violativn of public policy, to enfurde contracts as they are written.t It would be a
violstion of Nevads public policy as set-down by the Supreme Cowrt for this Court to simiply choose
not to enforce the jury trial waiver for the simple reason that it would be too inconvenient for

Plaintifts. Additionally, the oppasition’s argumcm' that having both jury and non-jury trials js a

waste of resonrces is just as applicable to Plaintiffs” jury deinand as it is 1o the jury trial waivers;

Scott could just as edsily argue Thit judicial economiy and Nevada’s public policy Fivoring

enforcement of eontracts dictate that the waiver should be enforced as to 2l elaims in this litigation,
rather than jist those of Tharaldson and TM2I, Scott is, however; areuing for the mosf reagonable
posilion: that the written agreements of Tharaldson and TM2L be honored, and CVFS be allowed to:
have a jury, or not, as it pleases.
148
CONCLUSION

Plaintiffs ate attempting o over-genstalize their Way out-of the-khowing, intentional, and

|| voluntary contractual agreements made by Tharaldson snd TM2I to waive their respective rights to

#jury irial. Regardless of any fraud allegations (or any.other allegations for that matter) the truth is

it both Tharaldson and TM2T knew what they weie doing when tliey agreed {0 wajve their right

1o 8 jury tiad, aud they are simply ttying to get out of that provrise now, Even if this Cotrt accepts

i their perswasive authority over the sufhority of the Nevada Supreme Courl, they slill cannot force

4 single jury trial on all issues, because-the fraud in the inducenent they allege wounld have to be

S Seedelson v. Colifornia Stete Muto. Ass'n Inter-Insirance Birean; 114 Nev. 345, 347-48, 956 P.2d
803,805 (1998); wee wlso Ellison v. California State Ao, Ass's, 106 Nev..601,.603, 797 P24 975, 977
{1990) (“Tt'has long been the policy in Nevada that absent sume countervailing reason, contracts will be

1 construed from the written-langnage and enforced as written,}).
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determined in a sgparate. wrial. This Court:must hold Tharaldson and 'TMZI o their promises.
Accordingly, and for alt the foregoiing reasors, Seolt respectfilly recpuests that this Couirt grafit the
instaut moetion in its entirety and stifke the jury demand of Plaintiffs Tharaldson and TM2i. Inthe

alternative, if this Court wishes to have a trial regarding whather there was fraud by the indueement

as 10 one or hoth of the guaranties, Scott requests that this Court sever the tigl issag-of fraud in the ‘

inducerent and conduet that wial first, inordexto detersine: whether Tharaldson’s andfor TM2{’s

jury trial waivers are valid under Nevada law.
DATED ihis_3% __ day of Septomber, 2009..
Respectiully submitted;
KEMP,JONE;L% & COULTHARD

chada Bar No.: 267

MATTHEW S, CARTER, ESQ..

Mevada Bar Ne.: 9524

3800 Howard [Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

{.3s Vegas, Nevada §9169

Attotneys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradiey I Scott
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

1 hereby-certify that on thie s ¢ éy of September, 2009, the foregoing DEFENDANTS

SCOTTFINANCIALCORPORATION AND BRADLEY J. SCOTT*'SREPLY INSUPPORT
OF MOTION TO STRIKE JURY DEMAND was served on the following persons by mailng &

copythereot, firstclass mail, postage prepaid, and e-nailing to thee-mail addrvesses lisied as follows:

ALBRIGHT, STODDARID,
WARNICK & ALBRIGHT
Mark Albright, Esq.

1. Chris Albright, Esq.

Martin Muckleroy, Esq,

801 8. Ranghio Drive, Suite D4
Las Vegas, NV 89106
gmagéalbfightsto‘ddafd.com.
dea@albrightstoddard.com
mmuckleroy(@albrighistoddard.com
Clounse/ for Ploikiffs

HOWARD-& HOWARD ATTORNEYS P.C,

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esg., .

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 14% Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

grm@hZlaw.com

whg@hZlaw.com

kdp@h2law.com

Counsel for Defendant APCO Conséruction
and Asphalt Products Corporation

FREDERIC DORWART, LAWYERS
John D.-Clayman, Esq.

Old City Halt

124, Bast Fourth Street

Tulsa, QK 74103

jelayman@idlaw.com
Coutisel far Bunk of Oklakoma, N.A.

s

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C.
K. Layne Morrill, Esqg,

Martin A, Aronson, fisg.
Stephanie L. Samuelson, Esq.

1 Bast Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Imorell@magzlay.com
maronson@meazlaw.com.
ssamuel son@niaaZlaw.coin
Co-Counsel for Plaintiffs

LEWIS & ROCA

Von Heinz, s,

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
[.us Vegas, Nevada 89169
vheinz@lrlaw.cot

Jvicmmeau@irlaw.com

Local counwel for Bark of Oklahoma, N.A.

HOLLAND & HART, LLP

Gavin C, Jangard, Hsg. _

3800 Howard Huglies Parkway, 10" Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169
gejangard{@hollandhart.com

Counyel for Alexander Edelstein & Gemstone
Developinent West, fnc

(it

An.employee of Kemyp, Jones & Coullhard
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Electronically Filed
09129/2009 09:20:35 AM
1 || JOIN W‘. . kﬂ‘m—-
VON 8, HEINZ i
2 |l Nevada Bar No. 859 CLERK OF THE COURT
vheinz@lrlaw.com
3 {i LEWISANDROCALLP
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway
4 | Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
5 (702) 949-8200
6 (702) 949-8351 (fax)
JOHN D, CLAYMAN
7 i Admitted Pro Haec
FREDERIC DORWART, LAWYERS
8 || Old City Hall
124 East Fourth Street
9 || Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103
(918) 583-9965
10 || (918) 584-2729 (fax)
11 || Attorneys for Defendant
2 BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A,
13
1 DISTRICT COURT
5 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, Case No. A579963
16 || L.L.C., a Nevada limited Hability company; Dept. No. XIII
THARALDSON MOTELS II, INC., a North
17 {l Dakota corporation; and GARY D.
8 THARALDSON,
Plaintiff,
19 DEFENDANT BANK OF
vs. OKLAHOMA'’S JOINDER IN
20 DEFENDANTS SCOTT FINANCIAL
SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a CORPORATION AND BRADLEY J,
21 || North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J. SCOTT’S MOTION TO STRIKE JURY
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,N.A.,a DEMAND
22 || national bank; GEMSTONE DEVELOPMENT
WEST, INC., a Nevada corporation;
23 {| ASPHALT PRODUCTS CORPORATION Hearing Date: October 5, 2009
D/B/A APCO CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada Hearing Time: 9:00 a.m.
24 || corporation; DOE INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and
o5 ROE BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,
Defendants.
26
27 Defendant Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. (“BOK™) joins the Motion to Strike Jury Demand
28 || made by defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott (together, “the Scott
3997 et s Py
™ Vn:m Nv‘y::u ey -1- R
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Defendants™), as filed August 6, 2009 and set for hearing on October 5, 2009. BOK incorporates
by reference the arguments presented by the Scott Defendants in their Motion to Strike Jury
Demand and submits that it should be granted,
DATED this 29th day of September, 2009,
LEWIS AND ROCA LLP

By /s/ Von S. Heinz
VON S. HEINZ
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway
Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

JOHN D. CLAYMAN

Admitted Pro Haec

FREDERIC DORWART, LAWYERS
OXd City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103

Attorneys for Defendant

BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P, 5(b), I hereby certify that service of the foregoing
DEFENDANT BANK OF OKLAHOMA'S JOINDER IN DEFENDANTS SCOTT
FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND BRADLEY J. SCOTT'S SUBMISSION OF
PROPOSED CASE MANAGEMENT ORDER was made this date by electronic filing and by

depositing in the U.S. Mail, at Las Vegas, Nevada, addressed to the following:

Mark Albright

D. Chris Albright

Martin A. Muckleroy

Dustin A. Joimson

Albright, Stoddard, Warnick & Albright, P.C.
801 South Rancho Drive

Quail Park — Suite D-4

1.as Vegas, Nevada 89106

Attomneys for Plaintiffs

K. Layne Morrill

Martin A. Aronson

Stephanie L. Samuelson

Morrill & Aronson, P.L.C,

One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, Arizona 85012

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

J. Randall Jones

Mark M. Jones

Matthew 8. Carter

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Attorneys for Defendants

Scott Financial Corporation and
Bradley J. Scott

John D, Clayman

Frederic Dorwart, Lawyers

0ld City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, Oklahoma 74103

Attorneys for Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.
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Gwen Mullins

‘Wade B. Gochnour

Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for APCO Construction

DATED this 29th day of September, 2009,

/s/ Tudith A. Vienneau
An Employee of Lewis and Roca LLP
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09A579963

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Business Court COURT MINUTES Qctober 05, 2009

09A579963 Club Vista Financial Services LLC, Tharaldson Motels 11 Inc, et al
Vs
Scott Financial Corp, Bradiey Scott, et al

Qctober 05, 2009 9:00 AM All Pending Motions All Pending Motions
(10-05-09)
HEARD BY: Denton, Mark R. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 12A

COURT CLERK: Susan Burdette

RECORDER: Debbie Winn

REPORTER:
PARTIES
PRESENT: Jones, Jon Randall Attorney
McLoughlin, Ann Attomey
Marie
Muckleroy, Martin Attorney
A.
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Defts Scott Financial and B Scott's Motion for Dedlaration of Rights Under Participation Agreement
of Club Vista Financial Services, L.L.C., Dated March 21, 2008 ... Defts Scott Financial and B Scott's
Motion for Firm Trial Setting ... Deft Bank of Oklahoma's Joinder in Defts Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley J. Scott's Motjon for Firm Trial Setting ... Defts Scott Financial and B Scot's Motion to
Strike Jury Demand ... Deft Bank of Oklahoma's Joinder in Defts Scott Financial and B Scott's Motion
to Strike Jury Demand ... Deft APCO Construction’s Motion to Dismiss Pltf's First Amended
Complaint

Also present: Martin Aronson, Arizona pro hac vice counsel, on behalf of Plifs.

As to Defts Scott Financial and B Scott's Motion for Declaration of Rights Under Participation
Agreement of Club Vista Financial Services, L.1..C., Dated March 21, 2008: Mr. Jones referred to work
product and attorney/ client information because of a contractor's relationship, that would give them
a technical advantage when suing the same party, and argued as to obtaining information that is not
PRINT DATE: 10/08/2009 Page1of 3 Mirutes Date: October 05, 2009
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privileged pursuant to the rules of civil procedure, Mr. Aronson stated they do not have a privilege
log from Deft; stated he is willing to make all requests through RFP; noted he does not want to waive
any rights under the Participation Agreement or waive any rights as to what is privileged; and
requested that Deft respond to the RFP and they will meet and confer, noting he is not trying to
circumvent the Court's supervision; and referred to the privilege and rights. Court read from the
motion; and upon Court's inquiry, Mr. Aronson stated he has no objection to a declaration. Further
arguments by Mr. Jones, noting he has been served with the RFPs and plans to have them out in the
next day or so; he will provide a privilege log as bound to do so, and will try to work this out.
COURT ORDERED, motion GRANTED. Court noted he finalized the Case Management Order
Friday.

Defts Scott Financial and B Scott's Motion for Firm Trial Setting and Deft Bank of Oklahoma's Joinder
in Defts Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott's Motion for Firm Trial Setting: Mr. jones
stated his secretary advised him this morning that the Scheduling Order indicates the discovery
deadline is October 15. Court stated he left the deadlines but did not schedule a trial date. Mr. Jones
stated that if the discovery deadline is October 15, he would request a firm trial date as most of the
witnesses and experts are from out-of-state. Upon Court's inquiry, Mr. Aronson stated he has no
objection to the concept but thinks it is way too early. Court stated he could grant the motion in part
without setting the date, but reserve setting it until the appropriate time. Further statements by Mr.
Aronson, Court stated that at appears there is no objection to the concept of a firm setting. Mr.
Aronson concurred.

Court stated he could grant the motion in part and say it should be given a firm trial setting, but
is not sure when he can give a firm date; he would have to discuss the date with the JEA. Statements
by Mr. Jones as to the discovery deadline and a firm trial setting as that it will make the parties get
their discovery done and if they do not have a trial date, the parties tend to get busy with other
things; if it suits the Court's calendar, he would ask for that rather than wait.

Upon Court's inquiry, Mr. Jones stated this trial will take 15 trial days, noting there is no
dispute as to the number of trial days. Mzr. Aaronson stated he is amenable to a firm trial setting as
there are over 100 witnesses and there will be expert witnesses; noting the attempts to obtain
discovery from 27 participating banks who are out-of-state and the earliest would be mid-November,
noting he needs additional time. Following colloquy, Mr. Aaronson stated that setting it in mid-2011
would be fine, and requested that another Rule 16 Conference or a trial setting conference sometime
in the Spring or middle of next year; referred to document production; and requested a follow-up
conference in January to see if all the documents have been produced, and then can schedule the
depositions. COURT ORDERED, motion GRANTED, and if persuaded it is not a practical setting the
Court will reset it. Mr, Jones to prepare the Order granting the Motion; and the Court will issue a
trial order.

As to Defts Scott Financial and B Scot's Motion to Strike Jury Demand and Deft Bank of Oklahoma's
Joinder in Defts Scott Financial and B Scott's Motion to Strike Jury Demand: Mr. Jones referred to the
fraud in the inducement claim. Court stated it will have to be determined, down the road, how the
case will be tried. Mr. Jones noted that Pltfs Theraldson and Theraldson Motels II signed the waiver
of the Jury trial but Club Vista did not; this motion is to strike and identify the other individuals and

PRINTDATE: 10/08/2009 Page 2 0f 3 Minutes Date: QOctober 05, 2009
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09A579963

entities. Mr. Aronson referred to the Reply as to the case management and property management,
which are intertwined for all three (3) Pltfs; and argued this should be denied. Upon Court's inquiry,
Mr. Jones concurred that Pltfs Theraldson and Theraldson Motels Il waived the right to have a jury
trial. Court stated the other parties who did not waive it can rely on the demand for purposes of
having their issues tried by a J; and read from page 6 of the Reply brief. Further arguments.

COURT ORDERED, motion DENIED, noting a Jury Demand can specifically serve a function
by allowing those entitled to it to have a jury demand; and stated the ruling is WITHOUT
PREJUDICE to contentions of damages as to the order in which the case is to be tried and whether
portions should be severed; as far as the Court is concerned some of this case may or may not be tried
by the Jury but that will be determined later on; and noted there may be another Rule 16 Conference
next year to discuss the trial; noted there may be a motion to sever and all contentions relative to
sever are preserved. Further statements by Mr. Jones. Court concurred the motion is DENIED
WITHOUT PREJUDICE to later consideration by the Court.

As to Deft APCO Construction's Motion to Dismiss Plif's First Amended Complaint: Upon Court's
inquiry, counsel concurred, and the COURT ORDERED, matter CONTINUED.

10-12-09 9:00 AM Deft APCO Construction’s Motion to Dismiss Pltf's First Amended
Complaint

PRINT DATE:  10/08/2002 Page3of 3 Minutes Date: October 05, 2009
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MATTHEW S, CARTER, ESQ. (#9524) .

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway

Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

kicf@kempiones.com

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation

and Bradley J. Scott

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

.

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, Case No.:  AS579963
L.L.C,, a Nevada Limited Liability Company; Dept. No.: X1
THARALDSON MOTELS H, INC., a North
Dakoia corporation; and GARY D,

THARALDSON,
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
Plaintiffs, GRANTING MOTION FOR FIRM
TRIAL SETTING

V.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY I,
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.,a
national bank; GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC,, a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation;
DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUBINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants,
AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR
FIRM TRIAL SETTING, a copy of which is attached herefo, was entered in the above-entitled
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matter on the 6™ day of November, 2009.
DATED this 9* day of November, 2009,
Respectfully submitted by:
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LL.P

J. RANDALL JONES, ESQ. (#1927)
MARK M. JONES, ESQ. (#267)
MATTHEW 5. CARTER, BSQ. (#9524)
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 86169
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that on the 9" day of November, 2008, the foregoing NOTICE OF
ENTRY OF ORDER was served on the following parties by mailing & copy thereof, first class

mail, postage prepaid to:

ALBRIGHT, STODDARD,
WARNICK & ALBRIGHT
Mark Albright, Esq.

D, Chris Albright, Esq.

Martin Muckleroy, Esq.

801 S, Rancho Drive, Suite D-4
Las Vepgas, NV 89106
gma@albrightstoddard,com
dca@albrightstoddard.com
muuckleroy@albrightstoddard.com
Counsel for Plaintifft

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS P.C,

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Wade Gochuour, Esq,

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 14" Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

grm@h2law.com

whg law.com

kdp law.com

Counsel for Defendant APCO Construction
and Asphalt Products Corporation

FREDERIC DORWART, LAWYERS
John DD, Clayman, Esq.

Piper Turner, Esq.

Oid City Hall

124 East Fourth Street

Tulsa, OK 74103
jelayman@fdlaw.com
prurmer@fdlaw.com

Counsel for Bank of Okiahoma, N.A.

ee 0 Kemp, Jones & Coulthard

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.L.C,
K. Layne Morrill, Esq.

Martin A. Aronson, Esq.
Stephanie L. Samuelson, Esq.

1 East Cemelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Imorrill@maazlaw.com
maronson(@maazlaw,com
ssamuelson@maazlaw.com
Co-Cournsel for Plaintiffs

LEWIS & ROCA

Voo Heinz, Hsq,

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
Lﬁs Vagasi Nevada 89169
vheinz@lrlaw.com
Jjvienneau@lirlaw.com

Local counsel for Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.

HOLLAND & BART, LLP

Gavin C. Janpard, Esq

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 10" Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169
gejangard@hollandhart.com

Counsel for Alexander Edelstein & (Femstone
Development West, Inc
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J. RANDALL JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Ber No. 1927

MARK M., JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No, 267

MATTHEW S. CARTER, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9524

KEMF, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Tel. (702) 385-6000

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation
gnd Bradley J. Scott

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
LL.C.,aNevada Limited Liability Company;
THARALDSON MOTELS 1I, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D,
THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,
v

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, &
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J,
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,N.A.,a
pational bank; GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC,, a Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corporation;
DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROR
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants,

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ROV 06 209
OfEFkY COlRT
CaseNo.: AS579963
Dept. No.: X1

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR
FIRM TRIAL SETTING

This matter baving first come before this Court on October 5, 2009, regarding
Defendant/Connterclaimant Scott Financial Corporation’s and Defendant Bradley J. Scott’s Motion
for Firm Trial Setting, the Courthaving reviewed the pleadings and papers on file herein, and having
heard the arguments of counsel for Plaintiffs, Martin A. Aronson, Esq,, and Mark Albright, Esq.; and
of counsel for Defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott, J. Randall Jones, Esq.;
Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., Von Heing, Bsq.; and APCO Construction, Gwen Rutar Mulling, Esq.;
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and with good cause appearing and there being no just cause for delay,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Scott Pinancial

Corporation’s and Bradley J. Scott’s Motion for Firm Trial Setting is GRANTED. The Court will

set a trial date by separate order of the Court.
N Qv
DATED this T"_day of Qetgber, 2009.

MARK R, DENTON

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

Submitted by:
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

AND AT JONES, ESQ. #1527)
MARK M, JONES, ESQ. (#267)
MATTHEW 8. CARTER, ESQ. (#9524)

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Seventeenth Floor -
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorngys for Defendants Scott Financial
Corporation and Bradley J. Scott

Approved as to form and content:

MORRILL & ARONSON

MARTIN A. ARONSON, ESQ.

(admitted pro hac vice)

One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012

and

COOKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY
& W00G, APC
W@%%&@
3930 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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Electronically Filed
11/09/2009 03:16:35 PM

NOEJ v, b o
J, RANDALL JONES, ESQ. (#1927)
MARK M. JONES, ESQ. (#267)
MATTHEW 8. CARTER, ESQ. (#9524)
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
kjc@kempiones.com

Attomeys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley J. Scott

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES, Case No.: AS79963
L.L.C., a Nevada Limited Liability Company; Dept. No.: XIO
THARALDSON MOTELS I, INC., a North
Dakota corporation; and GARY D.

THARALDSON,
NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
Plaintiffs, DENYING MOTION TO STRIKE
JURY DEMAND WITHOUT
v. - PREJUDICE

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a
North Dakota corporation; BRADLEY J,
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA, N.A.,a
national bank: GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., 8 Nevada
corporation; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Nevada corperation;
DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.
AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

. NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the ORDER DENYING MOTION TO

26)...
27|
284..

12019-001

STRIKE JURY DEMAND WITHOUT PREJUDICE, a copy of which is aftached hereto, was
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entered in the above-entitled matter on the 6* day of November, 2009.
DATED this 9" day of November, 2009,

Respectfully submitted by:
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

"/

, RANPALL JONES, ES% {
MARK M. JONES, EBQ. (i#267)
MATTHEW S, CARTER, ESQ. (#9524)
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that on the 9" day of November, 2008, the foregoing NOTICE OF
ENTRY OF ORDER was served on the following parties by mailing a copy thereof, first class

mail, postage prepaid o

ALBRIGHT, STODDARD,
WARNICK & ALBRIGHT
Mark Albright, Esq,

D. Chris Albright, Esq. .
Martin Muckleray, Esqg.

801 8. Rancho Drive, Suite D4
Las Vepas, NV 89106
gma@albrightstoddard.com
deaf@albrightstoddard.com
mmuckleroy@albrightstoddard.com
Counsel for Plaintiffs

HOWARD & HOWARD ATTORNEYS P.C.

Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.

Wade Gochnour, Esg.

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 14" Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89169

grm@hZlaw.com

whg law.com

kdp law.com

Counsel for Defendant APCC Construction
and Asphalt Products Corporation

FREDERIC DORWART, LAWYERS
John D. Clayman, Esq,
_Piper Turner, Esq,

Old City Hall

124 BEast Fourth Street

Tulsa, OK 74103
jelayman@fdlaw.com

ptuzne aw.com

Counsel for Bank of Oklahomg, N.A.

MORRILL & ARONSON, P.1.C.
K. Layne Morrill, Bsq.

Martin A. Aronson, Esq.
Stephanie 1.. Samuelson, Esqg.

1 East Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012
Imorrill@maazlaw.com
maronson{@maszlaw.com
ssamuelson@manzlaw.com
Ca-Counsel for Plaintiffs

LEWIS & ROCA

Yan Helrez, Esq.

3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy., Suite 600
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

vhei Irlaw.com
Jjvienneau@lrlaw.com

Local counsel for Bank of Oklahoma, N.A.

HOLLAND & HART, LLP

Gavin C. Jangard, Fsq.

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 10" Fioor
Las Vegas, NV 89169 '

gojeng ollandhart.com

Counsel for Alexander Edelstein & Gemstone
Development West, Inc '
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I.RANDALL JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 1927

MARK M. JONES, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 267

MATTHEW S. CARTER, ESQ.
Nevads Bar No. 9524

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway
Seventeenth Floor

Las Vegus, Nevada 89169

Tel, (702) 385-6000

Attorneys for Scott Financial Corporation
and Bradley J, Scott

CLUB VISTA FINANCIAL SERVICES,
L.L.C., a Nevada Limited Liability Company;
THARALDSON MOTELS I, INC., a Nosth
Dakota corporation; and GARY I3,
THARALDSON,

Plaintiffs,
V.

SCOTT FINANCIAL CORPORATION, &
North Dakota corporetion; BRADLEY J,
SCOTT; BANK OF OKLAHOMA,N.A., &
national bank; GEMSTONE
DEVELOPMENT WEST, INC., a Nevada
corporetion; ASPHALT PRODUCTS
CORPORATION D/B/A APCO
CONSTRUCTION, a Neveda corporation;
DOES INDIVIDUALS 1-100; and ROE
BUSINESS ENTITIES 1-100,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

FILED
NOY 6 609

. o
CLEAR OF CoURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case No.: AS579963
Dept, No.: XII

ORDER DENYING MOTION TO
STRIKE JURY DEMAND WITHOUT
PREJUDICE

This matier having first come before this Cowrt on October 5, 2009, regarding
Defendant/Counterclaimant Scott Financial Corporation’s and Defendant Bradley J. Scott’s Motion
to Strike Jury Demand, the Court having reviewed the pleadings and papers on file herein, and
having heard the arguments of counsel for Plaintiffs, Martin A. Aronson, Esg., and Mark Albright,
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Esq.; and of counsel for Defendants Scott Financial Corporation and Bradley J. Scott, T. Randail
Jones, Bsq.: Bank of Oklahoma, N.A., Von Heinz, Esq.; and APCO Construction, Gwen Rutar
Mullins, Bsq.; and with good canse appearing and there being no just cause for delay,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Scott Finanoial
Corporation’s and Bradley J. Scott’s Motion to Strike Jury Demand is DENIED WITHOUT
PREJUDICE. NOUZUee

DATED this _(_[:‘:,hday of October, 2009,

MARK R, DENTON
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

Submitted by:”
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

. RANDALL TBSQ.
MARK M. JONES, ESQ. (#267)
MATTHEW S. CARTER, ESQ. (#9524) ‘
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Seventeenth Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
Aftorneys for Defendants Scott Financial
Corporation and Bradley J. Scott

Approved as to form and content:

MORRILL & ARONSON

MARTIN A. ARONSON, ESQ,
(admitted pro hac vice)

One E. Camelback Road, Suite 340
Phoenix, AZ 85012

and

COOKSEY, TOOLEN, GAGE, DUFFY
& WOOG, APC

MARTIN MUCKELROY, ESQ. (;963 -

3930 Howard Hupghes Parkway, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV §916%
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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